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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited (the
"Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “"GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there is no other matter the omission of
which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

MACRO SITUATION REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the "Year"”), the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) faced complex
macro situation which has a variety of impacts on the business
development of the Group.

Impact of the COVID-19 epidemic

The risk of the global economic slowdown has been escalating
by the global outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic. The uncertainty
and lethality of the global pandemic virus continued to
jeopardize the confidence in all industries worldwide. The
lockdown imposed in many countries, including the PRC, has
caused disruption of production activities and an adverse
impact on the livelihood of the people and the economy
globally, including the PRC. This situation caused a serious
negative impact on trading business of the Group.

Stable Demand for Petrochemical Storage

The slump in international oil prices in 2020 has far-reaching
impacts. Although international oil prices have gradually
recovered to their previous levels in 2021 and continued to
fluctuate upwards, the nationwide shortage of tank capacity
caused by the backlog of chemical products has not been
relieved. Coupled with the recovery of the international
petroleum and petrochemical products market, the demand for
refined oil products has remained stable, and the demand for
chemical products has maintained a good growth rate, which
further drives the rapid development of the petrochemical
product storage industry, making the petrochemical storage
industry still maintain a high occupancy rate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in trading
business and the provision of petrochemical products storage
business.

Our major business activities can be divided into below
segments during the Year:

1. Trading Business

The Group is engaged in the trading and import and
export businesses of electronic products, petrochemical
products and various other products. During the Year,
the Group's trading business recorded revenue of
approximately HK$882.5 million (2020: approximately
HK$2,018.8 million). The decrease in revenue in this
segment was mainly due to the fact that (i) the Group
had taken risk management measures and terminated the
trading of some products which were loss-making or with
higher operational risks; and (ii) the Group expanded its
trade business to medical, food disinfection and other
related new products during the outbreak of COVID-19 last
year, and ceased such trade business this Year.

2. Petrochemical Products Storage Business

The Group is engaged in petrochemical products
storage business through T #& F & AL &2 [ AR
A Al (Jiangsu Zhongnanhui Petrochemical Storage
Company Limited*) (“Zhongnanhui”). During the Year,
the Group’s petrochemical products storage business
recorded an increase in revenue of approximately 7.0%
to approximately HK$25.9 million (2020: approximately
HK$24.2 million). The increase in revenue was mainly
attributable to the increase in the capacity of
petrochemical storage tanks.

* The official name is in Chinese and the English name is translated for

identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

OUTLOOKS

The Group expects that (i) although the COVID-19 vaccination
campaigns have been carried out throughout the world, the
pathogen of the COVID-19 continues to mutate and the global
epidemic shows no signs of decline, which brings uncertainties
to the economy. The Company will reasonably streamline its
operations and focus on developing our core business, (ii)
while seizing the opportunity of integrated development of T
BRI BT EE AR AR (Jiangsu Yancheng Port Holding
Group Co., Ltd*) ("Jiangsu Yancheng”), the Group will rationally
reorganize and optimize the resources of the Company, simplify
and restructure to conserve resources and prudently identify
investment opportunities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately 55.5%
to approximately HK$908.4 million for the Year (2020:
approximately HK$2,043.0 million generated from continuing
operations). Regarding reason of the decrease in revenue, please
refer to the paragraph headed “Business Review” above for
details.

The Group’'s cost of revenue decreased by approximately
55.2% to approximately HK$901.2 million for the Year (2020:
approximately HK$2,010.7 million incurred from continuing
operations). The decrease in cost of revenue was mainly driven
by the effect of decrease in revenue of the Group's trading
business.

With the combined effects of revenue and cost of revenue, the
Group recorded a gross profit margin of approximately 0.8%
for the Year (2020: generated from continuing operations of
approximately 1.6%). The decrease in gross profit margin was
mainly due to (i) the fierce industry competition in the trade
business; and (i) the rise of international oil price which had a
negative impact on our petrochemical storage business, while
the fixed costs of petrochemical storage tanks had increased.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's finance costs amounted to approximately HK$36.9
million for the Year (2020:
incurred from continuing operations).

approximately HK$51.5 million
Finance costs mainly
include interest on bank loans, unlisted secured bonds, listed
credit-enhanced guaranteed bonds and amounts due to
related companies. The decrease in finance costs was mainly
attributable to (i) the consideration of the disposal of 60% equity
TEHEBAREBHRIETIHERERAF

Hairong Dafeng Port Petrochemical Product Terminal Company

interests in (Jiangsu
Limited*) ("Jiangsu Hairong”) on 27 August 2020 partly offset
the balance of the consideration and interest calculated on
the consideration arising from the acquisition of 100% equity
interests in Jiangsu Hairong on 21 December 2018 and partly
offset the amount due to a connected company; and (ii) the
repayment of US$50 million three-year unlisted bonds with a
coupon rate of 7.5% per annum in March 2021 and the issuance
of US$55 million three-year credit-enhanced guaranteed bonds
with a coupon rate of 2.4% per annum on 24 March 2021.

The Group recorded loss for the Year of approximately HK$70.7
million (2020: approximately HK$56.0 million generated from
continuing operations). The loss for the Year mainly due to
the decrease in trading business while the fixed costs could
not be reduced. The loss attributable to the equity holders of
the Company was approximately HK$73.5 million (2020: loss
of approximately HK$60.3 million generated from continuing
operations) and the basic loss per share was 570 HK cents

(2020: 4.68 HK cents generated from continuing operations).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$156.5 million (2020: approximately HK$320.0
million), including net amounts due to connected companies of
approximately HK$224.4 million (2020: approximately HK$15.9
million).

The Group's equity capital and bank and other borrowings have
been applied to fund its working capital and other operational
needs. The Group's current ratio as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately 0.61 (2020: approximately 0.60).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's gearing ratio (defined as
the ratio of total interest-bearing borrowings to total equity) was
approximately negative 101.6% (2020: approximately negative
120.3%).

In order to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within the next twelve months and improve the Group's
current ratio. The Group has taken and will continue to take a
series of measures and arrangements, which includes but not
limited to the following:

(i) Negotiating with financial institutions or connected parties
for the renewals of the Group's short term bank and other
borrowings upon expiry, obtaining new borrowings and
applying for future credit facilities;

(i)  The Company has obtained a RMB1 billion financial

support (equivalent to HK$1,224,000,000) in formal writing

from Jiangsu Dafeng, a connected company which has

40% equity interests in Dafeng Port Overseas; and

(i) Improving sales and strictly controlling costs to generate
adequate cash flows to maintain its operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's total deficits attributable
to equity holders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$467.0 million (2020: approximately HK$405.5 million). The
capital of the Company only comprised of the ordinary share.
There was no movement in the issued share capital of the
Company during the Year.

Issuance of US$55,000,000 credit-enhanced
guaranteed bonds to be purchased by professional
investors only and to be listed on the Stock
Exchange

On 17 March 2021, the Company, as issuer, Jiangsu Dafeng
Harbour Holdings Limited (“Jiangsu Dafeng”), as guarantor, and
Tensant Securities Co., Ltd., Haitong International Securities
Co., Ltd., BOSC International Company Limited, Shanghai
Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch, CEB
International Capital Corporation Limited, China Everbright
(HK)
Limited and China Industrial Securities International Brokerage

Securities Limited, Huarong International Securities
Limited (together, the “Placing Agents”), entered into a placing
agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed to appoint
the Placing Agents as placing agents for the purpose of
procuring, and to use its best efforts, the subscription of the
bonds of up to an aggregate principal amount of US$55,000,000

(the "Placing”).

The Placing was completed on 24 March 2021. Pursuant to the
results of a book building exercise, the bonds in the principal
amount of US$55 million has been placed to bondholders at a
coupon rate of 2.4% per annum and for a term of 3 years.

The net proceeds from the Placing, after deducting the
commission to be charged by the Placing Agents and other
fees payable in connection with this offering, was approximately
US$52.7 million. The net proceeds have been used in repayment
of the principal of US$50 million and interest of approximately
US$1.9 million of the unlisted secured bonds due on 28 March
2021, and the balance of approximately US$0.8 million has been
used to satisfy the Group's normal working capital requirements.

For further details in relation to the Placing, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 24 March 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the Year (2020: Nil).

Significant investment, material acquisitions and
disposals

As at 31 December 2021, we were interested in approximately
RMB100 million registered capital in Jiangsu Hairong, a company
providing integrated logistics handling services in the PRC
market, representing approximately 40% of its total registered
capital.

Jiangsu Hairong is a private company and there is no quoted
market price available for the investment. The carrying amount
of the investment is nil as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). The
Group has not recognised further losses as the Group’s share
of losses of Jiangsu Hairong exceeds the carrying amount of its
interest in Jiangsu Hairong. The unrecognised share of loss of
Jiangsu Hairong for the Year and cumulative up to the end of
the reporting period amounted to HK$3,015,000 (for the period
from 28 August 2020 to 31 December 2020: HK$8,823,000) and
HK$11,838,000 (2020: HK$8,823,000) respectively.

We hold the investment with the primary objective to continue
to have the synergy effect between integrated logistics
handling services with our petrochemical trading business and
petrochemical products storage business and the investment
may allow the Group to benefit from the potential upside of
the integrated logistics handling business in the future when
the operational environment of the integrated logistics handling
business improves.

Save for the 40% equity interests in Jiangsu Hairong held by us, the
Group had made no significant investment, no material acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries and associates during the Year.

Pledge of assets

The Group used bank facilities and other borrowings to finance
its business expansion. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
did not have any secured borrowings (31 December 2020:
approximately HK$401.8 million, which were secured by the
Group's pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$218.6
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Foreign currency exposure

The income and expenditure of the Group are mainly carried
in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. Exposures to
foreign currency risk arise from certain of the Group's trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables and cash and bank
balances denominated in Renminbi and US dollars. The Group
mainly adopts measures such as adjusting the time of foreign
exchange receipt and payment, matching the balance of foreign
exchange receipts and payments, and signing foreign exchange
lock agreements with banks to control foreign exchange risks.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its foreign currency risk. The management team of the
Group reviews the foreign currency exposures regularly.

Employees and emolument policy

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 122
employees (2020: 123 employees for continuing operations)
based in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. During the Year,
the total staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, amounted
to approximately HK$21.8 million (2020: approximately HK$17.0
million generated from continuing operations).

Remuneration of employees is determined by reference to the
market terms and commensurate with the level of pay for similar
positions within the industry. Discretionary year-end bonuses
are payable to employees based on individual performance. The
Group provides benefits in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations.

Pension Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all of its employees in Hong Kong who are eligible to
participate in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”). The Group and its employees in Hong Kong are each
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the
PRC are required to participate in the central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments (the “Central
Pension Schemes”). According to the relevant regulations,
contributions that should be borne by the companies within the
Group are principally determined based on percentages of the
basic salaries of employees, subject to certain ceilings imposed.
The applicable percentages for the Central Pension Schemes for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are listed below:

Percentage
Pension insurance 12.0-20.0%
Medical insurance 5.2-10.5%
Unemployment insurance 0.32-1.5%
Housing fund 5.0-12.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

The Group's contributions to the MPF Scheme and the Central
Pension Schemes vest fully and immediately with the employees.
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there
were neither contributions forfeited by the Group nor had
there been any utilisation of such forfeited contributions to
reduce future contributions. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
there were no forfeited contributions which were available
for utilisation by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions to the MPF Scheme and the Central Pension
Schemes.

The Group reviews the emoluments of its directors and staff
based on their respective qualification, experience, performance
and the market rates so as to maintain the remunerations of its
directors and staff at a competitive level.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2020: Nil).

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Company attaches great importance to environmental,
social and governance ("ESG”) risks and has been improving
its ESG management. The Board retains overall responsibility
for the Group’s ESG governance and establishes an ESG
working group (“We") that reports to the Board to implement
ESG management. During the Year, the Company engaged a
professional third party institution to assist us to thoroughly
evaluate ESG risks and opportunities of the Company,
accordingly establish risk management and internal control
policies, and draft management approaches, strategies, and
objectives.

Meanwhile, We have been actively communicating with our
stakeholders through various channels, for fully understanding
their expectations, interests and information needs with the
help of the professional third party institution. The Company’s
key stakeholders include shareholders and investors, customers,
employees, suppliers, the community, etc. We listen to
stakeholders’ feedback via questionnaires, visits, phone calls, to
understand their interests on ESG information. During the Year,
We screened ESG issues that are of importance to the Company
according to stakeholders’ opinions and drafted ESG report

based on such important issues.

A detailed ESG report is set out in pages 49 to 102 of this
report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuan Qingfeng (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 36, has been appointed
as an executive Director and chairman of the Board since 25
February 2022. Mr. Yuan is a director and vice general manager of
Jiangsu Dafeng, the executive director and legal representative of
T AR BB SR B A BR A R (Jiangsu Yancheng Wenlue Group
Limited*), a connected company, the general manager and legal
representative of EEH KLZFMIEFEBZE S ER QA (Yancheng
Dafeng Heshun International Trade Limited*) (“Heshun Trading”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and a director of /T
wEWBEKEREEBAR AT Jiangsu Yancheng Harbour
Xiangshui Development Group Co., Ltd*), a connected company,
which commenced at various point in time during July 2021
to January 2022. Mr. Yuan received his bachelor degree in
business administration in & /X2 (Changzhou University*) by
way of part-time distance learning in 2021. From February 2011
to December 2020, Mr. Yuan consecutively served as the route
manager and business development manager in B3 FF #3545
R Z XA A (Yancheng Southeast Asia Airport Limited*).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ji Longtao ("Mr. Ji"), aged 57, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director since 23 February 2015. He owns 55% equity
interest in each of Success Pacific Investment Group Limited
("Success Pacific”) and )T # # /8% B B R A &) (Jiangsu Huahai
investment Company Limited*), which in turn own 18% and
10% equity interests in the Dafeng Port Overseas Investment
Holdings Limited ("Dafeng Port Overseas”) respectively.
Mr. Ji owns 50% equity interests of B M B E X FR QA
(Yancheng Longgiao Property Development Limited*), which is
engaged in property development and investment business.
He is a director of Dafeng Port Overseas and an executive
director of Success Pacific and Jiangsu Huahai, both of which
are engaged in investment and asset management businesses.

Mr. Yang Yue Xia (“Mr. Yang”), aged 49, has been appointed
as a non-executive Director since 12 March 2015. He was an
executive Director from 20 December 2013 to 11 March 2015.
He is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He has
many years of experience in corporate management. Mr. Yang
is currently a director of EYI T LK EEHB R AT (Shenzhen
Rongcheng Investment Company Limited*). He gained working
experience across different industries such as trading and
property development.
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Mr. Miao Zhibin ("Mr. Miao"”), aged 52, has been re-designated
as a non-executive Director from an executive Director and
resigned as a chief executive officer on 28 December 2020. He
was an executive Director and chief executive Director from 28
December 2018 to 27 December 2020. He was a non-executive
Director from 26 June 2018 to 27 December 2018. Mr. Miao has
been working as the general manager in E/8EEEREREAR
A] (Shanghai Xinzhi Energy Co., Limited*) since 2004. Mr. Miao
is also the legal representative, the chairman and the general
manager of L& AL B EFGEFR AT (Jiangsu Dafeng
Port Hairong Shipping Co., Limited*), an associate of one of
the controlling shareholders of the Company, namely Jiangsu
Dafeng. Mr. Miao graduated from Tsinghua University School
of Information Management System with a bachelor degree in
the PRC in 1992. He later obtained a master degree in business
administration from the University of International Business and
Economics in the PRC in 1995.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang (“Dr. Bian"), aged 55, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director since 15 May 2015.
He had been educated in B ;= B 52 KE (Nanjing University
of Traditional Chinese Medicine*), Jt R E % KEZ (Beijing
University of Traditional Chinese Medicine and Pharmacology*)
and EM A B % KZE (Guangzhou University of Traditional
Chinese Medicine*) and was conferred the Ph.D. degree in
Integrated Chinese and Western Medicine. Currently, Dr. Bian
serves as a director of the clinical division of the School of
Chinese Medicine, and an associate vice-president of the Hong
Kong Baptist University. He has engaged in clinical and basic
research in digestive diseases and involved in publication of
many experimental and clinical researches. He was awarded
a second prize of National Science and Technology Award of
China in 1999.
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Mr. Lau Hon Kee (“Mr. Lau”), BComm, MPA, FCPA, CPA
(Aust.), aged 51, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 31 May 2016. He was the financial
controller and company secretary of IWRZEMEXEERKH
AR A A (Shandong Luoxin Pharmaceutical Group Stock Co.
Ltd*) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code:
8058) until 31 December 2017 and a joint company secretary of
Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 1527) until 31
January 2018. Mr. Lau has been an independent non-executive
director of Astrum Financial Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 8333) since 23
June 2016. Mr. Lau was an independent non-executive director
of Strong Petrochemical Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 852) from November
2008 to January 2012. Mr. Lau obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
commerce from the Australian National University in April 1994
and a master’s degree in professional accounting from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in October 2009. Mr. Lau has been
a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA (Aust.) and a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since 1999. Also, he has been a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
2006 and FCPA of CPA (Aust.) since 2020.

Mr. Yu Xugang (“Mr. Yu"), aged 53, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since 31 May 2016. He
has been acted as an independent non-executive director of
Central China Securities Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 1375) since December 2015. Mr. Yu
has been acted as an independent director of Polaris Bay Group
Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
with stock code: 600155) since December 2016. He was a
partner at Beijing Dentons Law Offices, LLP from August 2001
to December 2003 and has been promoted to a senior partner
at Beijing Dentons Law Offices, LLP since January 2004. Mr. Yu
was an independent director of Da Cheng Fund Management
Company Limited from August 2008 to August 2011. Mr. Yu was
an independent director of Inner Mongolia Baotou Steel Union
Co., Ltd (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with
stock code: 600010), from August 2009 to August 2015, and
an independent director of Hubei Shuangjian Blower Company
Limited (@ company listed on National Equities Exchange and
Quotations with stock code: 833468) from October 2012 to
October 2015. Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from
the China University of Political Science and Law in 1990, a
master’s degree in international economic law from the Peking
University in July 1998 and a doctorate degree in law from the
Peking University in July 2001.
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Mr. Zhang Fangmao (“Mr. Zhang"), formerly named & 75 %,
aged 57, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director since 1 June 2014. He has over 15 years of experience
in import and export businesses in the PRC. Mr. Zhang served
as a manager of the business department in F BZRIIAE & 15 (@
¥HNE 5 (5£8) A 7A] (China Shenzhen Economic Special Zone
Foreign Trade (Group) Corporation*), a state-owned enterprise.
He is a director of #YIMREK EEE AR A F (Shenzhen
AUDE Investment Consulting Co., Ltd.*). Mr. Zhang obtained a
bachelor’s degree in finance from the Shenzhen University.
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The Board herein presents the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in trading
business and the provision of petrochemical products storage
business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in
the section headed "Management Discussion and Analysis” on
page 7 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility,
promoting employee benefits and development, protecting the
environment and giving back to the community and achieving
sustainable growth.

A detailed environmental, social and governance report is set
out in pages 49 to 102 of this report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of
the Company and of the Group as at the date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to 227 of this
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year (2020: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the revenue attributable to the Group’s largest
and the five largest customers accounted for approximately
16.9% and 43.3% (2020: 16.7% and 52.9%) of the total value of
the Group's revenue, respectively.

During the Year, the purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest and the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 15.7% and 54.6% (2020: 52.1% and 85.7%) of the
total value of the Group's purchases, respectively.
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Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their close associates, or any shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of
the Company's issued share capital) had interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There is no change in the share capital of the Company during
the Year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2021 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed

securities.

The Company and its subsidiaries did not redeem, purchase or
cancel any of their redeemable securities either.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company comprised
of share premium account of approximately HK$201.4 million
and accumulated losses amounted to approximately HK$624.0
million. Details of the Company’s distributable reserves as at
31 December 2021 are set out in note 34(a) to the consolidated
financial statements. Movements in reserves of the Group during
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 116 of this report.
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INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest was capitalised by the Group during the Year.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 228 of
this report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Qingfeng (Chairman)

(appointed on 25 February 2022)

Mr. Tao Ying (Chairman)

(resigned on 25 February 2022)

Mr. Chen Wenxiang (resigned on 10 May 2021)
Ms. Leng Panpan (resigned on 12 August 2021)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ji Longtao
Mr. Yang Yue Xia
Mr. Miao Zhibin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang
Mr. Lau Hon Kee
Mr. Yu Xugang

Mr. Zhang Fangmao

Biographical details of the Directors currently in service are set
out on pages 15 to 18 of this report.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles, Mr. Yuan
Qingfeng as an executive Director will hold office until the AGM
and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles, Mr. Ji Longtao
and Mr. Yang Yue Xia as non-executive Directors and Mr. Zhang
Fangmao as an independent non-executive Director will retire
from office by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reelection at the AGM.
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The Company has received from each independent

non-executive director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and

the Board considers them independent.
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company and is subject to termination by either party giving
not less than three months’ prior written notice to the other.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the independent

non-executive Directors) has entered into service contract
with the Company for a fixed term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM in accordance

with the Articles.
DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ remuneration is subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Remuneration Committee with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

During the Year, Mr. Tao Ying has waived his emolument, which
was HK$960,000.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note
10(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees and their emoluments are set
out in note 10(iv) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO")) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME, CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives, recognising and
acknowledging the contributions that eligible persons had made
or may make to the Group. The Scheme was adopted pursuant
to the written resolution passed by the sole shareholder of the
Company on 3 August 2013. The expiry date of the Scheme is 2
August 2023. For further details of the Scheme, please refer to
note 27 the consolidated financial statements. Since the Scheme
came into effect after the Company was listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, no share options have been granted, exercised
or cancelled by the Company under the Scheme and there
were no outstanding share options under the Scheme as at 31
December 2021 and as at the date of this report.

Up to 31 December 2021, the Company and its subsidiaries have
not issued or granted any convertible securities, warrants or
other similar rights.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Capacity/Nature of interests

Name of shareholders

BEREB B EEHE
Dafeng Port Overseas (Note 2) Beneficial owner
RNEBFINFE2) EmHEBA

TERRERZRAEMATRAEQT
BoOREERDZEZR KR

KRB —F+-_A=1t—H BEZHH A
TAL /BB (BEFLAARAEEZTBABRIN
RARBBRMABEBROPHEARBRERES
RIBEEZ M BEERIIEXVEFE2NM37 8K A
RMARBRBZEDIORE » ALAXRFR
BESMHBEGRIEBKAFTES LM E
BIARRWT:

Jiangsu Dafeng (Note 3)
T #R K 2 (B 7E3)

Jiangsu Yancheng (Note 3)

L &k B8 5% (M9 5E3)

B84 T A R BT (the People's
Government of Yancheng
City*) ("PGYC") (Note 3)

B A R BUS
(TEE 3 T A B BUF ) (B 5E3)

Mr. Jiang Wen (Note 4)

=X 5 (K54

Ms. Li Qiu Hua (Note 5)

Interest of controlled corporation
Rt EEER

Interest of controlled corporation

XA DA E s

Interest of controlled corporation

EEGEEE R

Beneficial owner, interest of controlled
corporation and interest of spouse

ERAEBEA XEGDEEEZ KR

=
Beneficial owner and interest of

ERBEAANBEBER

spouse
FIKE & £ (M 525)
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% of the

Company'’s

Number of issued share
Shares held capital
(Note 1) (Approximate)
(NN

sk & B ERTRAEN
(B =E1) B2 (BE4)
740,040,000 (L) 57.46%
740,040,000 (L) 57.46%
740,040,000 (L) 57.46%
740,040,000 (L) 57.46%
75,350,000 (L) 5.85%
75,350,000 (L) 5.85%



Notes:

The letter “L" denotes a long position in the interest in the issued share

capital of the Company.

Dafeng Port Overseas is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, and is owned as to 40% by Jiangsu Dafeng, which in turn
is wholly owned by Jiangsu Yancheng, 40.2% of which is owned by PGYC.

Jiangsu Dafeng, Jiangsu Yancheng and PGYC are deemed to be interested
in the Shares of the Company held by Dafeng Port Overseas under the
SFO.

Mr. Jiang Wen, the director, the general manager and the legal
representative of B/ K#E# XY AR A F (Qianhai Mingtian
Supply Chain (Shenzhen) Company Limited*) (“Qianhai Mingtian”) which
is an indirect subsidiary of the Company, directly and beneficially owns
51,230,000 Shares. Ms. Li Qiu Hua, the spouse of Mr. Jiang Wen, directly
and beneficially owns 10,520,000 Shares. Jing Ji (Holdings) Co., Limited, a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Jiang Wen, directly and beneficially owns
13,600,000 Shares. As such, under the SFO, Mr. Jiang Wen is deemed, or
taken to be, interested in 75,350,000 Shares.

Ms. Li Qiu Hua directly and beneficially owns 10,520,000 Shares. As Mr.
Jiang Wen's spouse, she is, under the SFO, deemed to be, or taken to
be, interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Jiang Wen is

interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors

were

not aware of any other persons or entities (other than

the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had

interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of

the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary
of such ultimate holding company a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of, the Company or any other body corporate, neither the
Directors nor any of their spouses or children under the age of
18 had any right to subscribe for the securities or debt securities
of the Company or had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any of the Company’s directors or an entity connected with a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence during the Year.

EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Financial assistance received by the Group

The details of financial assistance received by the Group from
connected companies are set out in note 24(b) to the financial
statements.

Since the financial assistance received by the Group is provided
on normal commercial terms and is not secured by the assets of
the Group, according to Rule 20.88 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
financial assistance received by the Company was exempt from
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
and the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer Shares on a pro rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float in the issued share capital of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As B K EEEEFHBR AT (Yancheng Dafeng Bi Port Trading
Limited*) (“Dafeng Bi Port”) has ceased its business, Jiangsu
Dafeng, a controlling shareholder of the Company, has a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely )T & &8 35 {4 fE 3 Bl & B
BBRAA (Jiangsu Yancheng Port Supply Chain Technology
Group Co., Ltd*) (“Yancheng Port Supply Chain”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely B M E M A X EE G R
‘A 7] (Yancheng City Gangcheng Commercial Management
Co., Ltd) ("Yancheng Commercial”), and a direct non wholly-
owned subsidiary, namely JTE# W ESOM R ERBR QA
(Jiangsu Yueda Harbour Logistics Development Company
Limited*) (“Yueda Logistics”) which are engaged in trading of
various goods including coals, metal ores, non-metallic ores,
non-ferrous metal, chemical products, non-metal construction
materials, scrap steel and wood. Whereas the Company has
also developed the business of trading of electronic products,
petrochemical products and various other products through
Heshun Trading, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and its subsidiaries, and Qianhai Mingtian and its
subsidiary. Accordingly, the businesses of Jiangsu Dafeng and
its subsidiaries (the “Jiangsu Dafeng Group”) may be construed
as businesses which compete with or are likely to compete with
one of the core principal activities of the Group. The Board
considered that the businesses of the Jiangsu Dafeng Group do
not pose material competitive threat to the Group because the
Group and Jiangsu Dafeng Group have different focuses on the
type of products offered which target at different customers in
the market.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWRE

BrBEERE

AMAUALFEREERLBEBENRARB AR LA
MERERRBEERNZELBEER 2K -

EHABRKERE

REARBASAFENRBEESHAN AR
AR B GEM £ AR A FF AR R B B BT IR
RARNTHRE -

D

HRNERASERBEFAERAA(KEEE])
ERIEREEYR ARRZZEBRRRIHKE
E-HER2EWB QR (BT &8 H e g
MEREEERAR((EREBHER])) F—H
FERE2EMNBAR (AENTERBEERAR
NE|((EEEE]) YA HEEIFZ2ENES
REN(ENI&HGEEO R ERBR AR ([HE
MR ZERAREZRERZIEHET
BERR 2EE FoBE AELE 1
TER FeBREMH BEHLAT - R
BARBMEBEHZRE2ENBRARMIEE S
K BB R A K B G B R I B A R 3 R
BEFEMm ALERMZEEMERZESE
BB THAEREMBAR(DIHKE
SEDZEBARREFERNEERER AKX
LDEBEDBAKAEBNBEF XS - EF
ERA HRASEEIHGASEEMEHRE
mBUEHEMTR  RHELEUTRERL®
B BIHARSEEZEB IS HAKEE
RERNBEFERE -

BEMENEROBRAT 57
2021 FHR



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWRE

Other than Mr. Tao Ying who was the former director of Jiangsu
Dafeng, Yancheng Port Supply Chain, Yueda Logistics and
the Company, there is no overlap in the directorships among
the Company, Jiangsu Dafeng, Yancheng Port Supply Chain,
Yancheng Commercial and Yueda Logistics. The Directors
consider that the Board can operate independently from Jiangsu
Dafeng, because (i) pursuant to the articles of association of
the Company, a Director shall not vote on any board resolution
approving any contract or arrangement or any other proposal
in which such Director or any of his associates has a material
interest nor shall he be counted in the quorum present at the
meeting; and (ii) the Directors are fully aware of their fiduciary
duties owing to the shareholders of the respective companies
and their duty to avoid conflicts to the shareholders of the
respective companies and their duty to avoid conflicts of
interests in carrying out their respective duties as directors of
the relevant companies.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors, controlling shareholders of the Company or their
respective close associates had any interests in a business, which
competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly
with the business of the Group which would be required to be
disclosed under Rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries
to all the Directors, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings and its code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

A detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 30
to 48 of this report.
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AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited acted as the auditor of the Group for the
Year.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
Year were audited by Mazars CPA Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-
appoint Mazars CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Yuan Qingfeng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance. In the opinion of the Directors, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules during the Year. The
Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices
standard, comply with regulatory requirements and meet the

in order to enhance its corporate governance

growing expectations of shareholders and investors.
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
Conduct on share dealings

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has made
specific enquiries to all the Directors who have confirmed their
compliance with the required standard of dealings and the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
throughout the Year. No incident of non-compliance was noted
by the Company during the Year.

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT
Board of directors
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board is comprised of 8
members, including one executive Director, namely, Mr. Yuan
Qingfeng (chairman), three non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Ji Longtao, Mr. Yang Yue Xia and Mr. Miao Zhibin and
four independent non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Bian
Zhaoxiang, Mr. Lau Hon Kee, Mr. Yu Xugang and Mr. Zhang
Fangmao.

The Company has received annual written confirmations from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect
of their independence to the Company in accordance with the
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
believes that their independence is in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules as at the date of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Directors’ training

All Directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as
a Director, and of the conduct and business activities of the
Company. During the Year, the Company had organised a
professional seminar conducted by a professional firm which
provided the Directors with updates on the latest development
and changes in the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements. All Directors including newly
appointed Directors were provided with written training reading
materials.

The Directors were also provided with regular updates on the
Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each of the Directors to discharge their
duties. The secretary of the Company from time to time updated
and provided written training materials to the Directors relating
to the roles, functions and duties of a director.

All Directors confirmed that they have complied with code
provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on directors’ training. During the
Year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by reading materials or attending seminars/
briefing sessions to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training to the Company.
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Board process

The Board met regularly throughout the Year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group. Notice of at least 14 days were
given to all Directors of a regular Board meeting. For all other
Board meetings, reasonable notice were given to all Directors.
The Board delegates necessary powers and authorities to
the executive Directors to facilitate the efficient day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. During the Year, the Board
held 4 scheduled full Board meetings. In addition, executive
Board meetings were convened when necessary to deal with
day-to-day matters that required the Board's prompt decisions,
and therefore usually only executive Directors attended such
meetings. Individual attendance records of full Board meetings
and committees meetings are set out on page 33 of this report.
Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or
material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and
would abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions subject
to certain exceptions set out in the Articles and the matters to
be dealt with by the Board would be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than by a written resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors who have no material interest in the
transaction and their close associates would be entitled to
attend the Board meeting. The secretary of the Company
maintains minutes of the Board meetings and meetings of
Board committees for inspection by the Directors. All Directors
have access to the services of the secretary of the Company
who regularly updates the Board on corporate governance and
regulatory matters. Any Director, audit committee member,
remuneration committee member and nomination committee
member of the Company may seek independent professional
advice at the expense of the Company should they so wish.
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Board and board committee attendance

The following table indicates the number of Board meetings,
committee meetings and general meetings throughout the Year,
and the number of attendance by each of the Directors:

TEERRSE

EZERESZEEHER

TRETRAFENRT L EETEEE L8
2 Eu%&%ﬁiﬁg/’/?%( NREEEZHFER
g

Number of meetings attended/held

Committee

ENZEE

HE/ BT zeH8A
Legal
Audit Remuneration  Nomination ~ Compliance General
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
EREHR
¥Mzee REZEE ZE8 e PN
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Tao Ying ) e 4/4 - - 17 22 0/1
Mr. Chen Wenxiang (Note 1) PR 30 48 4 ([ 75 1) 12 171 17 - 22 -
Ms. Leng Panpan (Note 2) Rzt (HE2) 213 - - - 3/4 2/2
Non-executive Directors FHUTES
Mr. Ji Longtao HRELE 2/4 - - - - 17
Mr. Yang Yue Xia %‘ﬁgﬁi 4/4 - - - 4/4 171
Mr. Miao Zhibin BEWMEE 4/4 - - - - 11
Independent Non-executive BYFHTEE
Directors
Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang ThEEL 4/4 5/6 17N - - 01
Mr. Lau Hon Kee HEELLE 4/4 6/ 0 - - 0
Mr. Yu Xugang TR E 4/4 - - - - 7N
Mr. Zhang Fangmao RAREE 4/4 66 - 17 - 1
Notes: s
1. resigned on 10 May 2021 1. RZE-Z—FRATHBE
2. resigned on 12 August 2021 2. RZEZ—FN\A+TZHEE

Pursuant to code provision C.1.6 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors
should attend general meetings. During the Year, all of
the independent non-executive Directors except Dr.
Zhaoxiang and other non-executive Directors attended the

general meetings of the Company in person or through

Bian

telecommunication.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code, the Chairman
of the Board held a meeting with independent non-executive

Directors without the presence of other Directors on 7 May
2020.
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Directors’ duties

The Board in charge of leadership and supervision on the
Group's affairs and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group. Each Director has a duty to act in good
faith and in the best interests of the Company.

Matters that require decisions by the Board normally include
but not limited to overall Group strategies, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual and interim results, recommendation on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors, and other
significant operational and financial matters. The Directors are
kept up-to-date by monthly management information on a
timely basis as well as on major changes that may affect the
Group's businesses, including relevant rules and regulations.
The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
financial statements and have them audited on an annual basis.
The Company has adopted the generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong in preparing financial statements.
Reasonable and prudent judgement and estimates have been
made. The Group announces its financial results on a timely
basis.

Senior management’s duties

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the senior management of the
Company which include evaluating business and operational
performances, ensuring effective implementation of the
Board'’s decisions, ensuring adequate funding and monitoring
performance of the management of the Group. The senior
management of the Company is being closely monitored by the
Board and is accountable for the performance of the Company
as measured against the business targets and management
directions set by the Board. The senior management of the
Company and the management of the relevant subsidiaries met
together on regular basis to review and discuss operational
and financial matters in order to enhance and strengthen
internal communications and cooperation within the Group. The
delegated functions and work tasks were periodically reviewed.

Indemnification of directors and officers

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, directors
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or
elsewhere in relation thereto, provided that its provisions are
not avoided by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Such
provisions were in force during the Year and remained in force
as of the date of this report.
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the role of
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

During the Year, Mr. Tao Ying was the chairman of the Board and
an executive Director and was responsible for overall strategic
planning, development, decision making and management of
senior executives of the Group. Mr. Tao Ying, as chairman of
the Board, was responsible for providing leadership to the
Board, monitoring Board effectiveness, fostering constructive
relationships among Directors. Mr. Tao Ying was also
responsible for taking the primary responsibility for ensuring
that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established.

Mr. Tao Ying resigned as an executive Director, chairman of
the Board and compliance officer on 25 February 2022 due to
the reaching of his age of retirement. Upon his resignation, he
ceased to act as the Authorised Representative, the chairman
of the legal compliance committee and nomination committee
and a member to the remuneration committee of the Company.

In place of Mr. Tao Ying in respect to all the posts previously
held, Mr. Yuan Qingfeng was appointed as an executive
Director, chairman of the Board, compliance officer, Authorised
Representative, the chairman of the Legal Compliance
Committee and Nomination Committee and a member to the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 25 February 2022.

The Company has not appointed any chief executive officer
during the Year. The daily operations and management of the
Company is monitored by the executive Director and the senior
management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has received appropriate delegation of its functions
and powers and has established appropriate Board committees,
with specific written terms of reference in order to manage and
monitor specific aspects of the Group's affairs. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange and are available to
the shareholders of the Company upon request. The Board and
the Board committees are provided with all necessary resources
including the advice of external auditor, external legal advisers
and other independent professional advisors as needed.

In relation to the Board’s corporate governance functions, the
Board has determined the policy of the corporate governance
of the Company and has performed its duties by firstly,
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance; secondly, reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; thirdly, developing and monitoring
the codes of conduct applicable to the Directors and employees
of the Company; fourthly, reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report, and lastly, receiving and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors.

The Board has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
(the

Committee”) and a legal compliance committee (the “Legal

Committee”), a nomination committee “Nomination
Compliance Committee”) with defined terms of reference. The
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee are chaired
by independent non-executive Directors, the Nomination
Committee and the Legal Compliance Committee are chaired

by the chairman of the Board.
(@) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 3 August 2013
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules
5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision
D.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit Committee is currently
comprised of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lau Hon Kee (chairman), Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang
and Mr. Zhang Fangmao. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of the external auditor,
review the financial statements and related materials and
provide advice in respect of the financial reporting process
and oversee the financial reporting system, the internal
control and risk management system of the Group.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
quarterly, interim and annual results of the Group and
reviewed, with both the auditor and management, the
audit approach and methodology applies, and in particular
to those key audit matters included in the annual auditor’s
report. The Audit Committee also reviewed the internal
control procedures of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions as well as the findings reports from the internal
audit department of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on
3 August 2013 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee is currently comprised
of one executive Director, Mr. Yuan Qingfeng, and two
independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang
(chairman) and Mr. Lau Hon Kee. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to our Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to the Directors and senior management
of our Group, review and evaluate their performance in
order to make recommendations on the remuneration
package of each of the Directors and members of the
senior management as well as other employee benefit
arrangements.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee determined
the policy for the remuneration of the Directors, assessed
performance of the Directors and approved the terms
of the Directors’ service contracts. The Remuneration
Committee also reviewed, confirmed and recommended
to the Board the remuneration package of each of the
Directors and senior management of the Company.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee was established on 3 August

2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision B.3.1 of the CG Code. The Nomination

Committee is currently comprised of one executive
Director, Mr. Yuan Qingfeng (chairman) and two
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lau Hon

Kee and Mr. Zhang Fangmao. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are to nominate potential
candidates for directorship, review the nomination of
Directors, make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors and assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company had adopted the board diversity policy in
accordance with the requirements as set out in the CG
Code. The Board recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition
to educational background, professional experience, skill,

knowledge and length of service.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and
skills, including knowledge and experience in the
areas of trading business and petrochemical products
storage business, auditing and accounting, business
administration. The Directors range from 36 years old to
57 years old, but only comprise males currently. Although
there is currently no female director on the board, we are
aware of gender diversity and we fully welcome female
members to the Board. We aim to achieve the balancing

objective in the short coming future.

The Company is also committed to adopting a similar
approach to promote diversity of the management
(including but not limited to the senior management) and
employees to enhance the effectiveness of corporate

governance.

The Nomination Committee will take opportunity to
increase the female members over time when selecting
and making recommendation on suitable candidates for

Board appointments.

The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the
implementation of the Board diversity policy, to ensure the
effectiveness of the Board diversity policy and discuss any
revision that may be required and recommend any such

revision to the Board for consideration and approval.
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Measurable Objectives: The Company aims to maintain
an appropriate balance of diverse perspectives that are
relevant to the Company’s business growth. The Company
is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and
selection practices at all levels (from the Board downwards)
are appropriately structured so that a diverse range of
candidates are considered. The Nomination Committee
will discuss periodically and when necessary, agree on the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity, including
gender diversity, on the Board and recommend them
to the Board for adoption. In particular, the Nomination
Committee will identify and make recommendations to
the Board to implement programmes that will assist in the
development of a broader and more diverse pool of skilled
and experienced employees that, in time, will prepare
them for Board positions. At present, the Board has not
set any measurable objectives.

Nomination Policy

When making recommendations regarding the
appointment of any proposed candidate(s) to the Board
or re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board
based on the Board diversity policy, the Articles and
other appropriate rules and regulations, the Nomination
Committee shall consider a variety of factors including
without limitation the followings in assessing the suitability
of the proposed candidate:

(i)  Reputation for integrity;

(i) Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the
relevant industry and other relevant sectors;

(i)  Commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest
and attention to the Company’s business;

(iv)  Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
experience (professional or otherwise), skills and
knowledge;

(v)  The ability to assist and support management and
make significant contributions to the Company's
success;

(vi)  Compliance with the criteria of independence as
prescribed under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules for the appointment of an independent non-
executive Director; and

(vii) Any other relevant factors as may be determined by
the Nomination Committee or the Board from time
to time.
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Procedures for Nominating Director

Procedures for the appointment of any proposed
candidate(s) to the Board or re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board are as follows:

(i) The secretary of the Nomination Committee
shall invite nominations of candidate(s) from
Board members (if any), for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also nominate candidates for its consideration.

(i) In the context of appointment of any proposed
candidate(s) to the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of such individual and make
recommendations for the Board'’s consideration and
approval.

(i) In the context of re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board for
its consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election at a
general meeting.

(iv) The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at a general meeting.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during
the Year included:

(i)  to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;

(i) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed change to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships;

(iv) to review the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee; and

(v) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
Board’s structure, number of members and composition
taking into account the Board diversity policy and formed
the view that the Board has maintained an appropriate mix
and balance of skills, knowledge, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the business
requirements of the Company.

Legal Compliance Committee

The Legal Compliance Committee was established
on 30 April 2013, which is mainly responsible for the
Group's internal control matters and to ensure the proper
compliance of the laws and regulations relevant to the
Group's operations as well as the adequacy and the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control measures.

The members of the Legal Compliance Committee
currently comprises one executive Director, Mr. Yuan
Qingfeng (chairman), one non-executive Director Mr. Yang
Yue Xia, the secretary of the Company, Ms. Xu Jing, and

an executive of the Company, Ms. Xu Qi.

The Legal Compliance Committee also assists the Board
in overseeing the Group's corporate governance functions
which include but not limited to the followings:

(i) to develop and review the Group's policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board on a quarterly basis;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

(i) to review and monitor the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to the Directors
and employees of the Group; and

(v)  to review the Group's compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in the corporate governance report.
During the Year, the Legal Compliance Committee
held four meetings to review the internal control and
compliance matters and the findings of which were
reported to the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Board is committed to providing a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the financial performance and
prospects of the Group in all the disclosures made to the
shareholders of the Company and the regulatory authorities.

Timely release of quarterly, interim and annual results
announcements reflects the Board’s commitment to providing
transparent and up-to-date disclosures of the Group’s
performance.

The Board, assisted by the Audit Committee, oversees the
financial reporting process and the quality of the financial
reporting of the Group. The Audit Committee reviews and
monitors the integrity of the Group's quarterly, interim and
annual financial statements. It also reviews the appropriateness
of the Group's accounting policies and the changes to these
policies as well as ensuring these financial statements to comply
with accounting standards and regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the accounts of the Company and the external auditor
acknowledges its responsibilities in respect of financial
reporting which are set out in the independent auditor’s report
on page 103 of this report.

External Auditor

The Audit Committee recommends the re-appointments of
Mazars CPA Limited as the auditor of the Group and the Board
has adopted such recommendation.

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor,
Mazars CPA Limited, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services provided by the auditors of the Company are as follows:

Category of services

R 3% & |

Audit services

ERRE

Audit fee for the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021

Non-audit services

H Al AR 7%

Other services
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and maintaining
sound systems of risk management and internal control and
also reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard interests of the
shareholders, customers, employees, and the Group's assets.
However, such systems are designed to manage the Group's
risks within an acceptable risk profile, rather than to eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of the Group,
and can only provide reasonable assurance and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group and this process includes enhancing the systems of risk
management and internal control from time to time in response
to the changes to the business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

The Board always regards risk management and internal
control process as an important task and believes that effective
corporate risk management and internal control process is an
essential element of good corporate governance. The Legal
Compliance Committee and the Audit Committee have been
established by the Board, which are responsible for monitoring
and reviewing the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group.

Detailed procedures for our shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available on the Company’s
website.

During the Year, the Company’'s internal audit department
has carried out review on the internal control system and risk
management system of the Group. The review involves all
material monitoring aspects, including but not limited to finance,
operation, compliance and risk management. The internal audit
team has conducted analysis and assessment on the adequacy
and the effectiveness of the internal control system and risk
management of the Group, and has submitted the findings and
rectification measures to the Audit Committee and the Board.
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Risk Management
Control environment

The Group believes that risk management is the responsibility
of everyone within the Group. It aims to develop risk awareness
and control responsibility as our culture and the foundation of
our internal control system. The internal control system applies
to the Group's critical business processes including strategy
development, business planning, investment decisions, capital
allocation and day-to-day operations.

The Group also believes that corporate governance is often
associated with business ethics. In order to ensure the
Company's reputation be enhanced by the honest, loyal and
ethical behaviours of its staff, the Group has formulated a
formal staff code and whistleblowing policy. Furthermore, the
Group has from time to time arranged different levels of staff,
ranging from top management to front-line staff, to participate
in a series of business ethics seminars conducted by the
Independent Commission Against Corruption, reputed lecturers
or internal audit functions of the Company and the Group in
order to enhance the staff's recognition and commitment to the
staff code.

Management has also conducted annual self-check to see
whether the rules and guidelines specified in the staff code
have been properly adhered to, and the respective written
declarations have been documented and reported to the Audit
Committee.

Control activities
The Group's control activities have been built on regular top-
level reviews, segregation of duties and physical controls.

Currently, the key features of the internal control system include:

o the design of an organisational structure with defined lines
of responsibility and delegation of authority;

J the setup and adherence of authorisation and approval
limits of the Company and each business unit;

o the establishment of policies and procedures to support
deployment of management'’s directives; and

o the systems and procedures to identify and mitigate risks
on an ongoing basis.
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Major operational risk factors and measures

The Group seeks to have risk management features embedded
in the day-to-day operations. At the beginning of each year, the
Group conducted a risk assessment on the existing or potential
risks that may impact the achievement of business objectives
over the course of business operation. The assessment includes
potential likelihood and impact of the identified risks. For the
risks identified, the Group determined the action plans and
management targets. The management of each business unit
of the Group is responsible for managing their respective day-
to-day operating risks, and implementing measures to mitigate
such risks.

Corporate affairs department monitors the implementation of
risk management, and continuously reviews and assesses the
efficiency and adequacy of action plans on a regular basis. Such
assessment results will be regularly communicated and reported
to the Legal Compliance Committee and the Board.

During the Year, the Legal Compliance Committee and the
Board were not aware of any unexpected adverse changes that
were significant to the risks related to the Group’s businesses.

Internal Control

The Board recognises the overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance, and review of an internal control
system that provides reasonable assurance of the reliability and
integrity of financial and operational information, effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, the safeguarding of assets
and the compliance with laws and regulations and reviews
the internal control system annually. This system of internal
control is designed to manage rather than eliminate all risks
of failure where its goal is to provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance regarding the achievement of organisational
objectives.

The Company has an internal audit function to perform the
review on the internal control system of the Group (including
and compliance controls and risk

financial, operational

management functions).

The Audit Committee comprising three independent non-
executive Directors, which will retain overall responsibility for the
internal control matters of the Group and assess the robustness
of our regulatory compliance procedures and system reviewed
by the Legal Compliance Committee to ensure, among other
things, that the Group fully complies with all applicable laws
In addition, the
Audit Committee will make recommendations to the Board for

and regulations relevant to our operations.

the improvement of our regulatory compliance procedures and
system as is necessary.
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The Board conducted a review of the internal control system of
the Group for the Year. Having reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control system through the Audit Committee,
the Legal Compliance Committee and the external auditor,
which covers all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance control and risk management functions, the
Board is satisfied that such system is effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary plays an important role in supporting
the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and the Board committees. The company secretary advises
the Board on corporate governance matters and facilitates
the induction and professional development of Directors. The
company secretary also attends and ensures that all Board and
Board committees meetings are properly convened, and that
accurate and proper record of the proceeding and resolutions
passed are taken and maintained. The Board approves the
selection, appointment or dismissal of the company secretary.
The company secretary reports to the chairman of the Board
and/or the chief executives of the Company. All Directors
have direct access to the advice and services of the company
secretary.

As at the end of 31 December 2021, Ms. Xu Jing is the company
secretary and employee of the Company. During the Year, Ms.
Xu Jing has confirmed that she has taken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Articles, shareholders should follow Article 58 of
the Articles to propose new resolutions at the general meetings.
Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, general meetings shall be
convened by any one or more members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty one (21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Dividend Policy

The Company may consider the declaring and paying dividends
to the shareholders of the Company provided that the Group
records profits and that the declaration and payment of
dividends does not affect the normal operations of the Group.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter
alia:

the general financial condition of the Group;
ii. capital and debt level of the Group;

iii.  future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development
needs;

iv.  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

V. the general market conditions; and
vi.  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board of the Company by addressing them to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1009,
Exchange Tower, 33 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,
Hong Kong by post for the attention of the secretary of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with our
shareholders is essential for ensuring that they are provided
with timely access to important information about the Company,
including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, governance and risk profile, in order to
enable them to exercise their rights in an informed manner.

General meetings of the Company provide the best opportunity
for exchange of views between the Board and our shareholders
by maintaining an on-going dialogue with our shareholders.

J Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote on their
behalf if they are unable to attend.
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J The process of general meetings will be monitored and
reviewed by the Board on a continuous and regular
basis to ensure that shareholders’ needs are best served
and, if necessary, changes will be made to safeguard
shareholders’ interests.

J The chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees will attend general
meetings to answer shareholders’ questions. The chairman
of the independent board committee or, in his absence,
other members of the independent board committee, will
also be available to answer shareholders’ questions at
general meetings convened for the approval of connected
transactions or any other transactions that are subject to
independent shareholders’ approval.

o The Board will ensure appropriate arrangement is in
place to encourage shareholders’ participation in general
meetings.

In an effort to enhance communications with shareholders

and investors, the Company maintains a website
(www.dfport.com.hk) to disseminate information relating to
the Company’s information such as announcements, circulars,
financial statements and notices of general meetings. The
Company regards the AGM as an important event as it provides
direct communication between the Board and its shareholders.
All shareholders of the Company are given at least a minimum
of 20 clear business days notice of the date and venue of the
AGM at which time the Directors and committee members are

available to answer questions on the business.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the Year, there had been no change in the Company’s
constitutional document.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report is the fifth annual environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") report issued by Dafeng Port Heshun
Technology Company Limited (“the Company”, “"we") for the
period covering 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the
"Reporting Period”). This report comprehensively explains the
Company's environmental, social and corporate governance
performance and management policy in 2021, focusing on

matters of concern of stakeholders.

In the process of writing this report, we strive to include the
information in the report that meets the requirements of the
Stock Exchange for the principles of materiality, quantification
and consistency. We will continue to strengthen the collection
of information to enhance our performance and disclosure on
sustainable development issues.

SCOPE OF THE REPORT
The policy document, declaration and data set out in this
report cover the Company and all its subsidiaries involved in
production. Other subsidiaries in trade and other aspects are

not covered in this report because the ESG risks involved are
not material.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This report is principally prepared with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out
in Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Those aspects and
content of general disclosure defined in the ESG Reporting
Guide which are considered to be relevant and material to the
Group's businesses and operations will be presented under the
four subject areas, namely: Environmental,

Labour, Operational Practices and Community.

Employment and

This report is determined according to a set of systematic
procedures which includes identifying and ranking major
stakeholders and ESG-related issues, defining the extent of
information covered in this ESG report, collecting relevant
materials and data, preparing data based on the collected

information, and examining the data in this report.
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DATA AND RELIABILITY STATEMENT

The disclosures in this report are mainly extracted from the
Company'’s statistical reports and relevant documents and the
Company undertakes that this report does not contain any false
information or misleading statement, and takes charge of the
responsibility for the contents of this report as to its authenticity,
accuracy and completeness.

The Board and senior management team of the Company have
proceeded with this report to ensure that there are no false
information, misleading statements or major omissions in the
contents of this report.

This report is approved and authorised for issue by the Board
of the Company on 24 March 2022.

ACCESS AND FEEDBACK TO THIS REPORT

This report will be obtained at the Stock Exchange's website
(www.hkexnews.hk) or the Company’'s official website
(www.dfport.com.hk). The Company believes that effective
communication with our shareholders is essential for ensuring
that they are provided with timely access to important
information about the Company, including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments,
governance and risk profile, in order to enable them to exercise

their rights in an informed manner.
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Statement of the Board

To better integrate the sustainable development strategy into
the Company's governance, the ESG working group under
the Board of Directors takes the lead in taking charge of
sustainable development-related matters and comprehensively
supervises sustainable development-related work. The ESG
working group is mainly responsible for guiding the formulation
of strategies, goals and management guidelines of sustainable
development, coordinating the resources required for
sustainable development goals, focusing on the implementation
of sustainable development strategic goals, reviewing the
implementation progress of sustainable development-related
goals, supervising the sustainable development activities,
and submitting the annual sustainability report to the Board
of Directors for approval after reviewing such report. All
departments and related divisions of subsidiaries assist the ESG
working group to implement sustainable development-related
work, including organizing research on policies, regulations
and standards related to sustainable development reporting,
and formulating the management system of sustainable
development, and regularly report the work progress and results
to the ESG working group, and then the ESG working group
presents an annual report to the Board of Directors, so as to
improve the top-down communication system. Meanwhile, the
Board of Directors, as the chief decision-making body, reviews
and authorizes the sustainable development strategies and
guidelines formulated by the ESG working group, and the ESG
group further provides guidance, supervision and assessment
to all departments and relevant departments of subsidiaries,
forming a top-down supervision and guidance mechanism.
We organize a third party to conduct internal and external
audits each year, so as to continuously improve the sustainable
development governance system of the Company. We also
regularly review international sustainability trends and compare
with those standards in the industry to continuously improve our
sustainability performance.
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We attach great importance to the expectations and concerns
of our stakeholders, regularly hold internal and external activities
to communicate closely with our stakeholders, identify and
evaluate important ESG issues, and discuss and review them at
board meetings. Based on the external macro environment and
our development strategies, the Board of Directors discusses
and determines the risks and opportunities in environmental,
social and corporate governance, and makes decisions on annual
ESG management work and projects. During the Reporting
Period, we identified the risks and opportunities arising from
climate change on the Company's future operations, assessed
the relevance and impact of such risks and opportunities,
and formulated the corresponding measures. Besides, we set
environmental-related goals and actively carried out various
green and low-carbon actions in response to the national
strategy of “carbon neutrality and carbon peaking”. We will
monitor and review the achievement of our future goals, and
constantly adjust and expand our investment in sustainable
development based on the domestic and international trends of
sustainable development.
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Sustainable Development Governance
Structure of Dafeng Port Heshun Technology
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HERERRSE

CHAPTER ONE RESPONSIBILITY
GOVERNANCE

The principal businesses of the Company include the trading
and import and export businesses of electronic products,
petrochemical products and other products, and the storage
services for petrochemical products.

In order to better identify and manage the ESG risks related
to the diversified businesses of the Company, the Company
established an ESG working group led by the general manager
office to jointly carry out the ESG management together
with the safety management committee and other relevant
key departments of the Company. The ESG working group
is responsible to communicate with the stakeholders of the
Company, identify and evaluate the ESG risks in relation to the
Company's operations, collect and analyze the Company’s ESG
information, and report important ESG matters to the Board on
a regular basis.
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ESG Decision-makers
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matters

The Board is responsible for the review and decision-making of important ESG
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ESG Management
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ESG Executives
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The ESG working group led by the general manager office and formed by people
in charge of every department is responsible for the ESG management
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The departments of the Company and relevant departments of its subsidiaries
perform the ESG work in accordance with the requirements of the Management
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Company adheres to observe laws and regulations
under the stable, prudent and effective supervision
governance structure and strictly complies with various
laws and regulations including the Company Law of the
People’'s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery, Law of the
People’s Republic of China on State-Owned Assets in
Enterprises and Law of the People’s Republic of China
Against Unfair Competition by establishing the Anti-
malpractice Management System, the Internal Control
System and other management systems on business ethics,
and continuously improves guidelines including the Staff
Code of Conduct, which clarify the staff’s responsibilities
and obligations in the Company’s operations, provide staff
with a clear code of professional conduct and strengthen
the clean-fingered atmosphere of the Company, with an
aim to create long-term stable returns for shareholders.

To implement the Internal Control System and various
effective internal control systems, the Company evaluates
and improves the internal control by formulating
annual internal audit plan to conduct relevant audit
work. Meanwhile, the Company strengthened the
implementation of its anti-corruption related systems by
continuing to provide trainings on business ethics, so as

to ensure the operational compliance of the Company.

1.1

R #HERERBRE

2.

NEBREERETE %ﬁ&ﬁ)& E’\J
ERRETEETEAGR  RalkigE
(hEARH fD!’D\ET%W@PEE/\E/#*D
BRESHEEE(REARLME 5
HEEEEINPEARANBER TNEEH
FEYEEREER  ERFREHIE TR
GREBEHENAESE)EmEEER
BEESE UHETEeFE(EITAD
FAMESEEER  BREIEARLER
HMETERER  AETIRHEPEARZE
TAEER - BERLEARREZNBESR
CTHOARRAERBEEHEE -

FEER
ZN

;%T*@#mm% HE) FEBRHNA
BIEHR R ARBBYEFEANIER
8 FRMAEESTIE  HRMEGE

TRGERNE RN AABRBHER
Ho R RB Y RIC D R B BAR
HENEEEE  RETEAREE -

Sustainable development practice: subsidiaries strengthened the contract management
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In 2021, the Company further promoted legal construction and strengthened contract management,

requiring all subsidiaries to engrave special seals for contractual uses and requiring such seals to be
managed by legal officers. We collected and maintained archive paper contracts in a centralized manner
each month, and simultaneously entered the corresponding information into the Registration Form for

Contract Performance Information to continuously track contract development and control legal risks.
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1.2

56

In addition, the Company has established a system
for reporting violations and a system for protecting
whistleblowers. Under the guideline of the basic principle
of “Implementing penalty and prevention simultaneously
and focusing on prevention (%[5 28 - & /£ T8 [ )"
and “Protecting whistleblowers and avoidance while
investigation (R FRIR# - FHE D E)", the internal control
audit department of the Company has set up channels
of reporting through writing, telephone and e-mail, etc.
to encourage employees to report malpractice once
corruption is found. In order to protect the rights and
interests of the whistleblowers, the Company promises
to keep the whistleblowers’ information confidential
according to the relevant management systems, carry out
timely investigation and verification based on the reported
information, and strictly prohibit the alleged wrongdoers
from retaliating. If there is any retaliation, the Company
will punish the wrongdoers according to the Company's
relevant systems or transfer the case to the judicial
authority for handling.

During the Reporting Period, there was no settled or
pending legal proceeding against the Company and
our employees in relation to corruption and no breach
of relevant national and local anti-corruption laws were

identified.
Communication with the Stakeholders

The sustainable development of the Company is closely
related to various stakeholders. On the one hand, as a
member of the industry’s industrial chain and a member
of the society, stakeholders can directly influence the
enterprise through their decision-making and behavior,
and we also can respond in a timely manner by
understanding the needs of stakeholders. On the other
hand, through the products and services we provide, we
have a direct and indirect impact on various stakeholders.
In the course of the Company’s operations, the effective
participation of stakeholders can help the Company
correctly assess the impact of our decisions, adjust the
direction of action in a timely manner, and ultimately
achieve sustainable development for both the Company
and its stakeholders.
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1.3 Materiality Analysis

58

concern on and
expectation of the Company's ESG management in a
timely manner, we conducted questionnaire surveys on

In order to understand stakeholders’

major stakeholders such as government and regulatory

agencies, shareholders and investors, customers,
employees, suppliers, media, and communities, and
carried out materiality analysis based on global sustainable
and
corporate development strategic plans, which will serve as
the basis for the ESG information disclosure for this year
and will also become the premise of the Company’s ESG
working group on the management of related ESG issues

by the Company in the future.

development trends, national macro policies,
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Materiality Analysis of ESG Report 2021 of Dafeng Port
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List of major ESG issues of Dafeng Port in 2021

AREB T - —FESGEEZ BN R

No. Issues
55 =
2 Investing resources to reduce pollution emissions
BWABRBDSEENRE
3 Treating and disposing waste
BEEYRIBEEE
1 Meeting the relevant standards in terms of pollution discharge
75 2~ Bk i B AR B AR 2
6 Managing and controlling potential environmental risks in warehouse
operation (such as chemical leakage, explosions, etc.)
EEERELNETFAEMNRSERE R(IMIEEMRE BESEH)
1 Staff training and development
BT HIIHEERE
13 Construction of production safety system
TEEEBRER
21 Risk management
Highly important issues e s
SEEZER
19 Business ethics
EESEE
14 Quality of products and services
EmkREEE
22 Anti-corruption
RES
16 Supply chain management
HEHEIE
20 Compliance operation
BHRKE
7 Climate change
RiEZ 1k
15 Information security and privacy protection
CRR2MBALEE
10 Occupational health and safety
BEERELSR
18 Cooperate governance
NEAE
4 Rational use of water resources
AEFAKER
Moderately 5 Energy conservation
Important issues 5 4 58 B
FEEZE&E neEEa
8 Legal and compliant employment
BEEHRATI
12 Employee care (such as enriching employees’ lives, etc.)
BITHAE(WMESEIAES
9 Protection of employees’ rights
RIEES T#E =
Low important issues 17 Community investment and charity

BEEEHAE

MR E =N
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CHAPTER TWO GREEN DEVELOPMENT

Good ecological environment is the foundation of human
survival and health. The Company actively responds to policy
guidance, values ecological environmental protection and
emphasizes green and low-carbon development. With sticking
to an accountability system for environmental goals, the
Company has established an environmental protection leading
group led by the safety and environmental management
department in major production business units, implemented
approaches, policies and
protection of the national and local governments consistently,

regulations on environmental

developed plans and objectives as well as annual work plan
for environmental protection, and in charge of monitoring and
managing work of environmental protection of the Company. In
2021, each of the Company's production business units, under
the supervision of the environmental protection leading group,
established and improved environmental management systems
and regulations, including Environmental Management Systems
and Measures and Environmental Protection Accountability
System, actively adopted pollutant treatment technology to
reduce emissions, and proactively investigated environmental
risks associated with the operation process to strive to reduce
the impact on the ecological environment around the port.

Environmental emergency management

In order to prevent environmental pollution and improve
environmental risk management, the Company continuously
improves the operation and management of its environmental
protection facilities, requiring the facilities to be monitored by
specialists to operate in accordance with operation procedures
and prepare operational records. For the purpose of controlling
the occurrence of potential accidents or emergencies, each of
the Company’'s production business units has formulated the
Emergency Management System as its emergency preparedness
and response, which stipulates the departments discharging
pollutants. When a pollution accident or other unexpected event
is likely to occur or has occurred, they shall take immediate
emergency measures to prevent accidents, control pollution
from spreading, as well as reduce and eliminate the impacts
of the incident. Within 2 hours after the occurrence of a major
accident or an unexpected event, it shall be reported to the
Company's environmental protection department and be
investigated and handled.

60 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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Environmental Objective Management REBEERE
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Combined with the direction of external policies and the
industry development trends, and based on its own business
and the future development plans, the Company has formulated
environmental goals in four dimensions, including emission
reduction, energy conservation, water conservation, and waste
reduction, and clarified the realization path and core practices.
Besides, we decompose and refine the target tasks to various
departments and related divisions of subsidiaries, promote the
development and implementation of relevant measures, and

strengthen the follow-up and feedback on the progress of the

realization of the goals.

Emissions

B @R E

Target:
B

Gradually establish a carbon
emission management system
and strive to reduce carbon
emissions year by year
BERIRFREERE -
NFERFHREZFRE

Energy efficiency

RETR 8 A ek 75

Target:
B :

Strengthen the management
of energy consumption in the
production and improve the
energy efficiency
MR EEBRBIERREEER -
TRTHRERGE A=

Water efficiency

KT H
Target:
Big:
Increase  investment in

water-saving processes and
technologies to improve
water efficiency

IR &K TE K&Kl #) %
A R AR

Waste reduction

B H

Target:
B :

Optimize the waste
management level and
reduce the discharge of
wastes
BILEEWEE KT - BIE
R

Core initiatives:

RO

Adopt secondary sealing
measures for floating roof
tanks

R TRRER A IR E R

Install the breather valve
baffle on the top of the tanks
M R TE 22 2R I R R P AR

Strengthen the inspection of
the accessories, and regularly
inspect flame arresters, liquid
oil seals, oil measuring holes,
etc. to ensure that the air
tightness meets the
requirements

HsR S RN IR - HiFR
ANER - hE - 2R EER
BEMIRE LTS ER

Fill the tanks to the allowable
level to reduce losses

e e B 2R = A RTARE A
MAEK

Carry out low-carbon related
publicity and training for
employees
HETIRREREHENEE
3w

Core initiatives:

BnEE

Gradually phase out
equipment and facilities with
high energy consumption,
and strengthen energy-saving
technological transformation
BELEBAABEFBHORER
B IR EFRERAER

Reasonably  adjust  the
nitrogen valve pressure to
reduce the waste of nitrogen
SEAHARBES - B
ARHPRE

Strengthen the publicity
and implementation  of

energy-saving ~ awareness
among employees, and
reduce the permanent

lights and avoid running air
conditioners in the absence
of employees
MEHETHEHEERE
B RS RARE  BAZEA
SERERR

Core initiatives:

RS

Standardize oil tank cleaning,
reasonably extend the oil
tank cleaning period, and
use clean and efficient oll
remover to reduce water
discharge

MIEBEREL  fBRER
B ER - RABRS
BEME A - R AIE K

=8

Improve secondary utilization
of clean water

REERAKE R %

Reasonably control the water
consumption of equipment
cooling

BEEHIRELAKEE

Strengthen the publicity
and implementation  of
water-saving awareness
among employees, and
eliminate the phenomenon
of keeping water running
for a long time from the
source

MEHETME KBRS
& ORBELEBRIKEAR

Core initiatives:

RNEEE

Increase the equipment
management, reduce the
phenomenon of oil tanks
running, dripping and
leaking, and reduce the
quantity and probability of
hazardous wastes

MARREEEHE B>
w5 % RRKR BE

fERREMEL N BEMAR
Strengthen internal and

external publicity on waste
reduction

InsEE MESNORBES [

Actively explore the
technological transformation
of waste reduction and
improve the management of
waste disposal
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ERA®ME

Emission Reduction

The main pollutants involved in the operation of the
Company include wastewater generated from warehousing
wash tank, Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) and
solid waste in the process of operation. In order to
actively control the impact on the surrounding ecological
environment, the Company strictly abides by relevant
national ecological environment laws and regulations,
such as the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China,

China on Environment Impact Assessment, Law of the

Law of the People's Republic of

People’'s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution, Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution,
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste,
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution and
the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China, as well as the relevant national and
local policies. The Company earnestly implements the
Environment Management System and Measures and the
Environmental Protection Accountability System of the
Company, and accordingly establishes and improves the
relevant regulations and norms of emission management.
The Company formulated the management regulations
including the Hazardous Waste Management Regulations,
Hazardous Waste Management Pollution Prevention
and Control Responsibility System for various types
of waste, and strictly implement the corresponding
emission monitoring requirements. The leading group
of the Company’s environmental protection organization
directs each subordinate unit to formulate their respective
pollution source governance plan and the annual
governance plan. Subject to reviewing by the Company,
such plans will be included in the annual plan. The
Company will seriously organize to implement such plans,
achieving one item of governance, one item of acceptance

and one item of operation.

During the Reporting Period, the Company was strictly
in compliance with the relevant laws and regulation on

ecological environment and no illegal emissions occurred.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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Exhaust Gas Emission Management

According to the requirements of the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution, the Company strictly manages
atmospheric pollutants to ensure that emissions
meet relevant standards, and continuously reduces
the emissions of air pollutants and their impact on
environment through measures such as source control and
processing improvement.

In order to control the possible VOCs leaks in the storage
process and in strict compliance with relevant national
and be local laws and regulations, the Company carries
out VOCs pollution prevention and control according
to the Technical Policy on Volatile Organic Compounds
(VOCs) Pollution Prevention and Control. During the
Reporting Period, the Company engaged a qualified
third-party agency to conduct comprehensive inspection
for the uncontrolled exhaust gas in the park according
to the Standard Operating Procedures and Technical
Specifications for VOCs Non-Leakage Detection. Through
the inspection and re-inspection on uncontrolled
emission points of storage tanks, the results were both in
compliance with the national and local emission standards
and a qualification report was issued. In addition, the
Company also engaged a third-party detection agency
to conduct leak detection and repair by detecting nearly
1,700 sealed points in the tank yard so as to make all
round investigation for the environmental risk in the
storage process. It turned out that the Company can well
manage and control the VOCs leak risk with a good sealed
petrochemical storage and transportation pipeline.

To further control VOCs emissions in the process of oil
loading and unloading, we implemented the following
measures:

o strengthen the maintenance of equipment and
facilities, and conduct high-frequency inspections on
the equipment, such as entrusting a third party to
perform Leak Detection and Repair (LDAR) testing
on the equipment to prevent the case of “leakage”;

o put into use the oil vapor recovery unit to recover
the volatilized oil vapor from the storage tank, with
a recovery efficiency of 95%;
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J bottom filling, a safer and more environmentally o
friendly method, instead of top filling, is adopted for
tank car filling on the loading platform. Meanwhile,
the gas generated during the filling process is
collected and connected to the oil and gas recovery
device;

o put into use the nitrogen storage facility of the o
storage tank to reduce the unorganized volatilization
of VOCs in the pipeline;

o cool down the tank body by spraying water in o
summer and reduce the volatility of the storage
medium in the tank, thereby reducing the exhaust
gas generated by the volatilization of the medium;

J recalibrate nitrogen valves to reduce oil and gas J
emissions through nitrogen sealing.
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At the end of 2021, the Company obtained the pollutant ZECFRK  AARBUS THESEFAE
discharge permit, completed the safety evaluation BEETKERE H=HBEEETT
of the hazardous waste warehouse, and conducted RRBI - BRERERRELNEINAE -

environmental protection acceptance for the third phase
of the project, ensuring more reliable environmental
protection capabilities.

Photo: the oil vapor recovery unit and the pollutant discharge permit of Zhongnanhui
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Wastewater Discharge Management

The Company strictly follows the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution, adheres to the comprehensive treatment of
production wastewater. According to the Integrated
Wastewater Discharge Standard of the People’s Republic
of China, the Company implements the management
of water pollutants, and forbids the direct discharge of
pollutants such as oils, acids, and lye, etc. to water body
to prevent water pollution. Meanwhile, the Company
establishes a sewage pipeline to collect ground sewage
and cleaning tank sewage, tank bottom oil sewage and
rainwater, and have the sewage treated by a self-built
sewerage treatment station and then sent to the industrial
park sewerage treatment station for further treatment to
further reduce pollution and eventually meet the emission
standard. Office sewage is discharged into the municipal
sewage pipeline and enters the local municipal sewage
treatment plant. At the same time, the Company will
monitor the surrounding seawater in order to have a real-
time understanding of our impact on the surrounding

waters and respond to accidents in a timely manner.

RE HEREAHRSE

KPR ER

AR BB BRE(PFEARLMBEIKSE
Frsaik) BRI M EESKERTIE -
NEMKB(PEAR LB S KEE FEK
EEYEENGAYERE  BREEEMRK
BEEERURE  BMEUARBRRESESE
VIR EEOK - PFIE7KEE IS o BRI - A
RIS E MU = &5 RS
K BIEBSKERK BBEESKE
BUhETRIE - RIBENSKEARRS
KERIETRERENE —FZEIRS
R EEGERZHER o A5 KAIBEATH
BUSKEN - EAZ T EUSKEE R
B ARREHARBEEKOER - A
EREZRERMEBFAEKRENZEE LT
BURBHEINEHMERE-

Type of pollutant

EE R A pollutant emission
EARMBEBORERE

Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD) 500mg/L

2% 4A 2 (CoD)

PH 6-9

% % /5 (PH)

Concentration limit for

Annual average pollutant
emission concentration

FEFAZEYHFERRE
154.8mg/L

8.47
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Solid Waste Management

We are committed to reducing the pollution of the
surrounding ecological environment caused by various
types of waste generated in its operations. We have
formulated and have strictly followed the Hazardous
Waste Management Procedures according to the relevant
requirements of the Law of the People’'s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Environment
Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes, Regulations on the
Safety Administration of Dangerous Chemicals, National
Hazardous Waste List, Standard for Pollution Control on
Hazardous Waste Storage, Measures for the Prevention
and Control of Environment Pollution by Discarded
Dangerous Chemicals, and Hazardous Waste Transfer
Contact Management Measures to ensure the proper
disposal of hazardous wastes.

Hazardous waste generated in our production and
operation mainly includes waste oil in grease trap, oil
polluted waste and liquid. The Company has defined
relevant treatment procedures in Hazardous Waste
Management Procedures:

1. Production and domestic
waste should be stored
separately in designated
location

1.EE - £ENRUESF

EEERWER

BRBRIRBLOEBTEENSHEEDY
AR EEEEERRRENSR - RPIESRE
(FEARKMBERBEYSRRER S
EXEREERLEEERINKERE
(% & ¥ & 85018 IR BE W) By 1305 R B AR
EXERE BRI EMRTRRRILAMWE)
(EREENEBHEETIEE)NER
2B EL BB BR(ERERY EIEH
B) NEREREZRVENLELE -

BPWEELLEBRTEENERESR
YEA T RS  hREY R
R RRlHE(ERERZRYEEHE)HA
ETHENEERF:

5. Al hazardous  waste
should be stored in
containers complying with
regulations and be placed
orderly in hazardous waste
warehouse

5. TEREREYES TN

TFIREIEE M E NaRENRREsE A
FlririEhBEEmaE

2. General control division 3. Waste oil is collected 4. Paint, stone wool and
collects and stores timely and stored materials which produce
samples and cleaning centralized location. Floor dust easily generated in
effluent  into  special polluted by oil must be repair process should be
containers and conduct cleaned immediately stored in  designated

treatment in accordance
with  requirement  of
“recycling of liquid waste”

2. BRI R B MBS ERTE 3. BEh K R B U & R
MEER® LR [ER SR} S 3 T B9 55 227
B MESRERE bl

- location

4. @EBIEELNBRR &
1 RZEENENTF
JETERTFIN
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Hazardous Waste Management Procedures also specifies
the requirements and standards for pre-handling, storage
and classification of hazardous waste. Production facility
division classifies and counts hazardous waste collected
and transfers the waste in kinds and batches to the
hazardous waste warehouse after confirmation by safety
and environment protection division. The Company has
set up hazardous waste warehouse in its plants to classify
and store hazardous waste generated in its operation.
Real-time cameras and surveillance are set outside the

R HERERKRS

(ERBEENEEHNE)DEEREZDN
EEREELRD B FHBEETERMAE -
Eﬁuﬂﬁﬂiﬂﬂl Wk EEYET
DS RATEZRABERE - BE
BEZNHSEOUBEREBERE -~
RAERBARETEREENEE - #
E¥BTEENEREDDEGE KR
EEINGR B T B R AR S8 B I LA R 1 [ g
BEYNERER c RAIHTEREEMS
BEEEEFERPTINER:

warehouse to ensure effective management of hazardous
waste. Requirements for containers and storage of
hazardous waste of the Company are set out below:

. Maintain container tanks or boxes for
hazardous waste

REfRMERNTRRIE

® Ensure container to be stored safely and secured and kept away from fire and water

REARLE - FE - EBEIR - KR

2. Container in direct contact with hazardous
waste should satisfy the following requirements:

HEEFHRERBERMNBTHREAMEUTER !

® Material of the container should be compatible with (does not react with) the hazardous wastes
ARMEVREBREZRMED (THERE)

® The container should satisfy relevant intensity and protection requirements
RE/Rm e E ey sa E M EE K

* The container should be in perfect condition and sealed to prevent leakage during transfer and transportation
REsWATTHEE  HOBRE - [ ILERSNER BT RF

® Each container storing hazardous waste should have clear label or stick new label to indicate the Chinese name and nature of
the material stored. The labels should not show any sign of markups

AR AREEMNRRE D ER L /AR RRRAIRE - SRE FITEIRE
e All containers storing hazardous waste should have appropriate space

NBERREEREZRMNARVAEEEEEM

EFAPTEME R X B BRI - BE A 2MURY

3. For temporary storage of hazardous waste:

WA FRT AR L AME

® It should be stored separately by category. Materials not compatible should be stored separately to prevent any danger
BED AR - THRTNNERDFFR - A EERR

* Direct packaging materials for fragile package should, according to their nature, be fixed in wooden case or
firm cartons and fillers should be added to prevent collision and pressure and for secured storage

FEEEYNERBEMEREE TR BB EEARERFENAMES - WHNKEFTY - BERE - B8 - WRELZ2FN
e Container in direct contact with hazardous should avoid leakage from tilting and slanted storage

EEEKERERYNBFEFITBRETERLERN - BEMRR
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The safety and environment protection division of the
Company engages qualified units to undergo unified
safe disposal of hazardous waste and strictly adheres to
the Five Joint List System for the Transfer of Hazardous
Wastes. In order to better track the handling of hazardous
wastes, a series of information, such as order submission,
acceptance of wastes by qualified units, removal from
plant areas, confirmation of transfer amount, etc., can be
updated and inquired in real time in the online "Hazardous
Waste Dynamic Management Information System”. In
addition to the proper disposal of hazardous wastes, the
Company transfers non-hazardous waste and domestic
waste generated during storage and operation to the
material recovery unit for unified treatment or recycling.

During the operations of the Company, the primary
non-hazardous waste is office domestic waste and office
paper. We advocated environmental protection concepts
such as recycling of secondary paper in the office area
to reduce the non-hazardous waste generated during the
Company's operations

Responding to climate change

The Company is mainly faced with acute risks caused by
extreme weather such as floods, strong winds or cyclones,
and chronic risks caused by long-term climate patterns
such as temperature rise in the production and operations.
In response to climate change and frequent extreme
weather, the Company has formulated emergency plans
for typhoon prevention, flood control, lightning protection
and anti-static protection, established an efficient and
orderly disaster relief operation mechanism, and continued
to enhance the Company’s business response and safety
emergency capabilities against natural disasters, so as to
avoid and reduce safety risks caused by natural disasters
to the greatest extent, and ensure the normal operation
and production of equipment.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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2.2 Use of Resources.

Energy Management

The Company continues to improve energy structure
and increases energy efficiency. In 2021, through setting
annual production objectives and making monthly
production work plans, and incorporating energy use
into performance indicators of production management,
the production division of the Company made regular
statistics and analysis on energy use of unit capacity,
reviewed and summarized factors affecting energy
efficiency, and put forward energy conservation and
consumption reduction measures.

Besides, we fully advocate the concept of green
low-carbon, energy saving and consumption reduction,
continue to standardize the use and management of
official vehicles, and advocate the energy-saving use
of air-conditioning facilities. By optimizing the energy
structure, applying low-carbon energy, saving energy
use, improving energy efficiency and other means, we
continuously reduce greenhouse gas emissions in the
operation process, and actively cooperate with the "13th
Five-Year Plan for Controlling Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Work Plan” promulgated by the State Council., and
contribute to the realization of the dual carbon goals of
“carbon dioxide emissions peak before 2030” and “carbon
neutrality before 2060” and sustainable economic and
social development.

Water Resources Management

The use of water resources involved in the operation of
the Company mainly includes water used in petrochemical
storage, tank washing, and fire-fighting. In the course of
operation, the Company strictly complies with the Water
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other relevant
laws and regulations, and is committed to the protection
of water resources and improvement of water resource
utilization efficiency.

R #HERERBRE
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In order to improve the performance of the Company’s
water resource utilization in the course of operations, we
proceeded from the perspective of our own water resource
utilization, and put forward targeted measures for the
rational use of water resources. In terms of petrochemical
storage, we measured water consumption nodes and
wastewater discharge in the storage operation and
improved the statistics of water consumption and drainage
data, so as to comprehensively monitor the water resource
utilization in the operation process. At the same time,
according to seasonal temperature changes, we adjusted
the use of water for tank body cooling through water
spraying as well as anti-freezing and heat preservation.
On tank washing, we reduced the length of pipeline in
the tank washing process and improved the efficiency of
water resource utilization through reasonable planning of
material classification storage area. On fire protection, the
Company would regularly carry out emergency fire drills.
We required priority use of fire extinguishers and other
emergency equipment to reduce spraying time of water
gun and reduce water resource consumption. In 2021, we
conducted a comprehensive inspection of all fire water
pipes in the factory area, and promoted the completion
of the repair of all leak points to reduce the water
consumption of fire water. Before winter came, we also
conducted condensate drain for all pipelines to prevent
frost damage.
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CHAPTER THREE SAFE PRODUCTION

3.1

Safe Operations Management

The Company attached great importance to production
safety. Adhering to the principle of “Safety first based
on prevention and comprehensive control (£ 2% — * 7&
b7 /E - 4268 1)", it continuously improved the safety
management structure of oil and petrochemical storage
business, and established a production safety leading
group to implement the production safety responsibility
system. The Company has strictly abided by the national
and local laws and regulations including Production Safety
Law of the People’'s Republic of China, Fire Protection
Law of the People’'s Republic of China and Production
Safety Regulations of Jiangsu Province. Supervised by
the Safe Production Committee, the production safety
leading group organized the preparation of the Company's
production safety regulations, operating regulations
and emergency plans for safety accidents, including
the Production Safety Responsibility System, Production
Safety Management Network, Leadership and Duty
System, Administrative Measures for Production Safety
Deposits, Production Safety Meeting System, Production
Safety Inspection System, Production Safety Accident
Reporting and Investigation System, Inspection and
Rectification System for Hidden Dangers in Production
Safety, Production Safety Education and Training System
and Production Safety Rewards and Punishment System.
Each production and operation unit further refined the
safety management system and operating regulations
based on their respective business characteristics to form
a management system in line with the characteristics of
business operations.
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Safety Management Structure of the Company

TER

ERA®ME

General Management of Yancheng Dafeng
Heshun International Trading Company Limited
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The Company's safety management was led by the
Company’s Safe Production Committee, with the general
manager of the production and operation business
unit as the first person responsible, which carefully
implemented the production safety principles and policies,
and incorporated production safety into the Company’s
development strategy and long-term planning. The safety
director assisted in implementing the safety responsibility
system, organized quarterly safety leading group meetings,
as well as summarized and deployed safety management
work. The production division organized the formulation
of annual production work goals, and organized the
formulation or revision of operating procedures according
to the actual situation of the production. The equipment
division was responsible for the safety management of
devices and industrial buildings and
the preparation of equipment management

equipment power,
structures,
systems and operating procedures, and organizing training
and implementation to ensure that special types of work
received professional qualification training and certification.
The safety and environment division was responsible for
the safety management of oil and petrochemical storage
facilities, identifying national and local safety related laws
and regulations, conducting identification of dangerous
sources and investigation of hidden dangers in production
safety accidents, assessing the current status of safety
management, and organizing drills for emergency rescue
plans.
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Moreover, the Company established the safety leading
group of Heshun Trading, and formulated the Safety
Management System. The work of this group is primarily to
supervise and guide the safety, environmental protection,
fire protection and occupational health of Zhongnanhui.
Through the active promotion of the management and the
efforts of employees at all levels, Zhongnanhui obtained
the first-level certification of national safety production
standardization in July 2020,
inspection of the first-level standardization in July 2021.

and passed the annual

Safety Risk Control

Following the safety management policy of “Safety first
B ARE), we pay
attention to the safety risk management during the

based on prevention (Z%& % —

operation process and continuously optimizes the safety
risk assessment system related to petrochemical storage
business, including Safety Inspection and Management
System, Risk Identification and Assessment Management
System, as well as the provisions like Safety Devices
Contents and Requirements for the Petrochemical
Wharf and Warehouse Area, Regulations on the Safety
Administration of Dangerous Chemicals, and Provisions
on the Safety Management of Hazardous Goods at
Ports, so as to continuously reduce the risk of operating

procedures.

In order to effectively identify and control risks, as well
as to reduce risks and hazardous and harmful factors, the
Company has specifically formulated Safety Check and
Accidental Hidden Risk Management System and Risk
Assessment and Control System in the Safety Production
Management System. Led by the safety and environment
division, all staff participate in identification of hazardous
and harmful factors, risk assessment and risk control work.

3.2
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Risk Identification Management Process [ B B B B OR AR

In the risk identification process, the Company established NEERBEANAES  KERBROE
a quantized risk assessment standard according to the AEREMEHEXNER X TEH
frequency of risk and the consequence of accident, and RERTEEE REBRERIAS>R/RERKX
categorized risks as significant, higher, general and low Rk - mARERE - —RERMERR - I
by level and accordingly developed control measures and HIEMEENZESIEERBRBAR -

implementation deadlines.
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21=23 Significant Forbid operation before taking measures to reduce harm and conduct
B AR assessment on improvement measures
ERIEBEEESA - TRRESESE Ul EREETTR
16-20 Higher Take emergency measures to reduce risk, establish operating control
E N procedure and conduct regular inspection, measurement and
assessment
RRE=zEREERR ZYETENERF EHRE  HENRFHG
6-15 General Consider setting targets, establishing operating specification and
— AR B B strengthening training and communication
AZERIYBR  BIUIRERIE  MBRFI BB
1-5 Low Consider establishing operating specification, operation instruction but
1K = B require regular inspection or require no control measures, and require

keeping records
A EEEIRERE
B I AR TF RC B%

EEEEE .

ERENRERNERTXBEHE

In accordance with the requirements of the Guiding
Opinions of Jiangsu Provincial Safety Supervision Bureau
on Further Strengthening the Construction of the Double
Prevention Mechanism for Enterprise Security Risk
Hierarchical Management and Control and Hidden Danger
Investigation and Governance ((L#RE LERB@ENE—
FMECPELRETRERBROREENEEHE RBEERD
HHZERTHENIEEER)) (Su An Jian [2017] No. 60),
the Company established and improved a dual prevention
system, conducted risk identification on operation activities
and equipment, and made public announcements for risks
at higher level or above in the warehouse area. According to
Safety Inspection and Management System, the Company
conducted comprehensive safety inspection on production
and operating activity on a regular basis, ensuring that
each production and operating unit shall achieve safety
target and working plan, comply with safety management
requirements and operating specification as well as
effectively identify safety hazards and provide rectification
advice. In respect of the important areas of high risk such as
nitrogen room, fire-pump room, sewage treatment station,
the Company also conducted specific safety inspection,
and timely check and eliminate operating breakdown of
equipment and facilities or unstandardized operation. In
addition, the leading group of safety work conducted daily
and irregular spot check, gave specific rectification advice
on major problems identified and required corresponding
positions to complete the rectification and conduct re-
inspection as soon as possible.
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Sustainable Development Practices: Summary of annual safety check and hidden risk elimination and investigation

ARERRER TEZR2RENBIRFETFELLE

The Company procured Zhongnanhui and Jiangsu
Hairong to update the safety management system
structure and safety leading group, and issued the
Compilation of Safety Management System. Both
units have safety directors to simultaneously supervise
Zhongnanhui and Jiangsu Hairong to pass the class 1
of work safety standardization. During the Reporting
Period, the Company organized 12 safety meetings and
training activities, and carried out 12 safety inspections,
formed 12 inspection records, issued 5 hidden danger
rectification lists, and detected 27 hidden dangers, the
rectification for which were completed.

REAERTHEE THEREN T Z2EERAREN
ZE2RBE/NE B T(E2EEHEER)  MEMY
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B

The Company places great emphasis on safety guarantee
during the overall operating process. In respect of the
external related parties such as contractors joining the
company’s production business unit, they are required to
sign a safety production management agreement, and
accept the safe production education before entering the
warehouse area in accordance with the Company’s safety
management system. Besides, the Company explained
the safety precautions they were required to comply with
and provide protection equipment such as protection suit
against static electricity to them, so as to fully guarantee
the safety management of related parties when working
at the warehouse area.
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3.3 Safety and Health Protection

It is the responsibility of the Company to ensure the
safety and health of its employees. The Company
strictly complies with the Production Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People's
Republic of China on the Prevention and Treatment
of Occupational Diseases, the Law of the People's
Republic of China on Protection of Workers' Rights
and Interests, the Provisions on the Supervision and
Administration of Occupational Health at Work Sites,
Jiangsu Labour Protection Regulations and other relevant
laws and regulations, and has formulated corresponding
management systems and procedures according to the
characteristics of the Company’s production and operation
business, including the Occupational Health Management
System, the Protective Labor Equipment Management
System, the Safety Protection Equipment and Facilities
Management System etc., so as to continuously improve
the occupational safety and health protection system and
fully implement the main responsibility for safe production.
During the Reporting Period, the Company did not
experience any death from work.

For special jobs, in accordance with the Management
System for Special Operation, the Company specified
application scope, duties and relevant safety requirements
for special operation like casual power usage, cranking and
lifting and aloft work, with a view to standardize safety
supervision and management of on-site special operation
of the safety and environment protection division.
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In accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Occupational Health Management System, the person in
charge of the Company is the first person responsible
for the prevention and control of occupational diseases,
and shall systematically organize the identification of
occupational hazards and input in occupational health
protection. The safety and environment protection
division is responsible for supervising and managing the
implementation of occupational health management,
overseeing and coordinating the “three simultaneousness”
on prevention and control of occupational hazards,
and according to the Protective Labor Equipment
Management System, formulates the standards for
the distribution of the protective labor equipment to
provide appropriate protective labor equipment for
employees, and coordinates the regular monitoring of
occupational hazards and the evaluation of the status
of occupational hazards. The production division and
the equipment division work together to improve the
operation procedures for each post, and organize regular
occupational health training for staff.

There are limited occupational hazards involved in
the Company’s course of business. The Company
provides the employees in related positions with pre-
employment, in-service and pre-departure occupational
health examination, and the employees in-service will
be provided with such health examination at least
once a year, the result of which will be informed to
the relevant employees in time. Once the occupational
contraindications or suspected occupational diseases
are found, the Company shall arrange the transfer from
original post for relevant employees according to the
relevant systems, and immediately arrange diagnosis
and treatment. During the Reporting Period, there were
no cases of occupational contraindications or suspected
occupational diseases being found.

During the epidemic prevention and control in 2021, the
Company continued to pay attention to the safety and
health of employees. When the epidemic was severe,
we resolutely implemented the vaccination plan for all
staff in accordance with the corresponding national and
local government requirements, and paid attention to
the health of employees in a timely manner. During the
post-epidemic prevention and control, we implemented
normalized epidemic prevention measures, such as
daily disinfection and cleaning of office area, regular
temperature checking of employees, distribution of
protective materials and presentations of epidemic
prevention knowledge, to ensure the safe operation of
enterprises during the epidemic prevention and control.
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3.4 Safety Training Practice

A sound safety training system can effectively improve
the safety awareness and quality of employees, and
promote the implementation of safety management.
We have established the Safety Training and Education
Management System and actively enhanced general
safety awareness through safety education, in order to
ensure effective implementation of safe production as
well as preventing and avoiding safety accidents. And
accordingly, the annual safety education and training
program has been set up to organize and carry out the
safety procedure standard training related to production
and operation, and advocate updating safety management
and revising the constitution. During the Reporting Period,
the Company has formulated the Annual Goals and
Requirements for Safety Education Training and the Safety
and Health Training Programme with a view to establish
knowledge system of employees’ safety education, held
safety production month activities and safety production
knowledge competitions, and raised requirements in
six aspects for safety education of each divisions and
subsidiaries: safety requirement, safety awareness, safety
knowledge, safety skills, compliance with regulations and
capability of emergency response. We have set up the
following objectives of safety training in the annual training
programme:

The percentage of registered principals in charge,
officers in charge, and security managers be 100%.

o The rate at which the new employees participate in
the three-level safety training and passing rate of
employees training for transfer of posts be 100%.

o The annual rate of safety training for employees be
100%.

o The passing rate of a training > 98%.

Meanwhile, the Company also sets goals of safety
education for employees at different levels. We require
new or re-designated employees to participate in the
three-level safety training and three-level education
examination, the relevant employees can only start
working after passing the examination; acquirement
of safety titles or certificates is also required for
safety-related management staff.

3.4
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According to the Company’s business and different
personnel needs, each unit conducts safety production
training for front-line employees once a month. Different
types of training and topics are designed to provide
targeted training to personnel such as drivers, and
team leaders with contents including safety procedures,
safety knowledge of dangerous chemicals, typical
accident analysis, first aid methods, and traffic safety
training. After training, the trainees also need to pass
oral or written tests. During the Reporting Period, the
Company conducted a total of 12 safety production
and occupational health trainings, with a total of 421
participants, and the assessment results were included
in the performance assessment at the end of the year.
In order to further motivate employees to pay attention
to safety production training, the Company has year-
end incentives for units and individuals that do not have
accidents throughout the Year, while departments that
fail to follow the training plan to commence training will
receive penalties and warnings.
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Sustainable Development Practices: Annual Working Meeting of the Safety Committee and Training

TRERRER FEXZESTFEHRREI

In November 2021, the Company held a work meeting
of the Safety Committee, which was attended by each
member of the Safety Committee. The meeting was
to study the general guidance document of “General
Secretary Xi Jinping's Statement on Production
Safety” and the local regulations of the Regulations
on Production Safety in Yancheng City, and watch
the safety warning educational film organized by the
transportation bureau, so that all employees’ in-depth
and clear awareness of safe production operations
could be enhanced.

—E—F+—-A REARAXZEIERE ARE
BHZEEENEZ2N 2RABEB(ROTFRER
AR LZ2EETHERIBEENHURERTZ 2
EERIDBITRE  YBEXBRABNLZEETRH
BERh URAZBEAELRZAEFRESEEERARLGMH
HIRR A ©

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - #gREARSE

At the same time, the Company regularly conducted safety HEpRK AREKBGRGESZEER
drills in accordance with the On-site Emergency Measures W) EEIRITLRRER  BELTER -
to manage and control safety risks, improve the safety ReE2ELX2EH REINERE %
awareness of all employees, and create a healthy and safe PHIERE BBL2ER 28

working environment for employees. The safety drills can BENE-—FERLERERBHEA
make all staff further master the use of safety equipment ERHESBEENATREEHESRE

anp
[Ny

and facilities and improve their familiarity with emergency

ho MR-BEBEZZHEESH K
T

plans and emergency handling capabilities, and ensure BTMENARE RERE  BET
that front-line employees can effectively organize, respond Bl ZAREBHMHIERNGES -

quickly, and keep unflappable to minimize the harms in
the event of a production safety accident.

Sustainable Development Practices: a Safety Emergency Drill

TRHABRRER Z2EIER

In October 2021, Zhongnanhui organized the fourth-quarter fire emergency drill, and the full-time fire
brigade of Dafeng Port was invited to participate. In order to ensure the effectiveness of the drill,
Zhongnanhui combined the drill with real cases and divided the drill into four parts, namely, initiation
of emergency plans, initial firefighting, simulated personnel evacuation and rescue, and fire prevention
operations, which were fully recognized by the leaders of the municipal transportation bureau. Moreover,
Jiangsu Yancheng, /L& A £ 8% Y i B & (Jiangsu Dafeng Harbour Logistics Park), Jiangsu Dafeng and
surrounding companies were invited to observe this drill, and a thematic seminar was conducted with
them, which created good conditions and atmosphere for further improving the fire emergency response
capabilities of all enterprises in the park.
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4.1

82

Compliance with Employment Management

The Company considers employees as an important
capital for corporate’s sustainable development and strives
to grow with employees. The Company has adhered
to the principle of “morality plus ability but morality
before ability”(#8 7 F& % + A2 B 5E) and “selecting
people depends on the task and maintaining a dynamic
balance” (A EE# A BAFE B REFBHEF E) when
recruiting employees, abided by the basic principle of
human resources management “openness, impartiality and
fairness in order to effectively motivate and constrain each
E-RF BXHBMHRE —@E

B T) as well as followed the principles of competition,

employee” (AR ~ &

responsibility, incentives, and democratic management to
achieve effective development and rational use of human

resources.
Equal Employment

The Company strictly abides by the Labour Law of
the People’'s Republic of China, Regulation on Labour
Security Supervision, Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and the labour laws and regulations
of the state and region, and thoroughly implements the
Implementation Rules on the Employee Collective Welfare
and Consolation Expenses of Jiangsu Yancheng Port
Group Co., Ltd., the Administrative Measures on Labor
Leaves of Jiangsu Yancheng Port Holding Group Co.,
Ltd. (Trial), and Interim Measures on the Management of
Personnel Selection and Employment of Jiangsu Yancheng
Port Holding Group Co., Ltd. In addition, we have also
formulated the Administrative Measures on Labour and
Personnel Matters to systematically regulate, manage
and protect employees’ legitimate rights and interests
such as employees’ recruitment, employment, promotion,
dismissal, staff training, code of conduct, working hours,
performance appraisal, welfare benefits, diversification,
and antidiscrimination.

The Company ensures that the recruitment process is
fair and impartial, and prohibits the use of child labour
and forced labour. If child labour were found, we will
instruct the relevant authorities to send the child labour
to their parents or other guardians in their original place
of residence. At the same time, we insist on treating
employees of different races, religions, ages, genders,
marital status, disability status, and political orientations
impartially, and provide them with an equal, diversified,
non-discriminatory work environment.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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Pay and Benefits

The Company is committed to providing reasonable
remuneration, welfare, and benefits to its employees and
protecting the immediate interests of employees through
strictly implementing the Implementation Rules on the
Employee Collective Welfare and Consolation Expenses of
Jiangsu Yancheng Port Group Co., Ltd., the Administrative
Measures on Labor Leaves of Jiangsu Yancheng Port
Holding Group Co., Ltd. (Trial) and the policies like
Administrative Measures on Labour
Matters,
Payment and Management and Implementation Measures

and Personnel
Administrative Measures on Remuneration
on Performance Assessment. In view of Administrative
Measures on Pay and Benefits, the Company provides
to employees basic salary, and (if applicable) bonus
including allowances, commissions, etc. At the same time,
we also provide employees with comprehensive welfare
policies, including five insurance premiums and housing
provident fund, supplementary medical insurance, over
time allowance, outpatient allowance and hospitalization
allowance. In addition, employees may enjoy pay leave
such as public holidays, leave, sick leave, marriage leave,
compassionate leave, maternity leave, and annual leave
in addition to statutory holidays in accordance with
Administrative Measures.

To enhance sense of belongings of employees and
reinforce corporate cohesion and realize caring spirits,
the Company also developed Administrative Measures
on Caring Employees. The general department takes the
lead to organize consolation activities and grant incentives
and gifts in event of employees’ birthdays, weddings,
sick leaves, work injuries, maternity leaves, funeral leaves
and traditional festivals. In addition, we also established
rewarding events electing “Star of the Month” and “Star
of the Year” to grant incentives to outstanding employees.

Employee Development and Training

The Company attaches importance to growth and
development of employees. We uphold the principle of
"openness, impartiality and fairness” to provide fair career
opportunities and channels to employees. We develop
tailor-made and suitable career paths and promotion
opportunities for employees in different positions,
departments and levels, and persistently provide related
professional training and courses to help employees adapt
to the rapidly changing social and economic environment
and satisfy their needs of achievement.

4.2
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The Company strives to coordinate the employees’
competence with the job requirements through education
and training, so as to enhance the quality of the Group’s
manpower and facilitate the achievement of corporate
goals. The general management department of the
Company, as the responsible management department
for education and training works, is responsible for the
overall organization, formulation and implementation of
the Company’s education and training programs, including
the following specific duties:

Formulation of training
plans of the Company
and each department

Implementation of
training plans

FIF BN ERE

To report the

DA R & EBFIETIE
HYIET

BIIEROZ]

The Company provides different departments of career
paths for employees, including management, technology
and finance, as well as corresponding training systems.
The training is divided into induction training for new
employees, job-rotation training, on-the-job professional
training etc. At the same time, we provide corresponding
training to employees of different departments in
accordance with job requirement and career development
requirement.

training outcomes

Managerial personnel

EEEET

* To provide training on labor
law, secretarial practical
skills, preparation of
management reports, etc.

Technical personnel

BiTEE T

* To provide corresponding
technical training to help
employees continuously
improve their technical level
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ATEBTIE:

Creation and collection
of training files and
teaching materials
SR R B L
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To report the
training outcomes
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Financial personnel

MEEET

* To provide training on the
preparation of the latest
financial  reports  and
accounting policies

required for the duties. We
also provide training on
occupational health and
safety education as well as
standardized operation
procedures; and deliver the
information regarding the
latest development and
status of the trade and
logistics industry
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In addition, before the new employees taking office,
the Company will organize a collective training session.
The content of the training for new employees includes:
corporate culture, business philosophy, the Company’s
development history and current status, industry trends,
the Company’s organizational structure, functions
and business scope of each department, rules and
regulations, code of conduct for employees, etc., so
that new employees can further familiarize with the work
procedures and scope of duties. Upon the completion of
new employee training, an examination will be conducted
and the employees who pass the exam will be given
the opportunity of being full-time employees. Besides,
a “training evaluation form”, which is designed by the
general management department, will be distributed to
the training participants to fill in at the end of training.
After summarizing, the general management department
will evaluate the effectiveness of current training session
from various perspectives, including training teachers,
training content, training forms and techniques as well as
training implementation, and rectify the inadequacies in a
timely manner.

We also encourage employees to keep learning new
skills through external training. Subject to the approval
of the manager and the human resources department,
the Company will provide support to the employees who
apply for the external training in terms of fund and time.
In addition, all Directors and senior management of the
Company have received training on the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
and continuing professional development during the Year,
so as to cater for the market requirements professionally
while performing duties.

The Company has continuously improved the training
system and enriched the training resources. During the
Reporting Period, we have provided training courses for
103 employees, with a total training time of 280 hours.
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CHAPTER FIVE WIN WIN COOPERATION

5.1

86

Supplier Management

To standardize supplier management of the Company,
protect legal interest of the Company, ensure project
quality, enhance economic efficiency and prevent
corruption, We strictly comply with related laws and
regulations, such as Company Law of the People's Republic
of China and Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China as well as “Notice on Strengthening Recruitment
for Supervision and Management Work” and “Measures
for Resource Management of JTE A EZ G BIEREEE
R AR (Jiangsu Dafeng Harbour Holdings Limited*), and
accordingly established Supplier Management System,
Management Measures for Procurement (Provisional),
Management Measures for Project Establishment,
Management System for Tender of Project and
Management Measure for Procurement of Office Supplies
to perform strict screening, evaluation and management
on suppliers of goods, construction work and services.

The Management Measures for Procurement specifies
duties and authorities of divisions of the Company related
to supplier management. It standardizes supervision of
procurement projects in terms of management structure.
The Company has established the procurement and
tender management committee responsible for directing
The

committee supervises suppliers winning the bid and their

all procurement and procurement management.
performance. It also makes internal decision for price
comparison and invitation of tenders for procurement
project of the Company. Under the instruction of the
procurement and tender management commit tee,
the investment and asset management division of the
Company is responsible for managing daily procurement
and regulating procurement procedures.

When signing a procurement contract, we require the
suppliers to provide relevant certificates which include
business license, fire inspection contract and other
corresponding qualifications, proving that they have the
required qualifications and certifications and ensuring that
their operations are in compliance with the applicable
labor, environment and other laws and regulations. At
the same time, the products provided by suppliers have
to comply with relevant standards of product quality and

environment.
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The Company assesses its suppliers’ competence from the RAEEHER e D ETA T A EAT
following four perspectives: 5E

To engage a third-party agency for the assessment of product quality based on the
. product indicators agreed in the contracts between the parties; and to determine the
Product quality assessment quality level according to the assessment result

EmHEEAFIE Wﬁ%ﬁAﬂﬁmthFﬁ& RS HRARERIESEE R RTE
E\E7 F

To learn about the company profile from various channels, such as telephone, Internet
and business registration, etc.
Delivery competence

According to the terms of the contracts, the upstream companies are generally required
assessment

to pay after delivery while the downstream companies are required to pay before delivery
REREDTFE RIBEHE - 8% - TEBESRERRLEHN
REARGTAOR - —RERKEFARGRNZR - THFEIRERE

To undertake assessment from three angles: whether customers carry out the contracts
on schedule; whether customers who apply for postponement due to exceptional cases
have carried out their contracts during extension; the fact that customers have not
carried out the contracts for more than three months

BREXFEGEHREY  ASEKBEARBTCHUELERAARLY B=HARBH =I5
SEFE

Cooperation assessment

BERRTE

To undertake assessment according to market prices, product indicators, methods of

Product price assessment delivery and payment, etc.
s REMSER  ESHE  REMRFXSTE

Supplier Safety and Environmental Management HEBZ2RRER

In order to protect the environment and safety RREHEBRERRELZZTENE R
management level of suppliers and promote the synergy K- B NEEEARER - AREGIE
development of the industrial chain, the Company has T(RBREZERRERBHE)  REEH
formulated the Safety and Environmental Protection EBEENEERNRES(LERRMR) -
Management System for Contractor. It stipulates that a BREEEBRITERREERLIN
Safety and Environmental Protection Agreement should HER BEEEEZ2RERRR - &
be signed before make cooperation with contractors REREENHER  ARFAHEREH
and giving priority to choose those with better safety EHRIRIE C @ERZ 2 (EHS) FI - A
and environmental management abilities with the aim RERZ2REBRBEER %ﬁﬁf’ﬁﬁﬁ
of mitigating safety and environment risks of the supply B ehitE2REERABFZRANS
chain. In regard to suppliers with long-term cooperation, R IR & BC A FE B 5 A AC 8% 0 MR
the Company provides regularly Environment, Health and EEAZAITBEREENLTE2RESRME 2
Safety(EHS) training for them, including special contents T By &5 4% FE g R B o

such as safety and environmental protection regulations,
special operation procedures, and management
regulations for dangerous chemicals, etc. Each training
will be equipped with corresponding detailed records
to ensure that suppliers can fully understand their due
responsibilities for safety and environment, as well as fully
prevent supply chain risks.
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5.2 Customer Services

88

Communication with customers

The customer types of the Company are mainly
divided into manufacturers and traders. The customers’
satisfaction with the Company’s products, services and
management level is always our pursuit. Adhering to the
philosophy of customer first, we actively communicate with
customers in the course of business, take the initiative
to understand the customers’ views on our services and

obtain their feedback and suggestions.

The Company has established an effective complaint
system. When customers have any questions on or
dissatisfaction with our services, they can report to
us through various complaint channels. The contracts
have provided the methods of communication for both
parties, such as telephone, email, fax, address, etc. After
receiving the complaint from a customer, we will identify
the responsible department, clarify the reasons for the
complaint and follow up the complaint in a timely manner.
If a customer’s loss was caused by our fault, the Company
will give the customer reasonable compensation to make
up for the loss of the customer.

Customer privacy

While ensuring that customers are satisfied with our
products, services and management, we place emphasis
on the protection of customer privacy, and promises to
respect and protect the customer privacy. We require all
employees not to violate laws and regulations, industry
discipline regulations and provisions on customer privacy
protection of their departments. Employees shall not
leak customer information and transaction information
to anyone; nor inquire colleagues about the personal
information or transaction information of customers out of
curiosity or for other purposes.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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5.3 Community Participation

We are keenly aware of the importance of community
investment to realizing sustainable development. We
believe that the best return to the local community is
bringing continuous and stable tax revenue to the local
government with increasing scale of major businesses,
so as to continue to increase employment opportunities
for the surrounding communities and to exert positive
effects on the development of the community through the
Company's organic growth.

At the same time, the Company also gathers its employees
to actively participate in a variety of community activities,
such as blood donation and agricultural by-products
purchasing in poverty-stricken areas such as Yijun County,
encourage employees to join the “Xu Peng Volunteer
Army” epidemic prevention pioneer team and participate
in community epidemic prevention volunteer work to bring
positive energy to the community continuously.

RE HEREAHRSE
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In June 2021, the Company launched a community environmental protection publicity campaign titled
“Smart Waste Sorting and No Waste of Resources” for in-service party members to help residents
understand the knowledge of waste sorting, and call on residents to sort and place recyclables, kitchen
waste, hazardous waste, and other waste according to unified standards by distributing waste sorting
brochures, explaining the meaning of waste sorting and the sorting methods of common waste in daily
life, so as to jointly contribute to the protection of the ecological environment.

T -FRA ARHREBREREMRIAFOAE  BRTREIRFREGED  BEENNE SR
SEM  FBRUPOFENEEANRATLEEFELRNFNS RS L EYERBEENF S BEBANE
FRABRZBAEKY Bl AENR HMUEEG-SEETHIRRNR ARARELER
BERIE -
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE Wi#FE#ZRE KRR

Energy consumption*

BEFUR#E*

Total energy consumption Kilowatt hours - 454,154.20  284,564.20
BERERES TR

Energy consumption intensity Kilowatt hours/HK$ thousand revenue = 0.22 0.31
RRHERE TRE/FTETKRS

Direct (Scope 1) energy consumption' Kilowatt hours - 60,644.20 43,470.20
ER(BE ) RRER FTRE

Indirect (Scope 2) energy consumption Kilowatt hours = 393,510.00  241,094.00
il 4% (8505 —) 82 R OH 78 TRE

Gasoline Liters 8,548 3,480 2,660
U 7t

Diesel Liters 3,000 3,000 2,000
g 3

Electricity Kilowatt hours 766,592 393,510 241,094%
g5 TEH

Greenhouse gas emissions*

BER BN

Total greenhouse gas emissions Kilograms CO, eq 561,844 333,204.94  176,883.50
BEREBRIN TrR-GREE

Greenhouse gas emissions intensity Kilograms CO, eq/HK$'000 revenue 0.370 0.16 0.19
BERBHREE Tr-_attegs  FTExha

Direct (Scope 1) greenhouse gas emissions? Kilograms CO, eq - 15,740.64 11,266.51
ER(HE)REREHNE? TrR-GREE

Indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions® Kilograms CO, eq = 317,464.30 165,616.99
RE(SBE ) REREBHRE TR-_ALHREER

Water consumption and wastewater emission*

FKBEBEKERE

Production operations water consumption Tonnes 10,000 15,000 23,100
EEEZERK &

Production operations water consumption intensity Tonnes/HK$ million revenue 6.59 7.32 2543
EEEERKEE W/ BEB TR

Office domestic water consumption Tonnes 5,672 2,400 3,600
D E K W

Office domestic water consumption intensity Tonnes/HK$ million revenue 3.74 117 396
WMNEFERKEE W EEA TS

Total wastewater discharged Tonnes 2,672 3,540 4,694
BEKBEREE L

Wastewater discharged intensity Tonnes/HK$ million revenue 191 1.73 5.17
BEK B IRE B W/ BEB TR
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Waste*

R~

Hazardous waste Tonnes - - 17
AEREREY Wi

Office domestic waste Tonnes 92.70 62.00 47.50
WD IR AR W

Office domestic waste intensity Tonnes/HK$ million revenue 0.0611 0.03 0.05
MOEBNREETE W B BTk

Office waste paper 10,000 sheets 36.80 24.00 25.50
N G S &R

Office domestic waste paper intensity 10,000 sheets/HK$ million revenue 0.017 0.012 0.028
PARREERE BR/BEBTKE

Employment status

ERER

Total number of employees Person 195 123 122
BTRAY A

Employment status by gender

BURE D ERER

Male Person 142 90 84
SHET A

Female Person 53 33 38
BT A

Employment status by age

RERBOERER

Employees aged under 30 Person 28 34 29
0mATEL A

Employees aged 30 to 50 Person 103 60 63
30-503% B T A

Employees aged over 50 Person 64 29 30
50N EET A

Employment status by region

BRSO ERER

Mainland China Person 193 121 106
B K B A

Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan Person 2 2 16
BREA A

Foreign Person 0 0 0
g5 A

Employment status by employment type

RERERESERER

Full time Person - - 122
S A

Part time Person - - 0
Fi A

Employee turnover

BIRARER

Total employee turnover Person - - 23
BRKANE A

Total employee turnover rate % 11.8 8.1 18.8
87 K b &
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Employee turnover by gender

BRUBBIETIRAAR

Male

SHET

Female

THET

Employee turnover rate by gender
BURBSEIRAL R
Male

SHET

Female

THET

Employee turnover by age

RERBOIETIREAL

Employees aged under 30
0N TFET
Employees aged 30 to 50
30-505% B T

Employees aged over 50
50 A LBT

Employee turnover rate by age

RERBOBIRALR

Employees aged under 30
0N TFET
Employees aged 30 to 50
30-505% B T

Employees aged over 50
50 A LBT

Employee turnover by region

BB SETIRAAL

Employees in Mainland China

PEAEET

Employees in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
BRAET

Foreign employees

SMEET

Employee turnover rate by region

RERSBETIRALR

Employees in Mainland China
MEREST

Employees in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
BRAET

Foreign employees

BIHET

Person

A

Person

A

%

%

Person

A

Person

A

Person

A

%

%

%

Person

A

Person

A

Person

A

%

%

%

- - 19.7

- - 254

- - 22.8

- - 20.3
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Health and safety

BEEZZE

Number of work-related fatalities Person 0 0 0
THRTAH A

Work-related death rate % 0 0 0
ToT X

Loss of working days due to work-related injuries Day 0 0 32
AIGEAIEAH X

Development and Training

BRRE

Total number of trainees Person - - 77
BIIBIAH A

Number of employees trained by gender

BUHREINZIETAR

Male Person - - 62
EMET A
Female Person = = 15
TMHET A

Number of trainees by rank

ERAEINZIEIAS

Management (department manager and above) Person - - 16
BEE(RPIAE R L) A
Basic level employees (below the department manager) Person = = 61
EEET(HBHEENUT) A
% of total trainees % - - 63.1

BEINETIEL

Proportion of trainees by gender

BUREINZIETL

Male % - - 73.8
FHEET
Female % = = 395
TMHET

Proportion of trainees by rank

ERAEINZIEI L

Management (department manager and above) % - - 43.2
BEE PRI L)
Basic level employees (below the department manager) % = = 71.8

EEET(HFILEAT)

Total employee training hours by gender

BUREINEIZIARR

Male (except safety training) Hour - - 280
SMHET(BRE2EIMN INEE
Female (except safety training) Hour - - 280
T BT (BRz2HEI5MN) N

Average employee training hours by gender

RUEREINBEIZITHRR

Male (except safety training) Hour - - 33
SHEI (= 2B INEE
Female (except safety training) Hour - - 74
TEBT (BT 2N N
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Total training hours of employees by rank

ERABMINEIZIARR

Management (department manager and above) (except Hour - - 280
safety training) N

ERE@PLRRA ) (BRE 22BN

Basic level employees (below the department manager) Hour = = 280
(except safety training) N

EEST(HBFEBEUAT)FRR2HFIN)

Average employee training hours by rank

ERABMINETZITHRR

Management (department manager and above) (except Hour - - 7.6
safety training) NG

EIRE(HFEE R L) (BT 2EININ

Basic level employees (below the department manager) Hour = = 33
(except safety training) NEF

EEST(BA&EE RAT)(BRz25HI5M)
Supply Chain Management

HESER

Total number of suppliers Case - 25 30

HEEAY 1

Number of suppliers by region

RHEBEE SN ERHE

Mainland China Case - 25 30

K BE 1@

Outside Mainland China Case = 0 0

Hh B K B DA S [ &

Anti-corruption

R&%s

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Case 0 0 0
practices brought against its employees during the @

reporting period
BERNUEEREIVEANESHARN

Community investment

Number of volunteers Person - 2 3
EREZEAY A

Volunteer service hours Hour = 40 12

5 8 AR 7% By 2K N

* Data coverage include: Zhongnanhui, Heshun Trading, Qianhai Mingtian, the Company, Shenzhen Fanhai and Zhuhai Hengfeng Heshun

Petrochemical Company Limited* (3k/8HLMIEA/LER A F
BIERAAERE: PEE MEZS - f1FHAX - ARF - /mﬂﬂ/zfg AR EBELEFRIBEALERAR -

! Direct (Scope 1) energy consumption is calculated in accordance with the General Rules for the Calculation of Comprehensive Energy
Consumption (GB/T 2589-2020) issued by the State Administration for Market Regulation and the Standardization Administration.
BEE@EEOERERKBERITSEETEARMBERBRLELERZE ST EN(F AR ERAD(GB/T 2589-2020) £1TH&H -

2 Direct (Scope 1) greenhouse gas emissions is calculated in accordance with the 2019 Revision to the IPCC 2006 Guidelines for National
Greenhouse Gas Inventory published by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).
BEEEBD)REREHINERERMNERIEZ(EFEZE® (PCC) FIEMPCC 20064 B F )R = [ 888 FHEB2019E 5] i) #1712
o

3 Indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions is calculated according to the Average CO2 Emission Factor of China's Regional Grid in
2011 and 2012 issued by the National Development and Reform Commission.

M EE ) AEARHINERBERRERNNEZEGEMNCQONEAMNFTERAEFATH AR RE FIETHE -

4 The total electricity consumption in 2021 was significantly lower than that in 2020, as some employees worked from home during certain

periods due to the impact of the epidemic.

RREFE FHBIROBRERZMA M _T_—FELAREER_T_TFEARBMERE -
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CONTENT INDEX OF ENVIRONMENTAL, BRACORE - ERERKREED
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING RAERG

GUIDE OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

Indicators Details Report Content Index
EE #F15 KERBRS
A. Environmental
A RE
Aspect Al: Emissions
BEA: SEBY
General Disclosure Emission reduction
—RIRE N 7
A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data Emission reduction
BE ) 7 $R N AE R HE IR BUR e B
Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and indirect energy (Scope 2) greenhouse gas Emission reduction
emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. Sustainable development
per unit of production volume, per facility) performance
BEE@EEOLRBEERESE D) AERBAERE (B E) k(0 BFEYER
BR)EE(MASESEMN  SEREFTHE) ARBEREAR
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Emission reduction
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility) Sustainable development
ﬁﬁ?ﬂiﬁif‘%%?@i(u\ Wt E) R (ER)ZE(WMAESESEAM - &  performance
AR AT H) B {EC HE A
AFEERERR
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Emission reduction

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility) Sustainable development

FFEABREREEMRE UBE)R(NER)EE (WMAEESAM -8  performance

BEREE B 1K BE AR
ARFEBEERRR
A15 Emissions targets set and steps taken to achieve them Green development
AT BEMER R R RERE LB EMERIRN LR Emission reduction
meER
e K BE X
Al.6 The methods for handling hazardous and non-hazardous waste, the Green development
waste reduction targets set and steps taken to achieve them Emission reduction
BREABENEEEEVNT L AR YNREERERRSEIEE EER
BRI SRR 2 B B¢ {EC BE I
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Indicators Details

BEE B3

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EEA2:ERER

General Disclosure

—RKE

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas
or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility)

RENESMEER /XRZELR(WE [l ERECATHET
EBFAEIREE(MABEESEN  BHREE)

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility)

REKENEEMNMASESEN  BERKRETH)

A2.3 Energy efficiency targets set and steps taken to achieve them

P RT3 H) BE IR (E A A 25 B AR M B 15 L B AR AT SR AN AN 2 BB

A2.4 Any problems in obtaining suitable water sources, the water efficiency
targets set and steps taken to achieve them

SEUE B KR LRI B AE R R
B B AT IR R 2 B

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and,

AR PRI AR m B IR R RES

applicable, with reference to per unit produced

HXmPIBERMHNEEUAEAE) M(MER) BEEEMLE

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEAI:RERARER

General Disclosure

~BRE

if

|

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment

and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them

EBEHEHRENRAERNEAFELRCRKREEFEZENTH

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEAL: RIRE

General Disclosure
— =

A4 Material climate-related matters that have and may have an impact on
the issuer, and actions to address them

ERRAEEHETAELEZENEARGHEBEE  REHTH

Report Content Index
BERBRS

Use of Resources

BIRE A

Use of Resources

Sustainable development
performance

BIRE A

AFEERRR

Use of Resources

Sustainable development
performance

BIRfE M

ARBERRR

Green development

Use of Resources

HEeRR

BIRE R

Green development

Use of Resources

FEER

BIRGER

Not applicable: The
Company'’s business does
not involve the use of
packaging material

TER : RRARWEB IR
BEMEHE R

Emission reduction

B K B IR

Emission reduction
Safety Risk Control
B K Bk 1K

ZERAREE

Emission reduction

B K B X

Emission reduction

B K BF X
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Aspect B1: Employment
BB : &R

General Disclosure Compliance with
— MR EE employment management

EHRERER

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type(e.g. full-time or part- Compliance with
time), age group and geographical region employment management
RS EEEA (N BRE)  Ficdn Kb RE D E S L2 Sustainable development
performance
ERERER
AREERERR

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region Compliance with
IR - FERAR M EE DA EERKL X employment management
Sustainable development
performance
EHERER
ARFEERRE

General Disclosure Safe operations management
— R ER RREEERE

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities in each of the past three Safety and health protection
years (including the reporting year) Sustainable development
BEZFBRERFRE)BFRAITHMNAR KL X performance
ZERBERRE
AREBEBRRRR

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury Safety and health protection
AIEEAXIERH Sustainable development
performance
ZE2REERE
ARHEERRDE

B2.3 The occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they Safety and health protection
are implemented and monitored T2 RERE

PR ERFERET2HE UREERTRERT A
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Aspect B3: Development and Training
EmEB3 : & & K&

General Disclosure Employee development and
—RIRE training
BT #REE
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee Employee development and
category (e.g. senior management, middle management) training
RUERNLEERMN(NMESRERRE HREEES)EODHXIEER Sustainable development
pald performance
BTHEREZI
AREERERR
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and Employee development and
employee category training
ZMRIRESHENE S  BEEEBTKZINE TR Sustainable development
performance
BTERE
ARBERERR

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
fEEB4 : 55 T %A

General Disclosure Compliance with
— M= employment management
ERERER
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child Compliance with
and forced labour employment management
A BRI AR RE T RoabssT ERERERE
B4.2 The steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered Compliance with
FEEIRERIB AR HERA BB LT ERIE 2 R employment management
BRERER

REBNERBERBERD R 99
2021 &R



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EmEBS: HEEER

General Disclosure Supplier management

—RIEE HEmER

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region Supplier management

BRI ONHEEEE Sustainable development
performance

HrEmeE R
AREERRR

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of Supplier management

suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they f & i% & 2
are implemented and monitored

MABRERAHERNED  RMERTERENNHEEMEE UKk
EABHNMITRERAE

B5.3 Description of practices for identifying environmental and social risks Supplier management
at each stage of the supply chain, and how they are implemented 1 & 7 & 12
and monitored
BB EEEGERANIRREREERARONED - URBBEHR
TRERTE

B5.4 Description of the management relating to promoting the use of Supplier management
environmentally friendly products and services in the selection of ft & & 12
suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored

Mt EREHEFSRESARREMRRBENER - ARBAHT
MERTE
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
EEBs:EmEME

General Disclosure

—RIKE
B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls

forsafety and health reasons

EEXCEXEMARARTAR2EEFEEAMARKANE DL

Number of products and service related complaints received and how

they are dealt with

BERBARERERBORFEEARES X

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting

intellectual property rights

1 22 4 R N AR PR N B EE R R R R 1B D)

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures

WhEERTBREREMRLCWERF

Customer services

EE R

Not applicable: The
Company's business
does not involve product
recycling

TERA ARANEB IR
7 fm 13 1Y

Customer services

& F R

Not applicable: The
Company’s business does
not involve intellectual
property

NERA : ARRIHER T R
R EE

Not applicable: The
Company’s business
does not involve quality
inspection and product
recall

TEA RARRNEB IR
EERENEMAE

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they Customer services

are implemented and monitored

HEEBBRERMEBERE  URBEERTRERTE

&P R
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EEB7 : R&ES

General Disclosure Compliance with laws and
— MR EE regulations
SRR R
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought Compliance with laws and
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and  regulations
the outcomes of the cases AR R
RERBAHBETAXHEERLEIECEENE SFARMTNRE R
IS
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, Compliance with laws and
and how they are implemented and monitored regulations
DEE Rk BRET  UREERTRERSE STERR
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and Compliance with laws and
employees. regulations
mimEERETRAENRESHEI - SPERR

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EEBS: HERE

General Disclosure Community participation

— MR E Rt

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, Community participation

labour needs, health, culture, sport) it

ErEREB(NHE RBRRFE -BIFTRK -BE - 8BF

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area Sustainable development
EETHERMBAER(NEBHFRE) performance

AREBEERRR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

mazars

To the shareholders of
Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited (the
"Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 111 to 227, which comprise the consolidated
December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

statement of financial position as at 31

the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

R T

42nd Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong
EBEBRBEISEMIEES42E
Tel Z3FE : +852 2909 5555

Fax {&8K : +852 2810 0032
info@mazars.hk

www.mazars.hk

BAREBAMENEROGERAA
(REEEHSTMH L2 HRLAE)
Bl B 3R

=r
=

EEEBERANEINE27E R E BN IER
BOERAR(TEATR ) REKBEAR (GHE&
S8 zHEMBHRE  HPERER-_T_—F
ToA=+T—HAZBEAMBHRARRARBEZ
HEFEZHEAEEKRGER  SKEeBaEIPXR
LGERERER  UREEVBRMKRWE -
BRIESTERME -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to the "Going concern basis” section in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements concerning the
adoption of the going concern basis on which the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared. The Group incurred
loss of HK$70,738,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021
and, as at that date, the Group had net current liabilities and net
liabilities of approximately HK$156,506,000 and HK$440,347,000
respectively. These conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and, therefore that it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The
directors, having considered the measures being taken by the
Group as disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, are of the opinion that the Group would be able
to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would result from a failure of
achieving the measures. We consider appropriate disclosures
have been made in this respect. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“"Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREETER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

W* BERREZHE

Refer to notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements

BREE I BEIREN iF4R15

The property, plant and equipment with carrying
amounts at 31 December 2021 in aggregate of
HK$129,546,000 as disclosed 15 to the
statements were tested for

in note
consolidated financial
impairment because impairment indications were
identified. Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment of HK$12,676,000 is recognised for the year
then ended.

FREMBHMEMTISAEENRE  BMERRER_ZTZ
—F+ A=+ —HAZEEES X /129,546,0008 T E
ETREANR REALRBETR BEEALFE
R - B E KR E & 1812,676,000% 7T

The Group engaged an independent professional
valuer to assess the recoverable amounts of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), which involved fair value
calculations.
EEEZEBVEEGEMTIEReELEEM(REE
EBEN OB eE  ER PR AFETE -

The impairment test of property, plant and equipment
required significant judgement and estimations and the
determination of the level at which impairment should
be tested. Given the significance of the amount and
judgement involved, the impairment assessment is
considered as a key audit matter.

ME- -BELZEBZRENATEE RABHRER
ErTRETRENAZER -ERFREANTRE LA
b - REFERAE R HBRESEFE -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZEMBE

RREETEEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
REFTTEEBERENEEZLE

Our procedures, among others, included:
EENREFEFETARR:

— Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology in estimating the recoverable
amounts of those assets;

ARG ZFEEZAI RO BRER 2HE
HERBRE:
Assessing the competence, objectivity,
capabilities and results of the work of the
independent professional valuer that was
appointed by the management to assist
management in determining the recoverable
amount of relevant CGUs;

HHEREMZEBLEXMAEMCER TE

B ORISR BDHEREEECARES
EEEM ARG S5 :

Challenging the independent professional valuer
the methodologies and judgments used in valuing
the recoverable amount of CGUs;
FBZEXRHEMRGERSEESEM 27 EK
SREMAIIER AR HE R

Engaging auditor’'s expert to assist us in
assessing the reasonableness of assumptions
and judgements used by management and the
independent external valuer; and
ZEZBMER B E SN EEEE BN
HEMBRLRHAGMAREEE &
Assessing the competence, objectivity,
capabilities and results of the work of the
auditor’s expert.
FEZBMER2ER TEE RARTHES
£

BERMENBEROERDT

2021 3R 1 05



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BEETER

Impairment of trade receivables
BZEWEZ 0 E

Refer to notes 4, 21 and 33(a) to the consolidated
financial statements

DE G EREXN 24 21K33(a)

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables
amounted to HK$24,479,000 as at 31 December 2021
(net of loss allowance of HK$3,514,000).
R-E_—F+-A=+—8"
Z BRTEIE 7324,479,0007% 7T (£ H1 k5 B 18 5 18 3,514,00078
7T) e

Loss allowances for trade receivables are based on
management’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit

losses to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into —

account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue
trade receivables, customers’ repayment history and
customers’ financial position and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions,
all of which involve a significant degree of management
judgement. Given the significance of the amount and
judgement involved, the impairment assessment is
considered as a key audit matter.
BORKRFBEZERBRBHIUNEBEBHEESX 22
EHEEFRBE EGRERE  2HRAGEEFRE K
ZREEERLR BHESERUFTEREK FTFPE
TS 8k N B P 2 BE R IR 5 BA K ¥t B AT K TEDRI B B8 O
MR A RRIEL G P EREEN I RERESE
RNl - ERFRERNCERALE - BEFHRER
—FERAREAEE-
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
REFTTEEBRENESEZLE

Our procedures, among others, included:

EENEFEEETER:

Discussing with the management the Group’s
credit control policy and credit terms granted to
the customers;

HERENw BXREzZEERBERERAEP
BRHZzEES:

Evaluating the management’s loss allowance

assessment of trade receivables, including
reviewing the ageing information, past repayment
patterns and the information of future economic
condition;
AZEREHEIREFEBEREBE TG &
BREFRKERS  BEERT A RARKLEMRR
a5

Assessing the critical judgements made by the
management regarding the factors considered
during the loss allowance assessment; and
HHEEERTEEREGRAMERRAREDL
ZERHE R

Inspecting subsequent cash receipts from
customers relating to those balances as at 31
December 2021, on a sample basis.

MERER T —F+ A=t —RHZZFHE
HEBREER 2 EPREHIE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information in
the 2021 annual report of the Company but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement

of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

R T
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 March 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is:

So Chun Wai

Practising Certificate number: P07513
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEWER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2021 2020
—B=-—F —T_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T TH T
Continuing operations FREREXRE
Revenue Uy & 6 908,411 2,042,991
Cost of revenue W 25 B AR (901,216) (2,010,726)
Gross profit E 7 7,195 32,265
Other income H b Y A 7 8,577 21,159
Administrative expenses THAX (36,829) (37,246)
Finance costs b & AN 8 (36,938) (51,514)
Reversal of impairment loss on B RWFIAREER
trade receivables £ @l 33(a)(iii) - 3,380
Impairment loss on property, plant ME - BERZEZRE
and equipment, net BB 15 (12,676) (21,921)
Provision for inventories GERE - (2,250)
Loss before taxation from BFEREEK KRB A
continuing operations BiE 9 (70,671) (56,127)
Taxation i 18 1 (67) 155

Loss for the year from continuing FEREEBZFRE R

operations (70,738) (55,972)
Discontinued operations BRIEEEXEK
Profit for the year from AR E R ETEE AR T

discontinued operations = 623,895
(Loss) Profit for the year FER(EE)ER (70,738) 567,923

Other comprehensive income Httz2mHWK = (BE)

(loss)
Items that are reclassified B & 3 5 3 3 Al g R
or may be reclassified to HERHEFT D EE
profit or loss in subsequent Bam s HE -
periods:
Exchange difference arising BMEBINEBEEZ
from translation of foreign ME 3 2% 7R
operations 12,935 (1,627)
Reserve released upon the HE—HNE AR %
disposal of a subsidiary 7 B 5 1 = 2,067
12,935 440
Total comprehensive (loss) FrREE(BR)BEAE
income for the year (57,803) 568,363

REBNENERHAERAR 111
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ReEZHEKER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

(Loss) Profit attributable
to equity holders of the
Company:

ARBRERFBEAES
(BR)EF

2021
—_E_—fF

HK$'000
FTER

2020
—E-THF

HK$'000
TAET

— from continuing operations — REFBEEEK (73,472) (60,263)
— from discontinued — REBRILEEED
operations = 623,895
(73,472) 563,632
Profit attributable to non- FEREREMER:
controlling interests:
— from continuing operations — REFBEEEK 2,734 4,291
— from discontinued — REERIEREET
operations - -
2,734 4,291
Total comprehensive (loss) UTATEER2E(EE)
income attributable to: Wz
— Owners of the Company — AR alHEA A (61,497) 562,025
— Non-controlling interests — FETERRER 3,694 6,338
(57,803) 568,363
(Loss) Earnings per share AKATEZEEAEM
attributable to equity holders BR(EE)ERN
of the Company
Basic and diluted EAXRREE
— from continuing operations — REFBEKEED (5.70) HK cents  (4.68) HK cents
(5.70) 7 1L (4.68) 71
13
— from discontinued — REERIEREET 48.44 HK cents
operations 13 - 484471

(5.70) HK cents
(5.70) 7 1L

43.76 HK cents
4376711
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R R

At 31 December 2021 RZZ-_—F+-_A=+—H

A

—_E_—F

HK$'000
FTEx

2020
—E-THF

HK$'000
TAET

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WE KK 15 129,546 118,714
Goodwill EES 16 1,296 1,296
Interest in an associate R—EBE R 2R 17 - -
Right-of-use assets CRAEAE 18 43,167 42,398
Prepayments in relation to BmE - BMEERRZEZ
property, plant and equipment AR 19 5,296 5,369
179,305 167,777
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 20 9,760 9,629
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E e U IR 21 210,656 231,050
Pledged bank deposits EEMRITFR 22 - 218,565
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRIRE 25,493 16,107
245,909 475,351
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5K H R FRIE 23 379,128 393,025
Current portion of bank and other #8747 & H fth & & 2 B1 Hj
borrowings i 24 23,287 402,334
402,415 795,359
Net current liabilities BREBEE (156,506) (320,008)
Total assets less current liabilities EEERBABERE 22,799 (152,231)
Non-current liabilities IRBEE
Amount due to an associate B — B E AR 2 RIE 23(e) 37,259 35,883
Amount due to a connected e — M E AR 25K E
company 23(c) = 135,075
Non-current portion of bank and $R{T R H b {EE Z IERIHA
other borrowings 2 24 424,290 57,804
Deferred tax liabilities BREBIEEE 25 1,597 1,551
463,146 230,313
NET LIABILITIES BEE (440,347) (382,544)
REBHNIEREBRABERAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ra BB AR R

At 31 December 2021 RZZE-_—F+_-_HA=+—H

2021 2020
—®=——F —E-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET

Capital and reserves BEXARFE
Share capital N 26 12,880 12,880
Reserves feé 18 (479,864) (418,367)

Total equity attributable to equity ZNA &) # @ 158 A AL #

holders of the Company B (466,984) (405,487)
Non-controlling interests FEIERRE S 14 26,637 22,943
TOTAL DEFICITS B AL 4 R (440,347) (382,544)
These consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to MREBMNMBEERRIEN G BREER
227 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of TE-FZA-+MEKEES AR
Directors on 24 March 2022 and signed on its behalf by: BETE WHUTATREES:

Yuan Qingfeng Yang Yue Xia
RE# BHE
Director Director

EE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRBSEHR

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

— =

(Note 26)
(K #E26)

Share
capital
B&
HK§'000
:F

(Note 28(a))
(I %28(a)

Share
premium
&
HK$'000
TAT

Attributable to equit

(Note 28(b))
(i E28(b))

Capital
reserve
B
HK$'000
Fan

(Note 28(c))
(P 3£28(c))

Exchange
reserve
B
HK$'000
TAL

holders of the Company

N

(Note 28(d))
8(d))

Statutory
reserve
7 ik 1
HK$'000
TRT

(Note 28(e))
HiE28(e)

Other
reserve
it
HK§'000

THT

Accumulated

losses

Total

Non-

controlling

EEY

FEkESE B

HK$'000
TBTL

Total
deficits

HK$'000
TAT

At 1 January 2020 WZZZZ5-F-H 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (27,250) 833 9151 (1,138,906) (967,512) 16,605 (950,907)
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - 563,632 563,632 4,09 567923
Other comprehensive income A2ERE
Exchange difference arising BERNERELL
from translation of foreign EXER
operations - - - (3,674) - - - (3,674) 2,047 (1,627)
Reserve released upon disposal ~ h&E—HIBAR%
of a subsidiary RREE - - - 2,067 - - - 2,067 - 2,067
- - - (1,607) - - - (1,607) 2,047 440
Total comprehensive income 2ERHEE - - - (1,607) - - 563,632 562,025 6,338 568,363
Transactions with owners BEFAZRS
Contributions and distributions &R
Appropriation to statutory reserve AR Z % T - - - - 749 - (749) - - -
At 31 December 2020 W-B-BF
+ZR=t-R 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (28,857) 1,582 (9151) (576,023) (405,487) 22,943 (382,544)
REBHNEREBRGERAH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN

REEREER

EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

(Note 26) (Note 28(a))

(i 5E26)

Share

capital
&
HK$'000
TR

(M3 28(a))

Share
premium
RHERE
HK$'000

TER

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KAAEREEAESE

(Note 28(b)) (Note 28(c) (Note 28(d))

(PsE28b)  (Mi&Eas(c) (M &E28(d)

(Note 28(e))
+28(e))
Capital  Exchange  Statutory Other Accumulated
losses
2 ER
HK$'000
TER

reserve
EXRE
HK$000

TR

reserve
EiffE
HK$'000

TER

reserve
ki
HK$'000

TR

reserve
Htff
HK$'000

TET

Total
E-HY
HK$'000
TER

Non-
controlling
interests
FERER
HK$'000
TER

Total
deficits
FHaR
HK$'000
TER

At 1 January 2021 W-%=-%-A-AH 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (28,857) 1,582 (9,151) (576,023)  (405,487) 22943 (382,544)
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = = (73,472) (73,472) 2,734 (70,738)
Other comprehensive income Eth2ERE
Exchange difference arising BERNEBEEL
from translation of foreign ERZR
operations = = = 11975 = = = 11975 960 12,935
= = = 11,975 = = = 11975 960 12,935
Total comprehensive loss ABRESR - - - 11975 - - (73,472) (61,497) 3,694 (57,803)
Transactions with owners BERAZRS
Contributions and distributions &R 7
Appropriation to statutory reserve A& A E B - - - - 138 - (138) - - -
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-%
+-ZA=1-H 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (16,882) 1,720 (9,151) (649,633)  (466,984) 26,637 (440,347)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BERERER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2021 2020
—B-—fF —TZEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEEH
Cash used in operations EEEEFTAE ¢ 29(a) (173,154) (141,311)
Interest paid B F B (22,306) (39,827)
Tax paid B IE (67) (262)
Net cash used in operating RETHMARESEH
activities (195,527) (181,400)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Interest received 2 UWF B 2,921 14,744
Decrease in pledged bank deposits & # # R 1717 FUR 2 221,820 192,488
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME - WERRHE
equipment (1,323) (4,947)
Prepayment for purchase of BEME WMERRHEZE
property, plant and equipment NE/ S 229 (447
Net cash outflow on disposal of a & — @B AR~
subsidiary W& w5 - (1,759)
Proceed on disposal of financial HERAFEFABRZZS
assets at FVPL BEEMSRA - 89,100
Purchase of financial asset at FVPL M EZRAFEFABZZ S
g E = (85,725)
Net cash from investing activities REZFBFERESFHE 223,647 203,460
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
New bank borrowings FTERTTIE K - 33,750
Repayment of unlisted secured BEEIF LD AEMRES
bonds (388,630) -
Net proceeds from placing of listed & LM{EAERERES
credit enhanced guaranteed FTi5 s IE 58
bonds 370,056 -
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEERE (608) (837)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (49) (63,044)
Repayment of loan from a third BEREE=FZEXR
party - (12,014)
Net cash used in financing METBHARSFE
activities 29(b) (19,231) (42,145)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and IR & KIR&EE WL M

cash equivalents Crk ) 558 8,889 (20,085)
Cash and cash equivalents at FReRREeZEBY

beginning of year 16,107 35,296
Effect on exchange rate changes  [EX&EH) 2 & 497 896

Cash and cash equivalents at end FARIRERREEEY

of year, represented by bank (ARITE R K
balances and cash "R~ 25,493 16,107
Major non-cash transactions: FTEFRERH:

Acquisitions costs of property, plant & A H b & FRIEH W% -
and equipment recorded under T 55 % 3% O BB B K AR
other payable 29,487 -

REBNERBERBERD R 117
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

118

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
13 September 2011 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of the registered office of the Company
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of
business is located at Unit 1009, Exchange Tower, 33 Wang
Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are detailed in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company
and its subsidiaries are herein collectively referred to as
the "Group”. In the opinion of the directors, the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company is Dafeng
Port Overseas Investment Holdings Limited ("Dafeng Port
Overseas”), which is incorporated in Hong Kong.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise indicated.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting policies
adopted in the 2020 consolidated financial statements
except for the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that
are relevant to the Group and effective from the current
year as detailed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. A summary of the principal accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$156,506,000 (2020:
approximately HK$320,008,000) and net liabilities of
approximately HK$440,347,000 (2020: approximately
HK$382,544,000) respectively. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and, therefore, the Group may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.
Notwithstanding the aforesaid conditions, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis on the assumption that the Group
is able to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable
future. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group can meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due within the next twelve months, after taking into
consideration of the measures and arrangements made by
the Group as detailed below:

(i)  the Group is in negotiation with financial institutions
or connected parties for the renewals of the Group's
short term bank and other borrowings upon expiry,
obtaining new borrowings and applying for future
credit facilities;

(i) the Company has obtained a RMB1 billion financial

support (equivalent to HK$1,224,000,000) in formal
I#HAXEEEEREEERAA
(Jiangsu Dafeng Harbour Holdings Limited*, “Jiangsu

writing from

Dafeng”), a connected company which has 40%
equity interests in Dafeng Port Overseas; and

2.
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Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

120

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Going concern basis (Continued)

(i) the Group is expected to generate adequate cash
flows to maintain its operations.

Subsequent to the year end, the Group has negotiated
with JT# 3 )1% A B R A F* (Jiangsu Huahai Investments
Limited, “Jiangsu Huahai”) for the extension of the amount
due to Jiangsu Huahai of approximately HK$157,596,000.
According to the loan extension agreement dated 14
March 2022, the maturity date of the amount due was
extended to 1 November 2023. Also, the Group has
negotiated with the Jiangsu Dafeng for the extension
of the amount due to Jiangsu Dafeng of approximately
HK$22,859,000. According to the loan extension
agreement dated 16 March 2022, the maturity date was
extended to 31 October 2024.

The directors have prepared a cash flow forecast covering
a period up to 31 December 2022 on the basis that
negotiation with financial institutions and connected
parties for the renewals of the Group's borrowings and
credit facilities would be successful, and are satisfied that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due within the
twelve months from 31 December 2021. Accordingly, the
directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether the directors of the Company will
be able to achieve its plans and measures as described
above. Whether the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern would depend upon the Group's ability to
generate adequate financing and operating cash flows
in the near future, and to obtain the continuous financial
support from its connected parties.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
restate the values of assets to their estimated recoverable
amounts, to provide further liabilities that might arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The
effects of these potential adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

* The official name is in Chinese and the English name is translated

for identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following
new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
and 16 — Phase 2

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and
16: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result
of the interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The
amendments complement those issued in November 2019
and relate to:

J changes to contractual cash flows — a company
will not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying
amount of financial instruments for changes required
by the Reform, but will instead update the effective
interest rate to reflect the change to the alternative
benchmark rate;

o hedge accounting — a company will not have to
discontinue its hedge accounting solely because it
makes changes required by the Reform, if the hedge
meets other hedge accounting criteria; and

o disclosures — a company will be required to disclose
information about new risks arising from the reform
and how it manages the transition to alternative
benchmark rates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

4.

122

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical costs.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting year as that of the
Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event
of liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or
at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share
in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are initially measured at fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to the owners of the Company and
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
determined at the date when control is lost and (i)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests at the date when control is lost. The amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for
on the same basis as would be required if the Company
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and
any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture
or others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether
it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the elements of
control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

4.

124

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Subsidiaries

In the Company’s statement of financial position, which
is presented in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, an investment in subsidiaries is stated at
cost less impairment loss. The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on
an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.
Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The Group's interest in associate is accounted for
under the equity method of accounting, except when
the investment or a portion thereof is classified as
held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of the investee's net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment. Except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses when
the Group's share of losses of the investee equals or
exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the investee,
which includes any long term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the investee.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in the investees,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
measured at the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of any previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of
the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if
any, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as an income from bargain purchase.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
that comprises operations and cash flows that can be
clearly distinguished, operationally and for financial
reporting purposes, from the rest of the Group.
It represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is
a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when the
operation is abandoned.
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126

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant
and equipment, and where the cost of the item can be
measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of the asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives from the date on which they are
available for use and after taking into account of their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

3'/3%-10%
3'/3%-10%
Over the unexpired term

Buildings

Storage facilities

Leasehold improvements
of lease

Furniture, fixtures and 6.8%-20%

equipment

20%-25%

Computer equipment 20%

Terminal and related auxiliary 2.5%-3.5%

facilities

Motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes all construction expenditure and other
direct costs, including interest costs, attributable to
such projects. Costs on completed construction works
are transferred to the appropriate asset category. No
depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended
use.

Impairment of other assets, other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indicator that its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets may be impaired or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment losses is
recognised as income in profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition and reversal of
impairment loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting
policy for goodwill in the earlier part of this note.
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128

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis except for financial
assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVPL") which are accounted for on the settlement
date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from
the financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the
financial asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
or (b) it neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but
it does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises the
financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (i) debt investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at FVPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group's business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first annual reporting period following the
change in the business model (the “reclassification date”).

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is
assessed for classification.

1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of

the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and bank and other borrowings. All financial
liabilities, except for financial liabilities at FVPL, are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses ("ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost, Mandatory FVOCI, lease receivables,
contract assets, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts issued to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected
life of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flows that are
due to an entity under the contract and the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or
more shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(iii)  nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the financial instrument, except
in the case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may
not receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if
the financial instrument that meets any of the following
criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group); or

(i)  there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account in the assessment:

the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

o actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.
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4. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i)  the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

Simplitied approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL. The
Group recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL
at each reporting date and has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at
a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past
due based on historical experience of recoveries of similar
assets. The Group expects no significant recovery from
the amount written off. However, financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts
due, taking into account legal advice if appropriate. Any
subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

136

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value, net of bank overdrafts.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group
is as follows:

Integrated logistics handling services business
Trading business
Petrochemical products storage business

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same
pattern of transfer to the customer.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

4.

TES

EI,I_'

B (®)

REEEY
IARBHRERERMNE RESEMEA

ERERSEANRecHAEEZHAR
REZEHSRPUERERRITES

Uy &% 7 B

BERVBEREENEISREIEFEN
iy

EmeREEE
AEEREHERIRBZEEDT
AR AW BRI RS E T
BHER
AlEEMBRER
B & (T
RAENFRBRE  AEREFGHREPITLZ
BRMARE RIREIL A T FIE R
—HREBTEPZERNARER -—REN
BiE:

@ —HEAREGRIRE G —HEMK
RTE) ¢ =

(b) —FRINKREBAERBRERZAER
TEPZARE REIRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Identification of performance obligations (Continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct
if both of the following criteria are met:

(@)  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources
that are readily available to the customer (i.e. the
good or service is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of
the contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is
transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of
that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation
and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance
as the Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example, work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

(c) the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset, and customer acceptance.

Sale of goods is recognised at a point in time at which
the customer obtains the control of the promised asset,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered to customers and the title is passed.

Service income of integrated logistics handling services
and petrochemical products storage services is recognised
over time when services are rendered.

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation
can be reasonably measured, the Group applies the
output method (i.e. based on the direct measurements
of the value to the customer of the goods or services
transferred to date relative to the remaining goods
or services promised under the contract) to measure
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation because the method provides a
faithful depiction of the Group's performance and reliable
information is available to the Group to apply the method.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably
measure the outcome of the performance obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)
The principal input applied in the output method is:

—  Storage services for petrochemical products: number
of days of the usage of the storage services.

— Integrated logistics handling services: duration of the
vessels being berthed at the port.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised
using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the assets while it is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss allowance)
in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration,
or the Group has a right to an amount of consideration
that is unconditional, before the Group transfers a good
or service to the customer, the contract is presented
as a contract liability when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the
Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. Contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities
(Continued)

For the trading business, it is common for the Group
to receive from the customer the whole or some of the
contractual payments before the services are completed or
when the goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue
recognition for such transactions). The Group recognises a
contract liability until it is recognised as revenue. During
that period, any significant financing components, if
applicable, will be included in the contract liability and
will be expensed as accrued unless the interest expense
is eligible for capitalisation.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
Cost,

purchase and, where applicable, other costs that have

realisable value. which comprises all costs of
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, is calculated using the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period of the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in the currency of Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of each of the Group’s entities
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

The results and financial position of all the group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the end of reporting period;

— Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
rates;

—  All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

— On the disposal of a foreign operation, which
includes a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, a disposal involving the loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest is no longer equity-accounted
for, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to the foreign operation that
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
gain or loss on disposal is recognised;
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

—  On the partial disposal of the Group's interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
the separate component of equity is re-attributed
to the non-controlling interests in that foreign
operation and are not reclassified to profit or loss;

and

—  On all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of associates that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence, the proportionate share
of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income over the years necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair
value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount
of obligation can be made. Expenditures for which a
provision has been recognised are charged against the
related provision in the year in which the expenditures
are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount provided is the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. Where the Group expects a provision
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as
a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-
term leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments
associated with these leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises:

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(c)  any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the
right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a
purchase option — in which case depreciation is provided
over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as
follows:

Office premises 2-3 years
Prepaid lease payment 45 years
Sea use right payment 42 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b)  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual

value guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

4.

FESHEE@

ME @
fEREMA )

BE1R - fE R E E R AR T A RE T
ELEMRGBESRNE AURHEER
BENERNEARFEFELHE -NEEH
MEREEEZGFAERFHZEES
BERLTRTE (GRIFRENEERS
RAKGEEEENMEREBREREER
el 62 PR 4R B FE B9 A AR IR BR R 4R (B S 1T fiE
BEEEE—MNZBERLT BREBE
EZEFAERFERRGRETE) DT

WMAEYE PEXES
BEAEENK 45%F
8 B8 AR 42

HERBENRNANMABABERARINZ
HENKRREETIRAE -

AAHERGENHEENRBETIIRN
HEHAERBEREENENBRFALR
B8R il R S AS 2 A 3

(@ BEEMRK(EEEE MR E MK R
ERERKEEES:

(b) BURR —EEHRLETZAZHEE
RN

© WREFNAKEBEEERBEHENZX
18

d BEEREENTEE(WRASEAE
BEITEZERN) &

) WIEMEMIRNRUHHEGRR
MRASETEEEELLIAE) -

BERMENBEROERDT

2021 3R 1 45



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

4.

146

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount
rate when there are changes to the lease payments arising
from a change in the lease term or the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a
change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in floating interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease
liability using a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the
measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises
any remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease

if

(@) the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as
a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease
modification,

(@) the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract on the basis of relative stand-
alone price as described above.

(b)  the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

(c) the Group re-measures the lease liability by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate over the revised lease term.

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope
of the lease, the Group accounts for the re-
measurement of the lease liability by decreasing
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to
reflect the partial or full termination of the lease and
recognising any gain or loss relating to the partial
or full termination of the lease in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

(e)  for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the re-measurement of the lease liability by
making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-
use asset.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

Contributions to the state-managed retirement schemes in
jurisdictions other than Hong Kong, which are calculated
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs,
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

No forfeited contributions for the above plans may be
used by the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a reserve within equity. The fair value is
determined using the binomial model, taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions (“vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year
of review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards that are conditional on a market
condition or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vested irrespective of whether or not the market condition
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all non-
market vesting conditions are satisfied.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at fair value
of the goods or services received, except where the fair
value cannot be reliably estimated, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. In all cases, the fair value is measured at the date
the Group obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the services.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Cash-settled transactions

A liability is recognised for goods or services acquired,
measured at the fair value of the liability. Until the liability
is settled, the fair value of the liability is remeasured
at the end of each reporting period and at the date of
settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss for the period.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss, it is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2021 #;

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of the parent of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of

which it is a part, provides key management

personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their best economic interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at the

measurement date

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the

consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at

the end of each reporting period.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described above, management has made various
estimates and judgements which are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated. The key source of estimation uncertainty
and accounting judgements that result in significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the next financial year
or significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements are discussed below:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(i) Going concern

As disclosed in note 2, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The appropriateness of the going concern
basis is assessed after taking into consideration all
relevant available information about future of the
Group, including cash flow forecasts of the Group.
Such forecasts inherently involve uncertainties.
Actual results could differ significantly and hence
render the adoption of the going concern basis
inappropriate.

(i) Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The management reviews the useful lives and
depreciation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of
each reporting period, through careful consideration
with regards to expected usage, wear-and-tear and
potential technical obsolescence to usage of the
assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the management has to assess whether an
event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be
determined by using higher of the value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is
determined using the discounted cash flow method.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables by using various
inputs and assumptions including risk of a default
and expected loss rate. The estimation involves high
degree of estimation and uncertainty which is based
on the Group's historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of
trade receivables. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used in estimating ECL are set out in note
33(a)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of property, plant and equipment

The Group estimates the fair value of its certain
property, plant and equipment (for impairment
purpose) with reference to valuations performed by
an independent professional valuer. The valuation
of property, plant and equipment is performed
using the depreciation replacement cost (“DRC")
approach. The DRC approach includes estimation
of construction as if building the similar structures,
adjusting for physical deterioration, obsolescence
and optimisation or referring to current market price
of the similar assets.

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Company assesses annually if investment
in subsidiaries has suffered any impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 and follows the guidance
of HKFRS 9 in determining whether amounts due
from these entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an estimation of
future cash flows, including expected dividends,
from the assets and the selection of appropriate
discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would
affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause
the adjustments of their carrying amounts.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework?

2018-2021 Cycle?

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’®

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’®

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction’®

Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of
HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 —
Comparative
Information?®

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
4 The effective date to be determined

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the
new/revised HKFRSs in the future period will have any
material impact on the results of the Group.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are identified
collectively as the chief operating decision maker. An
operating segment is a component of the Group that
is engaged in business activities from which the Group
may earn revenue and incur expenses, and is identified
on the basis of the internal management reporting
information that is provided to and regularly reviewed by
the Company’s executive directors in order to allocate

resources and assess performance of the segment.

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into the following operating segments:

Operating segments

5.

TEEERREZEARANTES - &
EOMIAEEZ B EAEEA
RBMELELERZBEELY L E
RARBRITEER/ROEBEREFAEDE
REMERHKETHERN ZARLEESR
BREMMEE -

Principal activities

g E FTEXK

For continuing operations

FEREED

— Trading business — Trading of electronic products, petrochemical
products, medical treatment and food disinfection
products etc.

— Provision of supply chain management services
— BHEH — BEEEfER ALER BEMARRBHSERS

— R R E IR AR

— Petrochemical products storage business —

products
REALCERR RERE

— AtERMBRRER —

For discontinued operations

ERIEEEXER

— Integrated logistics handling services —
— HAMREERE —

Provision of storage services for petrochemical

Provision of terminal handling services

1R A5 58 R 0 RS

BERMENBEROERDT
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Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

5.

158

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Company’s
executive directors monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segments assets include all assets except for corporate
assets which are managed on a group basis. All liabilities
are allocated to reportable segment liabilities other than
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities which are
managed on a group basis and certain other payables and
accrued charges.

Revenues and expenses are allocated to the operating
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments. The measure used for
reporting segment results is profit/loss before taxation
without allocation of share of results of associates and
other unallocated corporate expenses and income.

For the purpose of assessing the performance of the
operating segments and allocation of resources between
segments, the Group's results are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual segments
and other head office or corporate administration costs.

Inter-segment sales transactions are charged at prevailing
market prices.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oIER @

Operating segments ReEDH

Segment information is presented below: DEHEHENWT :

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—F+=-A=+—HLEFE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations

B#&LE

REKEXE RERY
Petro-

chemical  Integrated

products logistics Inter-

Trading storage handling segment
business business services  elimination Total
RLER &EUR
Eo%K RREEX REBRE 2BHM Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THER TER THERT THER

Revenue (from external customers) Wz (RBINEEF) 882,505 25,906 - - 908,411
Inter-segment revenue — HEEk S = = = = =
Total revenue Yz @ 882,505 25,906 = = 908,411
Results £
Segment results DEEE (1,174) (28,145) - - (29,319)
Other unallocated corporate Hitt R D BERAHBA

income 5,399
Other unallocated corporate i RHEARRAX

expenses (46,751)
Loss before taxation BRI AIEE (70,671)
Taxation H1A (67)
Loss for the year FREE (70,738)

REBHNIEREBRABERAA 159
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Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEIER @)
Operating segments (Continued) ReE&EDEHHE)

160

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—_Z2-_ZF+-_RA=+—HILFE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
B#&IE
BEx®
Petro-
chemical  Integrated
products logistics Inter-
Trading storage handling segment
business business services  elimination Total
RitEm HaWR
Bo%% EREBR RERE 5 HHEME i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT TAT TAT TAT
Revenue (from external customers) Wz (REINEEF) 2,018,759 24,232 6,870 - 2,049,861
Inter-segment revenue — D HE YR - - - - -
Total revenue LTk 2,018,759 24,232 6,870 - 2,049,861
Results E |
Segment results NBEE 3,535 (21,793) 618,640 - 600,382
Other unallocated corporate Hip R D EAFKA
income 2,747
Other unallocated corporate Hit RHERARAX
expenses (40,616)
Profit before taxation B B A A 562,513
Taxation Fi18 5,410
Profit for the year FNE R 567923

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Year ended 31 December 2021 &

o EBE K@)
reE D E)

5.

Discontinued

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRERME
E-F - Ft A=t BALFE

R-B=-—-F+=F=+—8H

Continuing operations operations

B

BFESEER RExk

Petro-

chemical Integrated

products logistics

Trading storage handling
business business services Total

AlLER RENR
ESE% RREH IR 2 R 7% 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT THERT

ASSETS 8E
Segment assets DEMEE 201,600 186,935 - 388,535
Unallocated corporate assets KD REEE = = = 36,679
Consolidated total assets REEERE 425,214
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities HEBEE (358,353) (117,345) - (475,698)
Unallocated corporate liabilities &% B AT &E - - - (389,863)
Consolidated total liabilities RAAERE (865,561)
REBHNEREBRGERAH
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Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEIER @)
Operating segments (Continued) ReE&EDEHHE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HLEE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
B&LE
BFEKSEER RExk
Petro-
chemical Integrated
products logistics
Trading storage handling
business business services Total
ALER REYR
S EREK BER® ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT THET
OTHER INFORMATION Htn &R
Capital additions BRI = 30,810 - 30,810
Depreciation of property, plant #% « B &= k&
and equipment e 177 12,633 = 12,810
Depreciation of property, plant #)% * B 5 k&% #
and equipment (unallocated)  ECKDE) = = = 165
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEENE
assets 112 1,151 = 1,263
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEEFRE
assets (unallocated) (RHHE) - - - 452
Finance costs BE AR 2,038 2,561 - 4,599
Finance costs (unallocated) MEKAR(KRHE) = - - 32,339
Impairment loss on property, %% - BE & & H#
plant and equipment, net HEEEZE - 12,676 - 12,676
Interest income FEBA 291 3 - 2914
Interest income (unallocated)  FBWA (KD ) = = - 7
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.

Operating segments (Continued)

At 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

o EBE K@)
reE D E)

RZBE_ZEF+_A=+—

Discontinued

H

Continuing operations operations
BRI
FEREERK REER
Petro-
chemical Integrated
products logistics
Trading storage handling
business business services
AL Em maEMm
BIEH BREH Bz 32 R 7 ECE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT THET THET
ASSETS gE
Segment assets DEMEE 446,434 161,770 - 608,204
Unallocated corporate assets RO AFEE - - - 34,924
Consolidated total assets RAEEYE 643,128
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities DHEEE (539,695) (82,278) - (621,973)
Unallocated corporate liabilities &% B AT & E - - - (403,699
Consolidated total liabilities ~ #RAAERE (1,025,672)
REBHNEREBRGERAH
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REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

OTHER INFORMATION Htn &R

Capital additions EAREM

Depreciation of property, plant #% « B E k&
and equipment nE

Depreciation of property, plant %% « B 5 k&% #
and equipment (unallocated) HEKRDE)
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEENE

assets
Depreciation of right-of-use EREBENE
assets (unallocated) (RDE)
Finance costs A& B AR

Finance costs (unallocated) BERKNRHE)
Impairment loss on property, Y% - BEKR&E

plant and equipment, net HEEERE
Reversal of impairment loss on & 5 [ 318

trade receivables, net REBEERFE
Provision for inventories FERE
Interest income B A

Interest income (unallocated)  FEWA (KD E)

5. DEEE @

me o

HEz—T—

Continuing operations

FECEET
Petro-
chemical
products
Trading storage
business business
AILEM
BHEH BRER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FTAT

588 4,359
620 7,710
331 880
19,404 2,995
- 21,921
3,380 -
2,250 -
14,732 -

(&)

TEL-AST-ALFE

Discontinued
operations
E#&IE
Rax®

Integrated
logistics

handling

services
= b
B B2 IR 7%
HK$'000
TAT

57

1,432

12,920

1,662

Total
BEt

HK$'000
FET

4,947

10,470

1,268

437
23,831
29115

34,841

5,042
2,250
14,732
12
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. o#HER @

Geographical information E &R

Geographical segment i & 5 B

The Group operates and derives revenue in two principal ANEE R R E = 2 R A SRS I B
geographical areas: Hong Kong and the People’s Republic w BAARPEARLNME((RE]) - T&
of China (the “PRC"). The following table sets out the HINBRBEZEPHIEBEMNE &5 2 R U

revenue derived from geographical areas which are based
on the geographical location of the customers:

2021 2020
=F=—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE T FAT
Revenue from external customers — REIMBEPR R —
continuing operations: RHEREER:
Hong Kong &5 542,900 1,834,330
The PRC H 345,922 201,164
Others (Note) HAth (B 7%) 19,589 7,497
908,411 2,042,991
Note: The locations of others include Europe, the United States of Mizt: HitbnReFEEN  E=MEERE (XD -
America (“U.S.A."), Asia (other than Hong Kong and the PRC), SN (EBRFER EIEREMIE -

South Africa and others.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. o#HER @
Geographical information (Continued) & &R )
Geographical segment (Continued) WE DI (E)
The geographical location of non-current assets is based NP EECHEBMNENZEE(EY
on the physical location of the assets, in the case of * BMELRBBR: BLWE - BENMRK
property, plant and equipment, prepayments in relation WeENRE: FAEEE)ZERNUE
to property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, and REEME(BEHEBR) - ANEBEKME
the location of the operation, in the case of goodwill. The UEBUREBELEEB LIIERDEEME
analysis of the Group's non-current assets of continuing DHTWT

operations by geographical location is as follows:

2021 2020
—EB-—f —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Property, plant and equipment M BERRZE
The PRC s 129,546 118,714

Prepayments in relation to property, MmE - BMEERREZ

plant and equipment B RIB
The PRC s 5,296 5,369
Goodwill GRS
The PRC i 1,296 1,296
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Hong Kong G 1,159 364
The PRC a3 42,008 42,034
43,167 42,398
Total non-current assets EREBEERE 179,305 167,777
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. o EE R )
Information about major customers FEEFEH
Revenue from customers contributing individually over EBERMAEERES10% U EHNER
10% or more of the Group's revenue are as follows: Wz T :
2021 2020
—®R_—F —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHE T
Customer A ZEA 153,632 N/A A~ i A
Customer B =FB N/A 138 A 343,588
Customer C BFEC N/A 138 A 221,407
Customer D =FED N/A 138 A 208,534
Revenue of HK$149,088,000 and HK$4,544,000 generated =P AE 4 B I %149,088,000 T &
from Customer A were from trading segment and 4,544,000 TR RIRBEEB S D B RALLE
petrochemical storage segment respectively. The revenue Eo& - BE_T_THF+_A=+—H
from Customer A was less than 10% of the Group's IEEE  REEPARNKRMEAEEH K=
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020. B L BIHE 7210% o
Customer B, C and D were from trading segment. The EFB CEDXREESH - HEZ
revenue from Customer B, C and D were less than 10% ——F+-_A=+—HItFE " KE%}E
of the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December B CRD&U &= 1h 78 & B Ut &5 &9t HIHE
2021. 7K10% °
REVENUE 6. Wi
2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Continuing operations FEREXR
Revenue from contracts with customers & /& Bf 3§ 3R & 2 B 55155%
within HKFRS 15 EEAEFAANE
Trading business BH5%EB 882,505 2,018,759
Petrochemical storage service A& @R 25,906 24,232
908,411 2,042,991
Timing of revenue recognition e SRR 28 B R
At a point in time 7 — 18 5 ) Bh 882,505 2,018,759
Over time R — B 25,906 24,232
908,411 2,042,991
The revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS EEMBRELAEISRBEEANT,EL
15 is based on fixed price. W ABEERAEE -
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Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

7.

168

OTHER INCOME

7. HW A

2021
—E-—F

HK$'000
FER

2020
—E-FTF
HK$'000
F& T

Continuing operations FERKEXK

Bank interest income RITH B U A 2,921 14,744

Exchange gain, net HE 5 U & % 2R 5,334 4,107

Sundry income I 322 192

Subsidy income AL A - 2,116
8,577 21,159

FINANCE COSTS

Continuing operations
Interest on borrowings wholly repayable

8. BERXK

ARAFARBBEEZ

2021
—_E_—F

HK$'000
FER

2020
—E-FTF
HK$'000
FE T

within five years BEZHE 2,561 2,261
Effective interest on unlisted secured FEMAEFEHFZ BERE
bonds (Note 24(c)) FI2 (K &£ 24(c) 8,108 33,955
Effective interest on listed credit THERAERERES
enhanced guaranteed bonds B R FE (K 5E24(d))
(Note 24(d)) 20,907 -
Interest on amounts due to connected FERTEE R B FHIE 2 F &
companies 1,836 11,040
Interest on loan from a connected RKE—HBEEARZEE
company ZHE 3,492 5,045
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEME 34 89
Total borrowing costs EEK AL 36,938 52,390
Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into & ¥ IN#E FHE AR
property, plant and equipment &% (ZE=F
at weighted average & 6'37‘%) ATHAR
capitalisation rate of Nil% {Eﬁ%% ) @%&
(2020: 6.37%) LA - (876)
36,938 51,514
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM 9. RHEREXBZRBAEE
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
This is stated after charging: KMBETIIEB RS :
2021 2020
—B=-—fF —E_FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Staff costs BIRAK
Salaries, allowances and other short- e EUERHEMEHE
term employee benefits including BN BREEEHM
directors’ emoluments 18,559 15,683
Contributions to defined contribution  F 2 &2
plans 3,194 1,294
21,753 16,977
Other items HitmE
Auditors’ remuneration % £ AN BN &
— Audit-related assurance services - BT E R 1,350 1,300
— Other services - B AR 7% 46 580
Cost of inventories T8 KA 868,575 1,976,189
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERZETE
equipment 12,975 8,333
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEFE 1,715 1,648
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HE¥ % - BER&E
equipment, net BB FE - 68
Lease charge — short term lease HERX —HHHEE 749 496
REEBNERERBERAR
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RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 10. EERAERBEFA LT ZHMH
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) EEHH
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and AEERAFERNREMNERT
payable to the directors of the Company by the EEEFBAENT:

Group during the year are as follows:
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-_-F+-A=+—-HLEFE

Salaries, Contributions
allowance to defined
Appointed Resigned and benefits Discretionary ~ contribution

during the year during the year Fee in kind bonus plans Total

& RER pFE:Lned
EREf FARE e EANE  BEGA FEER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR

Executive directors HTES
Mr. Tao Ying (Note a) 4 % (M sta) - - = = = = =
Mr. Chen Wen Xiang R E 10 May 2021

- “E--FIATH = 173 = = 173
Ms. Leng Panpan RAB R 12 August 2021

- ZEZ-5]BfZH - 294 - - 294
Non-executive directors ~ FHTES
Mr. Ji Longtao HEERE - - 240 = = = 240
Mr. Yang Yue Xia BHERE - - 240 = = - 240
Mr. Miao Zhibin BEREE - - 240 - - - 240
Independent non- BUFHNES

executive directors
Mr. Zhang Fangmao RAKEE - - 120 - - - 120
Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang ThEEL - - 120 = = = 120
Mr. Lau Hon Kee AEEKAE - - 180 = = - 180
Mr. Yu Xugang THAEE - - 120 = = - 120
1,260 467 = = 1,727

1 70 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

—EF+tZA=t—HILLFE

Year ended 31 December 2021 &

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(i)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

Appointed
during the year

FREZE

Resigned
during the year

FREE

(i)

Et=

10. EEREEBREHFALZHH
()

Esymam

BE-_Z-_ZF+=-HA=1+—HILL#F

B

Salaries,

allowance

and benefits

Fee

HK$'000
AT

in kind

3

fm
HK$000
TEL

Discretionary

Contributions
to defined
contribution

bonus plans

KL
HK$'000

HK$'000

B

Executive directors HTES
Mr. Shum Kan Kim nBREE 22 February 2020
- ZZZEF-A-tZH - 100 - 5 105
Mr. Miao Zhibin (Note b) £ 54 (R itb) - - - 960 - 29 989
Mr. Chen Wen Xiang B3k S - - - 480 - - 480
Mr. Tao Ying BeRrt - - - - - - -
Ms. Leng Panpan RBHLT 27 February 2020
ZECTHCACTHR - - 400 - - 400
Non-executive directors ~ FHTES
Mr. Ji Longtao FEELL - - 240 - - - 240
Mr. Yang Yue Xia BHERE - - 20 - - - 240
Mr. Sun Lin BmksE 20 February 2020
- ZBCZEZEZACTH 20 - - - 2
Mr. Miao Zhibin (Note b) 73 5% 4 (Kt 55 b) - - - - - - -
Independent non- BUFHNES
executive directors
Mr. Zhang Fangmao RAKEE - - 120 - - - 120
Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang ThkEREL - - 120 - - - 120
Mr. Lau Hon Kee BEEEE - - 180 - - - 180
Mr. Yu Xugang TEREE - - 120 - - - 120
1,040 1940 - u 301
Note a: Mr. Tao Ying resigned as executive director on 25 Mia: WEEER-T-__F-_A=+H
February 2022. HEFERTES -
Note b:  Mr. Miao Zhibin was re-designated from an executive Misgb: BEMELEN-_ET-_TE+-_F=
director to a non-executive director on 28 December TNEBEATESHERIENTE
2020. R
Note c:  Mr. Yuan Qingfeng has been nominated and appointed fistc: REBEEBEREREZECR/ANT
as an executive director and chairman of the Board with EFXREFEIR BT _F-
effect from 25 February 2022. AZ+HRBREEN -
REBHNEREBRGERAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBHRERM T

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(i) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group
to any of the directors as an inducement to join the
Group or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

The following director has waived or agreed to
waive his emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020:

Mr. Tao Ying (EE b

10. EERAERBEFA LT ZHMH

(&)

(i)

EEFM @

BE_Z_—§R-_Z_ZTF+_H
=T BLEEE ARELERET
MEE BB - (FRRS
MAREEL AR EBIEL 2 52
HIERBERM(E -

LTEEZENERREREFSE
BT FR-IF-FF+-_A=
+—BIEFEZHN:

2020
— = —95‘“55'E

HK$'000
FTER
960

HK$'000
TAET
960

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors
There were no other loans, quasi-loans or other
dealings in favour of the directors that were
entered into or subsisted during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

(iii)

After consideration, other than disclosed in note
the
directors are of the opinion that no transactions,

30 to the consolidated financial statements,

arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Company's business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company, or an entity connected with the directors,
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the years or at any time
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.
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(iii)
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ERREMRZS
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CYPERT PN 20
HREMRS -
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RERR BEAMBHRRMEI0
EEN EEZRH NERH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 10. EERAEEBRESHALZHM

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (#)

(Continued)

(iv) Five highest paid individuals (ivy ABBREH AL
The five highest paid individuals included one HE_T_—F+-_A=+—HIL*HF
director (2020: three directors) for the year ended B AaEeHFALEE—RES
31 December 2021. The aggregate amounts of the (ZETF - =%EF=F) WL (=T
emoluments in respect of the four (2020: two) non- —EFE MB)IEFATZHME
director individuals are as follows: FEIE -

2021 2020
=F=—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH T
Salaries and allowances e MR 1,580 1,462
Contributions to defined TE R KA IR
contribution plans 78 43
1,658 1,505
The numbers of the non-director individuals whose FRFMNTUTHE ZIEEEA
emoluments for the year were within the following EN &
bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 4 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,008 T =

1,500,000/ 7T - 1

4 2

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group BE_ZE-_—RK-_Z_FF+_A
to any of the five highest paid individuals as an =+—BLEFE AEBETERAR
inducement to join the Group or upon joining the EEREFATIASESTHHN - F
Group or as compensation for loss of office during BT MAREE S I AR EE %
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. ZEESERBEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

11. TAXATION 1. BIE
2021 2020
—B——F —FE_FF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Continuing operations BEREXL
Current tax: B EA R I8
Current year KEFE - 71
Under (Over) provision in BEFEBETR
prior year (EBRE ) 67 (60)
67 i
Deferred tax REBIE 25 - (166)
Total income tax expenses BRERKEXB2HRE
(credit) for continuing RER)BXHAE
operations 67 (155)
Discontinued operations ERIEREER
Deferred tax iR FE 7 IR - (5,255)
Total income tax expenses RIBERBAZAEHR
(credit) recognised in profit or (KR @5
loss 67 (5,410)
(i) Hong Kong Profits Tax (i) BEEANEHR
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated in accordance BEEMNGRIZNSH MRS TE -
with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under BEMNEGHMEH  cERKRER
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the profits tax H B8 52,000,000/ JT 2 1 5T FE &R
rate for the first HK$2 million of estimated assessable Biom Az 15 B B 2= PF £8.25% -
profits of the qualifying group entity is lowered to 2,000,000/ 7T LA F &9 4 51 FEBR TR
8.25% while the estimated assessable profits above FEBERI6SBDEB R - T
HK$2 million continue to be subject to the rate of HEaNEHMAREHEMEEER
16.5% for corporations. The profits of other group B HSH) 8 A B 1 B — T E16.5%
entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two- M o

tiered profits tax rates regime continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. TAXATION (Continued)

(i) Income taxes outside Hong Kong

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

BIE#®)

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT"). PRC EIT is calculated
at the prevailing tax rate at 25% on taxable income

determined in accordance with the relevant laws and

regulations in the PRC.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI") and the Cayman Islands,
the Group is not subject to any taxation under those

jurisdictions.

Reconciliation of tax expenses (credit) for

continuing operations

The tax expenses (credit) for the year can be reconciled
to the loss before taxation from continuing operations per

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

follows:

(i)

FABEMX (K R) BiGE
FEKEEBZBBABERERNT:

EBEINZFER

ATNZERHAADZRACK

BHRILKFBR) - FEL %
857 14 B 15
B B T 2 8 SR A $25% 2 17
BEHH

BERBELES(XBE L&
EDN - AEHBEZHABEHRG K
CEBESMNZERERRE ZEM
TIE -

FECEER RERT (ER)Y
iR

EElEERZ

2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
HK$'000

TAET

HK$'000
FEx

Continuing operations FREEEXER
Loss before taxation B %1 Al B 18 (70,671) (56,127)
Income tax at applicable tax rate of R E A E16.5%
16.5% (2020:16.5%) (Z2=FF :165%)
HEZMER (11,661) (9,261)
Effects of different tax rates of REMADEEREEZ
subsidiaries operating in other MEBAR 2 TR ETE
jurisdictions (1,619) (2,596)
Non-deductible expenses TR B 6,522 7,551
Tax exempt revenue B E (535) (519)
Unrecognised temporary differences REREREE 1,645 (166)
Under (Over) provision in prior year BEFEBEBIRE
(BEEEE) 67 (60)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AERRIEEBE BB
TE 6,034 6,812
Effect of two-tiered tax rates MARGHE B - (165)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised £ BB KR 2 15
tax losses &5 18 (551) (1,188)
Others Hih 165 (563)
Tax expenses (credit) for the year FARBEHERIZ(ER) 67 (155)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

12. DIVIDENDS

The board does not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

13. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic (loss) earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 are calculated by dividing the
(loss) profit attributable to the owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.

12.

13.

=\

EFEeTEAMEE—_T_—Ft_-_A=
THLEFERNBRE(ZZE_FTF &) -

BR(GR)RF

BE-_Z_—FR-_FT-_FFF+_A=T
—HAUEFEZEREAR(BR) BMERAR
ABEAARE (BE) GENRASHTER
BonEFHBEE -

(Loss) Profit attributable to owners of the

ARBHEAANENS (BE)

Company 53 F
— Continuing operations (HK$'000) — BEREET
(FH&T) (73,472) (60,263)
— Discontinued operations (HK$'000) — BE&IEKEEE
(F#&7T) _ 623,895
(73,472) 563,632

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue

BT BB IR N4 15 8

1,288,000,000 1,288,000,000

Basic (loss) earnings per share
— Continuing operations (HK cents)

15 A% 2L 75 (5 18) & I
— HREEBEBTY

GEAL) (5.70) (4.68)

— Discontinued operations (HK cents) — DR || AR R TR TR
(&) _ 48.44
(5.70) 43.76

Basic and diluted (loss) earning per share are the same as
the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December

2021 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

HWEAREH

Dafeng Port Heshun International Investments
Limited
AEENEERREERRA

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (China) Company
Limited

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (China) Company
Limited

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (Indonesia)
Company Limited

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (Indonesia)
Company Limited

Luck Sign Investment Development Limited

REREUREARAA

Worldly Development Limited

ENMEERARAR

HERACHIERREFERARA)
(Yancheng Dafeng Heshun International Trading
Company Limited, “Heshun Trading”)
ERAENIRERESERAF(NEES)

SRR (R ERAT Qianhai Mingtian
Supply Chain (Shenzhen) Company Limited,
"Qianhai Mingtian")

SRR ERERIERLA (AEAR])

IHEPHERLRRARAR
(Jiangsu Zhongnanhui Petrochemical Storage
Company Limited*, “Zhongnanhui")
THETHERLERERAR(HEE)

Place of incorporation/

operation and legal
form if established in
the PRC

EREL/
BEBEREEYR
(EREK L)

Hong Kong

B

The BVI

ARRREB

The BVI

EBRAKS

The BVI
ABRABS

Hong Kong

B

The PRC,
wholly foreign
owned enterprise

hE - 2SELE

The PRC,
Sino-foreign equity
joint venture

PERNAELE

The PRC,
wholly domestically

owned enterprise

hEERALE

Issued and paid-up capital/
registered capital

BRTRBERE/
EMER

US$1,000
1,000% 7T

HK$10,000

10,000 7T

Registered capital and
paid-up capital
US§64,500,000

FHEARERBRA
64,500,000% T

Registered capital
US$8,000,000
Paid-up capital
US$6,401,360

& 11 & 78,000,000% 7T
@R R%6,401,360F T

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB32,000,000
AHRERRAARE
32,000,0007C

Proportion of ownership interest

GkiRE: § $
Directly held
EEKA

REBARZRE

ARAMBANR-E-—4+=A=+
—RZEEMT

Effective

ownership

interests held by

the Group  Principal activities

ES 1 Ve

ENfARAES TEEE
Indirectly held
MEsA

- 100% 100%  Investment holding

RARRK

100% - 100%

Investment holding

REARR

100% - 100%  Inactive

EEY]

100% - 100%  Investment holding

RARR

- 100% 100%  Trading and provision
of supply chain

management services

BARRHHEEREERE

- 100% 100%  Investment holding

RARK

- 51% 51% Trading and provision
of supply chain

mamagement services

BARRHHEEREERY

- 100% 100%  Provision of petrochemical
products storage

services

REDCERBRRE

REBAENZEROERDT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE-Z—

—EF+ZA=t—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

HEARER

Place of incorporation/

operation and legal
form if established in
the PRC
BEHBRERA
(EREAK L)

Issued and paid-up capital/
registered capital

BRARAREE/
ERER

Proportion of ownership interest

kiEE: § $:
Directly held
EEKA

Indirectly held
MEss

Effective
ownership
interests held by
the Group

L8 1 ViEs
ERfARERR

14. AMBLAREIZEBE @)

Principal activities

TREH

HBEEARRILAERRA The PRC, Registered capital - 100% 100% Trading of petrochemical
wholly domestically RMB10,000,000 products
owned enterprise Paid-up capital
RMB500,000
HEEENERILERRA hECERECE &R A K %10,000,0007 RLERES
HRBRAARYK
500,000
AT ZEERERAT The PRC, Registered capital and - 51% 51% Trading of petrochemical
(Shenzhen Fanhai Holdings Company Limited®, wholly domestically paid-up capital products
"Shenzhen Fanhai”) owned enterprise RMB10,000,000
Rz EERERAT(RIZE) BE2RALE HMERRARRAEA RLERES
£ %10,000,0007
Evertime Management Limited Hong Kong HKS$!1 - 100% 100%  Inactive
BRERARAR B 1B BEH
Million Sky Business Limited The BVI USs1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
ERLRXBRARA ABRANE Ey REER
BHEREE(RINARAR The PRC, Registered capital - 100% 51% Trading
wholly domestically RMB5,000,00
owned enterprise Paid-up capital
RMB1,200,000
ERRER(RINERAA HEENALE ST E A A R ¥45,000,0007T g%
BRBEARE
1,200,0007C
* The official name is in Chinese and the English name is translated * PXEWAE A HXBEEEEHES2

E o

for identification purpose only

tRmEHBAREREREERA R E
AHBRAAMERITERES

All of the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies
and none of the above subsidiaries issue debt securities.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

178



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Financial information of subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests (“NCI")

The following table shows the information relating to
all non-wholly owned subsidiaries, Shenzhen Fanhai and
Qianhai Mingtian and its subsidiary (together the “Qianhai
Mingtian Group”) that have material NCI during the year.
The summarised financial information of each of the NCI
for the period from the later of the beginning of the
reporting period and the date of acquisition to the earlier
of the date of disposal and the end of the reporting period
represents amounts before inter-company eliminations and
excluding the related goodwill.

14. AMBRAEIZEBE @)

EEFERES (FERERZDZ
MEARZHMBER

TRINTFANRBEERFERER 2
B2 EWMBRRRINZERATEHX
LEMBAR (SHEAIBAXEEDZA
AN - BREHMASREKERSAR
BRESBE)EHEAHMEFEHTE(UR
RERBE)REEIERER W BHER
MBI RAREMBENZEE  ATER
BHRE-

Shenzhen Qianhai
Fanhai Mingtian Group
w2 e

AEHXER
(Note a)
(Fft &Ea)

At 31 December 2021 R=-B=—F
+=-—A=+-—H
Proportion of NCI's ownership interests FEIERR =B EE =
(=l 49% 49%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T F#& T
Non-current assets EMBEE 4 946
Current assets mENEE 4,461 176,217
Current liabilities mEAaE (44) (107,721)
Net assets EEFE 4,421 69,442
Carrying amount of NCI FEFERRHE | R B 2,166 24,471
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

14.

180

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14. RIERA 2 RE @)

Financial information of subsidiaries with non- BEFERES (FERER D2
controlling interests (“NCI") (Continued) Mt ARl 2 Bt & K )

Shenzhen Qianhai
Fanhai Mingtian Group
RIZ 8 AIGEAREE

(Note a)
(Bff 5% a)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-Z2H+=-A=+-—H
Proportion of NClI's ownership R EREEERES
interests Lt 151 49% 49%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE 9 1,197
Current assets mBNEE 12,536 390,770
Current liabilities mBARE (9,675) (328,486)
Net assets BEFE 2,870 63,481
Carrying amount of NCI EEREREEE 1,406 21,537
Note a: Qinghai Mingtian Group's total equity disclosed above Miita FXFEBEMTAREEZRAZATERER
included the accumulated profits up to disposal of 49% ZE L FHERMEHROBRIEZ 25 H
equity in Qianhai Mingtian of HK$6,470,000 (the “Pre- 716,470,000 7T (W BB BTEFI ) - A - 1RIK
acquisition Profits”) in 2017. However, the non-controlling BRZETLZ2HE  EEREZEEEZS
interests are not entitled to the Pre-acquisition Profits in W B A& A o
accordance with the agreement entered into between the
shareholders.
In 2018, the Group and the non-controlling interests had RZF—NF - $%&3H§H§%;§EQEU
injected HK$24,006,000 and HK$2,354,000 respectively. /£ #24,006,0008 72,354,000 87T © M=%
In 2019, the NCI had injected HK$8,169,000. The non- —JUE o IR ¥E A 2 BT E8,169,00008 7T
controlling interests are not entitled to the excess RARIIR 2 BRI 2 W - 3F 12 B4 o e 1
contribution made by the Group of approximately FRAREBIATE L 2 8 5NEE#13,033,00078

HK$13,033,000 in accordance with agreements entered into e
between the shareholders.
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mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14. RIERR 2R E @)

Financial information of subsidiaries with non- BEFERES ((FERERDZ
controlling interests (“NCI") (Continued) MEBARZMEE R (&)

Shenzhen Qianhai

Fanhai Mingtian Group
Rz AIRBBAXEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

Year ended 31 December 2021

F#& T THERT
BE-_ZT-_—f
+=ZA=+—-HLEE

Revenue & 167,474 705,809
Cost of sales Fi=R= 0 N (164,780) (696,569)
Other income H b A 7 2,929
Expenses 3 (1,258) (8,032)
Profit for the year F A 1,443 4137
Other comprehensive income H b 2 U 2= 107 1,851

Total comprehensive income for the year

FRAEZEMKZ LR 1,550 5,988

Profit attributable to NCI

T ¥R PR 25 PR 1 i A 707 2,027

Total comprehensive income
attributable to NCI

JEIE R R FE (R 2 E R
FERE 760 2,934

Net cash flows from (used in):

X (AR)UTEEBEZRE

mE R

Operating activities LETED) 1,926 (216,724)
Investing activities KERY 7 224,722
Financing activities B & R E - (115)

Dividends paid to NCI

EANEREE O ool §s) = -
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RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE
14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14. ARBAR 2R E @)

Financial information of subsidiaries with non- BEFERES (FERER D2
controlling interests (“NCI") (Continued) Mt ARl 2 Bt & K )

Shenzhen Qianhai
Fanhai  Mingtian Group
RIZ 8 GIRELE PN SE]

HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TR

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-ZT_-ZF
+=-A=+—HLEEE

Revenue W 25 98,217 825,934
Cost of sales Fi==D N (96,262) (821,131
Other income E Uk A 5 16,531
Expenses & (992) (13,545)
Profit for the year F A 968 7,789
Other comprehensive income H b 2 = 171 4,006
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 HE W @ 4258 1,139 11,795
Profit attributable to NCI I 178 % A 2= PR A T A 474 3,817
Total comprehensive income EERERENEERE

attributable to NCI 48 %8 558 5,780
Net cash flows from (used in): RERARUTEEZRS

MEFE:

Operating activities LR 1,061 (210,324)
Investing activities KEEE 2 208,208
Financing activities B & E - (352)
Dividends paid to NCI BT FEERE R 2R E - -
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15. PROPERTY,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15.

MK BERSKE

Terminal
Furniture, and related
Storage Leasehold fixtures and Motor Computer auxiliary ~ Construction
Buildings facilities improvements ~ equipment Vehicles  equipment facilities in progress Total
HBENE &R %E
B ERRIE %6 SEL RE BHRE ERIE Az
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TEL TET TET TET TEL TET TET
At cost BEA
At 1 January 2020 RWZZ-Z§-f-H 6,574 98,346 1435 35,704 397 4,089 773,529 88,839 1,008913
Additions AE - - 62 526 - - - 4,359 4947
Disposals/Written off HE /M - - - (21 (58) (20) - - 99)
Disposals of a subsidiary HENBAR - - - 31.17) - (141) (772,170) - (803,428)
Transfer ¥4 - 82,684 - 4,788 - - - (87,472) -
Exchange realignment EXHZ 106 10,256 299 3186 4 461 10,527 1143 26,019
At 31 December 2020 and RZZ2-%%F
1 January 2021 +ZA=t+-8k
—Z--%-f-H 6,680 191,286 1,796 13,066 380 4,389 11,886 6,869 236,352
Additions RE 90 21,222 1,099 4,634 - 317 - 3448 30,810
Transfer L1 - 10,308 - - - - - (10,308) -
Exchange realignment ERRE 233 6,643 64 27 10 128 311 104 7760
At 31 December 2021 WoB=-%
+=B=+-8R 7,003 229,459 2,959 17,961 390 4,834 12,197 13 274922
Accumulated depreciation and it # & R &
impairment
At 1 January 2020 RZZ2-%%-A-H 3,526 60,877 1193 31,429 311 3,465 588,477 - 689,278
Charge for the year Eakil 102 945 228 724 69 557 7848 - 10,473
(Reversal of impairment) (BERE)AE
Impairment (1,726) 2171 109 (1,098) (18) (370) 6,066 2,707 34,841
Disposals/Written off HE/HH - - - (12 - (19) - - (31
Disposals of a subsidiary HEMRBARA - - - (19,763) - (130) (598,317) - (618,210)
Exchange realignment EXRE 14 273 95 191 2 152 560 - 1,287
At 31 December 2020 and RIZ-TE
1 January 2021 TZA=+-Bk
—EZ-%-fF-H 1916 91,266 1,625 1,41 364 3,655 4,634 2,707 117,638
Charge for the year FRMB 134 1,271 3 788 9 408 332 - 12975
(Reversal of impairment) (BERE)RE
Impairment - 13,350 (63) 1,280 (265) (290) 1371 (2,707) 12,616
Exchange realignment EiHE 9 1,863 Iy 72 9 81 6 - 2,087
At 31 December 2021 RoB=-%
+=A=t+-H 2,059 117,750 1,642 13,611 "7 3,854 6,343 - 145,376
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2021 W-B=-%
+=A=t+-H 4,944 111,709 1,317 4,356 273 980 5,854 13 129,546
At 31 December 2020 RZZZTE
+=F=t-8 4,764 100,020 m 1,595 16 734 7,252 4162 118,714
REBNERNRROBRLA 183
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

15.

184

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The directors of the Company have reviewed the
carrying value of property, plant and equipment (storage
facilities and construction in progress) and right-of-use
assets (note 18 to the consolidated financial statements)
of Petrochemical Products Storage Business as at 31
December 2021, as their economic performance is worse
than expected and determined that the recoverable
amount from the use or sale of certain of these assets has
declined below their carrying amount.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating unit
("CGU"), including property, plant and equipment,
goodwill and right-of-use assets of Petrochemical
Products Storage Business (collectively known as the
“Assets”) as at 31 December 2021 were lower than their
respective carrying amounts. The recoverable amounts are
determined by the management, with assistance from an
independent professional valuer, based on fair value less
costs of disposal for the Assets, which are significantly

higher than that using value-in-use calculation.

The recoverable amounts of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of Petrochemical
Products Storage Business, were HK$140,446,000 and
HK$57,590,000 respectively (2020: HK$135,314,000 and
HK$56,272,000 respectively). Accordingly, net impairment
losses of HK$12,676,000 (2020: HK$21,921,000) and no
impairment losses were provided for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets in relation to this CGU
respectively.

The key assumptions used in estimating the fair value of
the Assets under depreciation replacement cost approach
include estimation of construction as if building the
similar structures, adjusting for physical deterioration,
obsolescence and optimisation or referring to current
market price of the similar assets. The valuation was
categorised as Level 3 fair value measurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

16. GOODWILL 16. &
2021 2020
—EB-—f —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T T
Reconciliation of carrying amount Bk E 18 AR
At beginning and at the end of RBEHRIRBEHR
reporting period 1,296 1,296
At 31 December Bn+=—HA=+—8~
Cost (B 16,140 16,140
Accumulated impairment loss ZEHREEE (14,844) (14,844)
1,296 1,296

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the
acquisitions effectively included amount in relation to the
benefits originated from future market development and
the assembled workforce of the acquired business. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the
Group's CGU as follows:

Petrochemical Products Trading AtERESED
Business

ELBERHNAURBINZREERE
EARRMGEREIRBEGMERES
NFAERMBELZ SR - HRZFMam T
NHAABMAETLEEZRRBEE  BA
BERFEOFAER FHNECHERR
SR ANMEAEN -

HEZEREIEEASERSELSE
fzgnT

2021 2020
—B——fF —F-FF

— = —=<

HK$'000 HK$000
TERT TAET

1,296 1,296

The goodwill in relation to Petrochemical Products Storage
Business of HK$14,844,000 has been fully impaired in
previous years.

HAOLERRARREBSABENl &
14,844,000 TE RN BEFE = HRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE
16. GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the Petrochemical Products
December 2021 and 31
December 2020 have been determined on the basis of
value in use. These recoverable amounts are based on

Trading Business as at 31

certain key assumptions. The value-in-use calculation uses
cash flow projection based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period by applying
certain key assumptions below:

Pre-tax discount rate 75 Bl Bk 3R &
Average growth rate FHERE
Perpetual growth rate KA K&

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

As at 1 January and 31 December mn

16. BE®m)

BLEMBSEBRR_T_—F+=H=
+—BEkZEEFF+_A=+—H2Z7
e $EHEREFEFRAEEES T &
EARETETEZEBR -FHEBENKEE
Bt ERAFHRUBEECRSRER
AERBATE FEBBRERTE

Petrochemical Products

Trading Business

EtEREREK
2020
—E-TF
7% 7%
2% 2%
1% 1%

17 R—EBEE QT Z2ER

2021
—_E_—fF

2020
—E-FF

HK$'000
TAET

HK$'000
FERT
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period
is as follows:

Principal place

of business Issued and paid-up
and place of capital/registered
Name of associate incorporation capital
TEXBHEAR BRORBER
BEQRAER AMRIBH A EMER
TEHBRAGE The PRC RMB250,000,000
Mt TR55E
ER2AF (Jiangsu
Hairong Dafeng
Port Petrochemical
Product Terminal
Company Limited*,
"Jiangsu Hairong")
IHBRALEMm PH A R #250,000,000
L IWBEARRRA 7T
(DI%Em))
* The official name is in Chinese and the English name is translated

for identification purpose only

The above associate is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

Relationship with associate

Jiangsu Hairong, an integrated logistics handling services
provider in the PRC market, allows the Group to continue
its business segments optimisation and consolidation
that in turn may spur synergy effect of the Group's
Petrochemical Products Storage Business.

Fair value of investments

The above associate is a private company and there is no
quoted market price available for the investment.

—E_—F

17. RA—EBEQIT2ER @)

NS EROBE AT HEDT

Proportion of effective

ownership interest held by

the Group Principal activities
rEEREER
PR A 2 L A TEEH
2021 2020
—ET-TH
40% 40% Provision of terminal
handling and

berthing services

IRHIHEEIE KSR
ES)

* TXEBAEIERE AXBELEEHRS
e

P ERA D RABRREREENHE
BRPARK -

HBEQNRz@E
THEBMA—HTEMENEA YR E
ERBREED EEAKERBEER
EBoBELLREBS KM ATRERAA
SELLEMBRRMERZIHFEME -
REZAFE

B ERRR/RLARTREAARNKE
ZTIGHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 17 R—EBE QR 2R @)
Financial information of the associate BEQNTA 2B BESR
Summarised financial information of the associate of REBERBERTZHBERBERD
the Group is set out below, which represents amounts WT - ZEEHEREBEEEMBREER
shown in the associate’s financial statements prepared in RBcBERNRMBREMTZEHE I
accordance with HKFRSs and adjusted by the Group for MASEBERNERSATENETAR &
equity accounting purposes including any differences in REABRRIEMNEERAFERE -

accounting policies and fair value adjustments.

At 31 December 2021 R=FB=-—F+=HA=+—8H
2021 2020
—B-—fF —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#& T F&E T
Gross amount gl
Current assets REEE 80,362 79,054
Non-current assets IERBEE 210,424 196,591
Current liabilities mEaE (700,518) (677,840)
Deficits &5 At (409,732) (402,195)
Reconciliation IR
Gross amount of deficits &5 4t 48 78 (409,732) (402,195)
Group's ownership interests REBZ A #EER 40% 40%
Group's share of deficits N2 B 1 5 A (163,893) (160,878)
Unrecognised share of deficits upon RiEREE RBRIEDER
recognition of an associate e R &5 At 152,055 152,055
Cumulative unrecognised share of loss KRR 2 D 1hHEE 11,838 8,823
Carrying amount of interests Ew 2z REE - -
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 17. R—EBE R 2 E= @)

Financial information of associate (Continued) e N2 B EE R (#)

For the year Period from
ended 28 August 2020
31 December to 31 December

2021 2020
—E-TF
2 NAZ+tNBH=ZE
—B-—F —E-FF
+T=A=+—H +=ZA=+H
LEE 1E BA R
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Gross amount R
Revenue I 2= 11,286 4,006
Loss for the year/period FRBHAEE (12,473) (29,840)
Other comprehensive income H b 2 2= 4,935 7,781
Total comprehensive loss FEEBEER (7,538) (22,059)
Unrecognised share of loss of an associate AERZDE—BBREQTER
The Group has not recognised further losses as the EEJ\E’\$$“ HIHEBR cEBEBRE
Group's share of losses of Jiangsu Hairong exceeds the ISR 2 ErREE  WASET
carrying amount of its interest in Jiangsu Hairong. BHRE—FEHIE -
The unrecognised share of loss of an associate for the HE_ZT_—F+-_A=+—HLEFE"
year ended 31 December 2021 and cumulative up to the NRBAERERRZAERZDMH—
end of the reporting period amounted to HK$3,015,000 F'EEJ Bt &~ 5 1 8 9 5l /3,015,000 7T (A
(for the period from 28 August 2020 to 31 December 2020: ZEZEENAZFTN\BEZE_ZF+
HK$8,823,000) and HK$11,838,000 (2020: HK$8,823,000) ZA=+—H 15 :8823000%& L) &
respectively. 11,838,000/ 7T (—ZF =4 : 8,823,000/8

JL) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

18. LEASES

Right-of-use assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount —

FEEHER — 82

18. HE

EREEE

Prepaid
lease
payments
(Note a)
ENEE
(B
GED)
HK$'000
AT

Sea use
rights
payments
i 15

= A #E
N
HK$'000
THET

Office
premises
(Note b)
WA=
YES

(Fft 3 b)
HK$'000
THET

Total

e Et
HK$'000
TAET

year ended 31 December 2020 —ZT-TF+=R
=t+—RIFE
At beginning of the year R F 7)) 40,165 2,163 1,042 43,370
Addition 30 - - 208 208
Depreciation e (880) (57) (768) (1,705)
Disposal of a subsidiary e — K E A - (2,178) - (2,178)
Exchange differences fE X Z%8 2,621 72 10 2,703
At the end of the reporting period R ¥R & HI xR 41,906 - 492 42,398
Reconciliation of carrying amount — BREEHE-EZE
year ended 31 December 2021 —E-—F+ZA
=t+t—-HLEE
At beginning of the year R E A 41,906 = 492 42,398
Addition =Wl = = 1,247 1,247
Depreciation e (1,151) - (564) (1,715)
Exchange differences M H =5 1,234 = 3 1,237
At the end of the reporting period # R4 Hi k& 41,989 - 1,178 43,167
At 31 December 2020 RZTZEF
+ZA=+—H
Cost DN 45,742 - 2,545 48,287
Accumulated depreciation and 2 WERBEEE
impairment losses (3,836) - (2,053) (5,889)
Net carrying amount BREFE 41,906 - 492 42,398
At 31 December 2021 R=B=—F
+=ZA=+-—H
Cost X 7R 45,006 = 3,795 48,801
Accumulated depreciation and 2t ERBEEBIE
impairment losses (3,017) — (2,617) (5,634)
Net carrying amount fREFE 41,989 - 1,178 43,167
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

18. LEASES (continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Note a: Prepaid lease payments

Upon acquisition of Zhongnanhui by the Group in 2016, the prepaid lease
payments in relation to a piece of land in the PRC were valued at RMB38.7
million. The prepaid lease payments are amortised over the remaining
leasehold period of 45 years since acquisition.

Note b: Office premises

The Group leases various office premises for its daily operations. Lease
terms range from 24 to 36 months. Lease payments were usually increased
annually to reflect current market rentals.

Restrictions or covenants

Most of the leases of office premises impose a restriction
that, unless the approval is obtained from the lessor,
the right-of-use asset can only be used by the Group
and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging the
underlying assets.

For leases of properties, the Group is required to keep
those properties in a good state of repair and return the
properties in their original condition at the end of the
lease.

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the
year:

18. H&E#®)
FEHEEE @)

Miita: BN EENK

AERR-_Z-XFRBETHES  RETEZ—E
THENBEENRZEERARE38700,0005T © &
B AR UK B R R R 8RR 3 (BD4SE) M SH -

Mib: HAEME

FEBEREAREEHEZENAZTYWE  HEN
FuE3EA - HENKBESFEMNARREH
mHHEE

PR % =X 78

ZHMAMEBRNBHNRTE  BIFER
M ARHE - BREREEEEREAAN
SEER BAKEASHESERER

AMEHEMS  AREALTYERLY
MmEBRE YREEERKERYEN

AEBRFARR NI

2021
—E-—F

2020
—E-FTF
HK$'000
FB T

HK$'000
FTER

Lease payments: HERK:

Short-term leases EEEE 749 496
Expenses recognised in profit or loss ~ REZERZHAX 749 496
Total cash outflow for leases HERe AL @B 1,358 1,333

Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2021, the Group was committed to
HK$135,000 (2020: HK$433,000) for short-term leases.

HMEEE

RNR-ZE-—F+-_A=+—0 K&E£Ez
5EOEATE & e H A HE135,0008 T (ZEZF
£ 1 433,000/ 7T) °

REBAENZEROERDT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

19. PREPAYMENTS IN RELATION TO
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. B BERRBZANRE

2021 2020
—_E_—F

—E-TF

HK$'000
TAT

HK$'000
FER

ABEVE  BEAR

Advances to suppliers for purchase of

20.

21.

192

property, plant and equipment

[ it 8 7 2 5K

5,296

5,369

INVENTORIES

Finished goods

20. 7§

2021
—E-—F

HK$'000
FTEx

2020
—E-FF

HK$'000
TAET

— medical treatment products 5,448 4193

Finished goods o
— petrochemical products 4,312 5,436
9,760 9,629

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. EZRHAEWRE

2021 2020
—B-—f —T-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#& T FE T
Trade receivables ESEWRIE
Third parties E£=h 33(a)(iii) 27,993 32,846
Less: Loss allowance T c BT 18 B E 33(a)(iii) (3,514) (3,514)
24,479 29,332
Other receivables HibEWRKIE
Deposits, prepayments and other 1% & - TE{J 3 IE K&
debtors H h FE U AR K 49,586 57,959
Advanced payments to suppliers [\ £ & i £ 5% 94,669 81,401
Value added tax refundable AR B B E R 41,668 57,345
Interest receivable & W) B 242 5,001
Due from a connected company & Iy — & @8 & 1 7
;IE 21(a) 12 12
186,177 201,718
210,656 231,050
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21.

22.

23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

21(a) Due from a connected company

21. ESREMEWRRE @R

21() B — B E QR RIE

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-THF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET

ALFEBEEOFREMTAR KEEBEBEOHR
(Dafeng Port Harbour g aa/NC]
Limited Liability Company*, ([ KZ87%])
"Dafeng Harbour")

(i) 12 12

(i) The company is controlled by a substantial shareholder and
the amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term
of repayment.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2020, the pledged bank deposits of
the Group were pledged for the bills payables issued by
banks. The interest rates of the pledged bank deposits
ranged from 3.1% to 3.6% per annum. The balance was
withdrawn upon settlement of bills payables in 2021.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(i) ZATHEIZRRENREBRSER
BER 28 RYEBEEERY -

22. EEHBITER

RCE-ZEF+_A=+—H A&KEE
BRRITEREIEERR - ABSRITES
ZERNERE - EEMBITERZEMEN
FII1%E3.6% - R-BE-—FRNEHLE
BIRIRERAE R o

23. EZRHMENFE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade and bills payables ESRNREARENRE

FHT FHT

Trade payables =07) INE O] 36,940 37,752
Bills payables B R E - 226,077
23(a) 36,940 263,829
Other payables H fth FE A FOR
Accrued charges and JERTE B & H b FE T BR 5N
other creditors 57,904 61,717
Construction cost payables JE A3 3R B AR 23(b) 29,487 543
Contract liabilities AHatE 23(d) 51,900 50,440
Salaries and bonus payable  Ef ¥ & RIEAL 929 410
Amount due to a director BN —REEHE 23(f) 440 200
Amounts due to connected  JETRAE QR IAE
companies 23(c) 201,528 15,886
342,188 129,196
379,128 393,025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 23. EZRHEMEMNKE M

23(a) Trade and bills payables L@ ESENRERENEE
The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, BORNRERENZEBZERA
based on invoice date, is as follows: HRESWOT:

2021 2020
—B-—fF —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT
90 days or below QORI LAT 31,449 26,464
91-180 days 91E180K - 5,956
181-365 days 1812 365K - 226,077
More than 365 days 365K A E 5,491 5,332
36,940 263,829
The Group was allowed a credit period of up to 90 AEBEEBSBERARENES
days by its trade creditors. The trade payables are RN EER -BEENKIERE
interest-free and are normally settled on terms of one BEEBER—ZEXNEAPELEESR -

to six months.

The bills payables of RMB69,930,000 (equivalent FE R B A R 869930,0007T (16 &
to HK$83,112,000), RMB15,458,000 (equivalent to $283,112,000% 7T) -~ A K 15,458,000
HK$18,371,000), RMB73,828,000 (equivalent to JL (M8 & 118,371,000 JT) « A R #&
HK$87,744,000) and RMB31,005,000 (equivalent to 73,828,0007T (18& p287,744,0007% 7T) &
HK$36,850,000) were interest-bearing at rates ranged A R #31,005,0007T (48 & #236,850,000
from 2.45% to 2.90% per annum and were fully BT RIR G F N F245%E 290%5 5
repaid in 2021. BERZZ-—F2HEE -

23(b) Construction cost payables 23(b) BT R R A
The amounts due are interest-free and repayable ZEMFEREERRKIABR
upon the receipt of the invoices issued by the HARFEREXM -
constructors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2021 #;

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

23(c) Amounts due to connected companies

mEMBRRME

BB —F+-_A=+—80ItFE

23. ESZREMESRE @R
) ERBEATDRE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZT-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Current portion B A &8

Jiangsu Dafeng TIEHKE 23(c)(i) 43,932 3,812
Jiangsu Huahai LERER 23(c)(ii) 157,596 12,074
201,528 15,886

Non-current portion E IR )
Jiangsu Huahai T ERE S 23(c)(ii) - 135,075
201,528 150,961

(if)

Jiangsu Dafeng has 40% equity interests in Dafeng Port
Overseas. The amount is unsecured, repayable on demand

and interest-free.

Jiangsu Huahai has 10% equity interests in Dafeng Port
Overseas. The amount due represents the principal portion
in relation to the consideration on acquisition of Jiangsu
Hairong in 2018 and the associated accrued interest. As
at 31 December 2021, the amount of RMB113,652,000
(equivalent to HK$139,110,000) was unsecured, bore interest
at a rate of 4.35% per annum and repayable on 1 November
2022 (2020: the amount of RMB113,652,000 (equivalent to
HK$135,075,000) was unsecured, bore interest at a rate of
4.35% per annum and repayable on 1 November 2022).
The remaining balance was unsecured, interest-free and

repayment on demand.

(i)

(i)

TEHRALHBRLEEINZ40%EHE -
EHRARERRN AREREER
BB

IEREBEARNLEBINZI0%EE -
FH £ #2018 F W IE T & OB Bk 2 (R
BzAEHB O RE@REFE - R
T+ A=+—H 2EARE
113,652,000t (A8 72 139,110,000/ 7T.)
BEEER - RS BFFEA3% WA
RZZEZZF+—A—BEECZZ=
T $ A RME3,652,000T (HHE
135,075,000 7T) AEKE - FIE A
FHNELI5%  WER-_TE-_—_F+—
A—HEE) #EAEER 28K
BIRBERMEE -

REBAENZEROERDT

2021 FiR 195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 23. EZRHEMEMNKE M

23(d) Contract liabilities BAEHNEE
The movements (excluding those arising from RAFEERN  BEBMBREER
increases and decreases both occurred within the FSRBEEBATFANZANARE
same year) of contract liabilities from contracts with EE(TREERE—FEERATEE
customers within HKFRS 15 during the year are as &)
follows:

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZE-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAET

At the beginning of the reporting R R & Hi 4

period 50,440 17,496
Recognised as revenue A= (50,440) (17,496)
Receipt of advances of undelivered WE AR & 2 B3R

goods 51,900 50,440
At end of the reporting period A &EH R 51,900 50,440
At 31 December 2021, the advance payments from RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H0 " ¥F
customers are expected to be recognised as revenue ZENREBRER —FANERR
within one year. Wz o

23(e) Amount due to an associate 23e)Ef—EHBE QAT RE
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and EARENZRELERE 2ERA
repayable on 31 December 2023. RZBEZ=F+=-A=+—HEE -
23(f) Amount due to a director B ENF—BREERE
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and has FRARNREREER 28R
no fixed repayment term. |EF RN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24, RITRHEHMEE
2021 2020
—F=—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Interest-bearing &
Bank loan RITER 24(a) 36,622 35,608
Loan from a connected company RKE—MEEEARZ
EE 24(b) 22,859 22,196
Lease liabilities HERE 1,182 542
Unlisted secured bonds FEMmARIBES 24(c) - 401,792
Listed credit enhanced EHEREREER
guaranteed bonds &% 24(d) 386,914 -
Total bank and other borrowings R 17 & H fib (& & 4 %8 447,577 460,138
2021 2020
=F=—F —E_FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Current portion BEAER S
— Loan from a connected — KBE—FEEENT
company 2ER 24(b) 22,859 -
— Lease liabilities — THEAE 428 542
— Unlisted secured bonds — LA ERES 24(c) = 401,792
23,287 402,334
Non-current portion JEBNHEAER
— Bank loan — SRITEFK 24(a) 36,622 35,608
— Loan from a connected — kE—fERER
company FIZER 24(b) = 22,196
— Lease liabilities — THEAE 754 -
— Listed credit enhanced — tHERERE
guaranteed bonds EIRES 24(d) 386,914 -
424,290 57,804
Total bank and other borrowings $R17R EM(EE 4458 447,577 460,138
Analysed as follows: DA
Secured and guaranteed B L ER = 401,792
Unsecured it 24,041 22,738
Unsecured but guaranteed KA R 423,536 35,608
447,577 460,138
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24. BRITREMBEE®
(Continued)

At the end of reporting date, the analysis of bank and R|EBER  BNRITRAMEERSE
other borrowings due based on the scheduled repayment RipEAEGTEERBRZONOT

198

dates set out in the loan agreements is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTHF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TAET

The above borrowings are repayable as A Ff&E&AZ AT HEE

follows: g
— repayable on demand or within — RERKIMFAEE
1 year 23,287 402,334
— repayable after 1 year but within — MFRE2FANEE
2 years 418 22,196
— repayable after 2 years but within — R2F B BSFRNER
5 years 423,872 35,608
Total bank and other borrowings BTk EMEERE 447,577 460,138

24(a) Bank loan

Pursuant to the loan agreement dated 13 July 2020
entered into between Zhongnanhui and Jiangsu
Dafeng Rural Commercial Bank Co Ltd, a 5-year term
loan facility of up to RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$35,655,000) was made available to Zhongnanhui.

As at 31 December 2021, the loan balance of
RMB29,920,000 (equivalent to HK$36,622,000) (2020:
RMB29,960,000 (equivalent to HK$35,608,000))
carries interest rate of 6.99% per annum. In
addition, the loan is unsecured but guaranteed
jointly by Jiangsu Dafeng and Heshun Trading and
up to the extent of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$36,720,000).

24(b) Loan from a connected company

Pursuant to the loan agreement signed between
Heshun Trading and Jiangsu Dafeng which was a
substantial shareholder of the Group, the loan of
RMB18,676,000 (equivalent to HK$22,859,000) is
unsecured, interest bearing at 8.04% per annum
(2020: 9% per annum) and is repayable in 1
November 2022.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

24(a) RITE K

BIEPEESTEHRALZNEER
TROBRARMIZEHRA-ZZ
TFELA+=BZERHGZE - THE
ERE—E5545ARK30,000,000
7t (#8 & 135,655,000/ 7T) 2 AFE
HEZRE -

R—_E-_—F+-_A=+—H &
T B A R129920,0007T (18 & %
36,622,000 (=T =T F: A
R #29,960,0007T (18 & 735,608,000
BN IROEZEFEEFE - Ik
SN ZEBERAEIRT - BRI
AREERMEE S ERER EIR
R A A R 30,000,000 (485 7
36,720,0005 7T) °

24b) RE—EBEEQAAZER

BREMEESHALEEB—REE
RRIBRKEEZERHE  —
£ A8 A R¥18,676,0007T (FH & R
22,859,000 ) 2 Bk A E IR -
BEFMNESUE(ZZE_ZF: F7
OB B BAEE T - —F+—
A—HEE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24. BITRHEMEE @

(Continued)

24(c) Unlisted secured bonds 2(c) FLETEERHFES

On 29 March 2018, the Company issued 3-year
unlisted secured bonds of US$50,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$390,395,000) with a coupon rate of 7.5% per
annum (the “Bonds”) and the interest is payable on
every 29th of September and March. The proceeds
from issuance of the Bonds to independent third
parties after the issuance costs were HK$383,277,000.
The effective interest rate is 8.3% per annum. The
Company has repaid all outstanding principal and
interest during the year.

24(d) Listed credit enhanced guaranteed bonds

On 17 March 2021, the Company, as issuer, Jiangsu
Dafeng, as guarantor, and Tensant Securities Limited,
Haitong International Securities Company Limited,
BOSC International Company Limited, Shanghai
Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.,, Hong Kong
Branch, CEB International Capital Corporation
Limited, China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited,
Huarong International Securities Limited and China
Industrial Securities International Brokerage Limited
(together, the “Placing Agents”), entered into a
placing agreement pursuant to which the Company
agreed to appoint the Placing Agents as placing
agents for the purpose of procuring, and to use its
best efforts, the subscription of the bonds of up to
an aggregate principal amount of US$55,000,000 (the
“Placing”).

The Placing was completed on 24 March 2021. The
bonds in the principal amount of US$55 million has
been placed to bondholders at a coupon rate of
2.4% per annum, and terms of 3 years. The interest
is payable on every 23th of September and March.
The net proceeds from issuance of the bonds after
the issuance costs were US$47,595,600, equivalent to
HK$370,056,000. The effective interest rate is 7.4%
per annum.

RZE-—NE=ZA=-_+HhLB XK
A B ¥ 1750,000,000% T (B & ©
390,395,000/ ) I B 2R FF75
BBz =FHIFLTERRES
(&%) ERENAR=ZRAZZ=
TABZMAE - MR FEITH AR
MBYRE=ZFRITESMERER
383,277,000/ 7T - B FFI%E 58.3
B RARARBERFREEMEARE
BOARERFE -

A L EREEEERES

R-Z-—F=A++tH ARF(E
BREBEON) TIHREUERERA)
RRXREFBRAR  BEBERE
HFAERAR - LREBEERRAR - £
BERERRITEODERRAETE
217~ RIREFEERBRRF - PE
KAREFBEB)BERQA - ERE
RESERAALAZRARESE
RAG (R EBERE])FIL R
L& @ Bt - ARBRBRER
EREREERE  BUBERKRE
N e fE R I A& # 88 /& % 55,000,000
EnzEHF(RESEHED -

EEER_-_ZT-_—F=A=-+mN0
Bk » N4 %8 455,000,0005 T2
BEHERETEFFEA EEHE
REBF24% BH=F - FER
BFAARZ AN -+=ZAXfI-
MBRBETRKABHNESETHE
X8 F %8 B47,595,600% T 0 A E
370,056,000/ 7T « B FF X A
7.4% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

24. RTRHEMEE @)

24(d) Listed credit enhanced guaranteed bonds 28 EHERRBRERES @)

(Continued)

BEAHA-_Z-_—= ANER

Based on the deed of guarantee dated on March

2021, the bonds are guaranteed by Jiangsu Dafeng.
Payments of principal, premium (if any) and interest
in respect to the bonds and the fees and expenses
and other amounts payable in connection with
the bonds and the trust deed, which dated on or
about 23 March 2021 among the Company, Jiangsu
Dafeng and The Bank of New York Mellon, London
Branch as trustee for the holders of the bonds, will
have the benefit of an irrevocable standby letter of
credit (the "SBLC") denominated in US dollars up to
US$56,660,000 issued by Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd.
Yancheng Branch.

For further details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 24 March 2021.

25. DEFERRED TAXATION

The movements for the year in the Group's net deferred

tax liabilities are as follows:

RiE BHEHIGASRMEER-
BEHFEEELRAS - RE@A) LT E
NBURRESFREAQT LB
L The Bank of New York Mellon,
London Branch {EAEHFHEAK
REARZE-_—F=A=+=H
RAEMEEARBERENHNER
LY BN TI#HBRTREE
RARIERSITHAENSETEB
56,660,000 7T & 2 7T &1 1B & 7] #
HERERAZ(ERERRE) -

ERE—LHEBE F28ARAA
AT —F=A_+MWHHR

25. 3E fE "

AEERERAEAGFERAFREZE
BT

2021 2020

—F=—F —F =

HK$’000 HK$'000

TH& T FAT

At beginning of the reporting period R EE ) (1,551) (6,873)
Credited to profit or loss: FFAEE

— Continuing operations (Note 11) — BEEEEBL (W1 - 166

- Discontinued operations — BERIEEEER - 5,255

Exchange difference M 5, = 58 (46) (99)

At end of the reporting period RBEH R (1,597) (1,551)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

25. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 25. IEERBE &)
Recognised net deferred tax liabilities at the end of the RBERRZEERELENIBEEBFH
reporting period represent the following: AT EIE:
Assets Liabilities
&E =R
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-_—§ —T-%=F B ZTTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET FERT FHET
Fair value adjustments NFEERE = - (6,946) (6,744)
Tax loss T IE B 1R 5,349 5,193 = -
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE BE
(liabilities) (BHE) 5,349 5193 (6,946) (6,744)
Offsetting K (5,349) (5,193) 5,349 5,193
Net deferred tax liabilities EZEBHEAEFE = - (1,597) (1,551)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets of continuing UTREMEEFEREEL RE
operations arising from RELEHRBEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF

HK$°000 HK$000
TERT TAET

Before multiplied by the applicable LA %8 Ik A /@ A B & A1 -

tax rate:
Temporary differences Ry =R 93,788 83,818
Tax losses i 18 & 1B 179,184 156,766

272,972 240,584
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

25. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 25. EEN EH @)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets of continuing UM REMEEFEREERL RE
operations arising from (Continued) IR EB TR E E ()
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of B P MK TR AN R 2R s A ROR - #R I 4 BE
these items due to the unpredictability of future profit ZEHERABELERIBEE - BEKE
streams. The expiry dates of unrecognised tax losses of X2 AERRBEBRZBHAMT

continuing operations are as follows:

2021 2020

—EB-—F ZEE2F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Tax losses without expiry date EEHH R E BB 41,758 41,770
Tax losses expiring on RZEZ_R"F+=ZA=+—H

31 December 2026 I IE E 1B 24,491 -
Tax losses expiring on RZEBE-_RFE+=-A=+—H

31 December 2025 BIHAFE S 1B 5,417 5,260
Tax losses expiring on RZZE_WE+-A=+—H

31 December 2024 FMHIERERE 51,676 50,474
Tax losses expiring on RZT_=F+-A=+—8H

31 December 2023 2B A E R 47,517 49,421
Tax losses expiring on R-E-__—_HF+_-_A=+—H

31 December 2022 BB IEER 8,325 9,461
Tax losses expiring on RZEBEZ—F+=-A=+—H

31 December 2021 IR IEERE = 380

179,184 156,766
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

Unrecognised deferred tax assets of continuing
operations arising from

Pursuant to the PRC EIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends distributed to foreign investors by
the foreign investment enterprises established in the
PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between the PRC and jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
deferred tax has been recognised for withholding taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the
Groups' subsidiaries established in the PRC of HK$786,000
(2020: HK$977,000). In the opinion of the directors, these
accumulated profits, at the present time, are required for
financing the continuing operations of the entities and no
distribution would be made in the foreseeable future.

26. SHARE CAPITAL

26.

UTEEREEFEKSERBRE
RIEEBRAEE

REFBECERSHZE RPBERIZ
SERECEFAIEREEDIRZBE -
BIRI0%HEEBRBENHR - ZREBE-F
TEN\F-A-BHERAERTERAR-_TZTL
FHZA=1T—RARZAFEN - W&
HANHIR B EMERDERBE R R W
& ARAREZENRE R T
—FR_FT_EF+_A=+—H #HE
RAKBEEPBEKL M E AR Z KE
KB 2 B FET786,0008 T (ZF =
T 9770008 L) ERBELERR - EF
RB ZERABNRKGARERNE
BREKLEMBES  #RALHRTE
EH DK

iR A

2021 2020
—R-—-F ke ek ¥ 2
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
g4 H{E B 1 2 HE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of G mEE0.01
HK$0.01 each B L@ 10,000,000,000 100,000 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid BERTRARKER
(HK$0.01 each): (B R EE0.01
B :
At beginning of year and RENRER
at end of the year 1,288,000,000 12,880 1,288,000,000 12,880
REEBNERERBERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

27.

204

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 3 August 2013. The purpose of the Scheme
is to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that
participants have made or may make to the Group,
to provide participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with the view to achieve
motivating the participants to optimise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the Group, to attract and
retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business relationship
with participants, whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.

Participants include (i) any director and employee,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
("Affiliate"); or (ii) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary
of which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects
of which include any director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or (iii) a
company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent,
partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or an
Affiliate.

The directors may, at their discretion, invite any
participant to take up options. Options may be granted
to participants under the Scheme during the period of 10
years commencing on the effective date of the Scheme.
An option is deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee upon the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee and
paying HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price of the share options will be
determined by the board and shall not be less than the
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant of the relevant option, which must be a business
day (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the relevant option and (c) the nominal value of a share
on the date of grant.
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27.

28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time. The total number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000
shares of the Company, being 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval
of the Scheme unless shareholders’ approval has been
obtained. An option may be exercised during a period to
be determined by the directors in their absolute discretion
and in any event such period shall not be later than 10
years after the date of grant of the option.

The maximum entitlement for any participant is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant under
the Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1 percent of the total number of shares in issue of the
Company. Any further grant of options in excess of the
1 percent limit shall be subject to certain requirements
provided under the GEM Listing Rules.

No option has been granted under the Scheme since its
adoption.

RESERVES
28(a) Share premium

Share premium represents the excess of the net
proceeds from issuance of the Company's shares
over its nominal value. Under the law of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s Articles of Association,
it is distributable to the Company’s shareholders
provided that the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business
after the distribution.

27.

28.

BRESE

AR ¥ 51 &) & AR AE fa] H At B8 AR A
RO ZHARARTEREFTEZE
BEETEMETIROKSHME &K
TREBTHEEITRM AR Z30% ° kK
FEBRERAE - BRIREE S RARTF
TR E B 8 2 P R A
BITERARERITCARARMDEE - &
H 115 880,000,000 A A A A {7 - Bl
REtBIHERBARFCHTRNAERZ
10% - BIREANESTEHNBEETE 2B
MARETE MR EMBERT&SE S
EENERERLBEHRR T+ -

EM2EEZFAREE  REM+=E
AMEAREBFERTE2EHEZBR
BRETERETRETETZRMNERK
TREBARFCDHITRNDAEZ1% -
BHI%BRZEME - TRHOBRER
XMRNRGEMEMRABTETRE °

B R A a8 DA KB E AR B A IR B
B -

it 5
28(a) H% 17 ik B

B s B BT AR B R TS
BFRBLHROEMEZNRD - RIE
MERE AP RARRAKEEA
A W ARBRDIREE—RER
BERHAENENIHES - AR
DB DR TFARBRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

28. RESERVES (continued)

206

28(b) Capital reserve

28(c)

The capital reserve arises from the business

combination under common control in relation
to the reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) for
rationalising the corporate structure in preparation
for the initial listing of the Company’s shares on
GEM of the Stock Exchange. The Reorganisation
was completed on 3 August 2013. The amount
represents the difference between aggregate net
asset value of the subsidiaries and the investment

costs in the subsidiaries.

The negative capital reserve represents the excess
of “total investment costs in the subsidiaries” over
“the aggregate net assets value of the subsidiaries”.

Under merger accounting the net assets of the
combining entities are combined using the existing
book values from the controlling party’s perspective.
No amount is recognised as consideration for
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase at the time
of common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.
Accordingly, the above mentioned difference has
been recorded in the capital reserve under merger
accounting.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from translation of the
financial statements of the Group's subsidiaries in the
PRC. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 4 above.

28(d) Statutory reserve

The statutory reserves are reserves required by the
Accounting Regulations for Business Enterprises
applicable to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The
reserves can be used to reduce previous years' losses
and to increase the capital of the subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

28. RESERVES (continued)

28(e) Other reserve

28(f)

The other reserve has been set up to deal with the
changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control. The difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised in other reserve.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose
from the Reorganisation. The balance represents
the difference between the nominal amount of
the Company’s shares issued and the consolidated
shareholders’ fund of the subsidiaries acquired
during the Reorganisation.

28(g) Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve comprises the
fair value of share-based payment transactions dealt
with employees of the Group and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

28. f#E =)

28(e)

28(f)

H b 7% 8

HiFE I RRENGEHREE
HliEZMBAREAEERESM
R FERERAAESREDN
ZERHKEATFEMZEZRRNEM
EEATER -

ERARH

ARRZEHBBEBEAEL - %
EHEARARCHITRIEERE
HEARMKEBINBARIGAEARZ
BRETEZZH -

28(9) ARG RER 2 RHBE

I AERZNREREEFBER
SEEEMETURNDAER 2
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Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

29. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 29. HttREREER

V06 REXBMARSE

29(a) Cash used in operations

2021
—E-—£

HK$'000
FTER

2020
—E-FTHF
HK$'000
FBT

(Loss) Profit before taxation B B BT (E548) & A

— From continuing operations — REBBEEER (70,671) (56,127)

- From discontinued operations  — REE & IELEET = 618,640
Depreciation of property, plant ME BERZETE

and equipment 12,975 10,473
Depreciation of right-of-use assets A EENE 1,715 1,705
Foreign exchange differences SN[ 2= BB 8,995 (5,241)
Reversal of impairment loss on BH5RWHEZ

trade receivables BB S 18 O - (5,042)
Impairment loss of property, plant 9% - BEN&XHE 2

and equipment VRN ] 12,676 34,841
Interest income A2 YA (2,921) (14,744)
Interest expenses T BB 36,938 52,946
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BE MK & EEB

and equipment, net BEE = 68
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  H&N B R A 2K - (634,331)
Provision for inventories FEEE - 2,250
Cash flows before changes in EEESPHHBEERE

working capital: (293) 5,438

Inventories FE 168 (4,922)

Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A g U SR8 25,847 314,036

Trade and other payables B 5 N E AR RIE (198,876) (455,863)
Cash used in operations REXBERARS (173,154) (141,311)
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Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

29. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 29. HttREREER &)

(Continued)

29(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing Vb METHMELEEEB 22D
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's TRFAVAEEREREFSH 2 AE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including ZEY BEASRIFREH -
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising REMETH BB ZRERED
from financing activities are those for which cash KA RRBeEREZENAEERGFE
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in RenexkoBARMEETEHNE (AT
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as RIBRERE -

cash flows from (used in) financing activities.

2021 —E-—fF
Cash flow
(used in)/
Bank and other  from financing
borrowings activities
il & SE B
RITR (FTA)/Fi#8
Hih g & HERE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Note 24)
(Bt 5 24)
At beginning of the year R F ¥) 460,138 =
Repayment of unlisted secured bonds {EE X FTAEEKMES (388,630) (388,630)
New listed credit enhanced guaranteed B 3772 % Emi{s A
bonds issued BEERES 370,056 370,056
New lease oHE 1,247 -
Repayments — principal BN — A® (657) (657)
Foreign exchange translation HNEE H (3,881) =
Interest incurred in lease liabilities HEABEEEZHE 34 =
Interest incurred in unlisted secured FLmMBERES
bonds EEZFE 8,108 -
Interest incurred in listed credit rFhiERERAEER
enhanced guaranteed bonds BHFEEZHE 20,907 -
Interest paid EAFE (19,745) -
At end of the year REFR 447,577 (19,231)
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Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

29. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 29. Htt R REER @)
(Continued)
29(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing Vb MEETHMELEEBEZEE
activities (Continued) (#)
2020 —EZTF

Cash flow
from/(used

Bank and other
borrowings

in) financing
activities
MEED
RIT R Fris,/ (FrA)

210

HifgE RERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FA& T FAT
(Note 24)
(Bt 5£24)
At beginning of the year R EF A 575,828 -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHMNE AR (83,347) ~
New bank borrowings FRITER 33,750 33,750
New lease & 208 -
Repayments — principal BR—As (75,895) (75,895)
Foreign exchange translation HNEEE 5,075 -
Interest incurred in lease liabilities HEABEEEZHE 89 -
Interest incurred in unlisted secured FLEMBEBES
bonds EAEZHE 33,955 -
Payment of interest associated with RATEIE T A EA
unlisted secured bonds BHEBEZFE (29,525) -
At end of the year RER 460,138 (42,145)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. BEAFRS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed BRGAVBRREMENNERS, &
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the BN RAFE  REEEETUATEZE
Group has the following related party transactions during RS

the year:

2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-THE

—_—=< — —= —=

Related party relationship HK$'000 HK$'000
B B R TET T T

Interest expenses paid/payable

to:
MERAZERNT:
Jiangsu Dafeng Controlled by a substantial 3,492 10,508
shareholder
PRI H—BFEREZEG
Jiangsu Huahai Controlled by a director of the 1,836 5,577
Company
LERE S H—BARRAIEEES
Remuneration paid: (a)
[RENE-ZE
Salaries and other benefits Key management personnel other 520 1,076
than directors
& K E AR A FEBERAB(EERIIN
Contributions to defined 26 24

contribution plans
FE R SRET 3R

Notes: B 2

(a) The remuneration of directors is set out in note 10 to the (a) BEEHME N A B REM FE10 ©
consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS/BANKING FACILITIES 31. EE#E#E HTRE

Details of pledged assets and the banking facilities BEAWERRTIAEEZRITREFR
granted to the Group are summarised as follows: Bt

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TAET

Total banking facilities granted (Note 1) E X LIR{TRVE B
(%1 36,720 273,355

Total utilised banking facilities (Note 2) E 8)FRITRLE 2%

(M 7E2) 36,622 261,685

Note 1 B 1

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had obtained several RSB R - AN EEUS A 836,720,000 T (=T

banking facilities amounted to HK$36,720,000 (2020: HK$273,355,000) of ZE 273,355,000 ) 2 E TIRITRME - EAf:

which:

(i) RMB30,000,000 (approximately HK$36,720,000) (2020: (i) AR #30,000,0007T (4936,720,00078 L) ( =&
RMB30,000,000, approximately HK$35,655,000) are guaranteed by —Z4F: AR #30,000,0007T ¢ 4935,655,000
Jiangsu Dafeng and Heshun Trading. BILAIHRALRMIEESER -

(i) RMBNil (2020: RMB200,000,000, approximately HK$237,700,000) (i) ARBZT(=T =T AR200000,000
is secured by pledged bank deposits as shown in note 22 to the JT + #9237,700,00078 7T ) WA &7 & B 75 #R R B &
consolidated financial statements. 22 REERRITERIEEM -

Note 2 Mt 52

As at 31 December 2020, the utilised banking facilities amounted to R-T-—TE+-A=+—8 CHEKRTRES

HK$261,685,000 which comprised bills payables of RMB190,221,000 261,685,000 7T + B35 5 A M 5523(a) BT 48 B SR 1T A

(equivalent to HK$226,077,000) included in trade and bills payables BHYBSENZERENERNENEE ARK

issued by banks disclosed in note 23(a) and bank loan of RMB29,960,000 190,221,0007T (A8 & 4226,077,0003% 7T) & 48 17 & 2

(equivalent to HK$35,608,000) which were fully repaid during the year. A B #29,960,0007T (8 & 435,608,000 7T) + & R

FRNRHEE-

As at 31 December 2021, the utilised banking facilities represented the R-E-—ZET—F+-A=+—-B CHEAETHE

bank loan of RMB29,920,000 (equivalent to HK$36,622,000) disclosed in AR AMBEHREMIUQFEERTERARE

note 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements. 29,920,0007T (48 & 436,622,000 7T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. COMMITMENTS

33.

Capital expenditure commitments

Contracted but not provided net of
deposit paid for construction of

property, plant and equipment ERET®

32, &iE
BB R AE

2021
—_E_—F

A0A0]
—ZE-THE

HK$'000
TR

HK$'000
FTER

BERTAEREME  ME2
BEME -BEREREZ

219,776 209,495

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitment of HK$219,776,000 (2020: HK$209,495,000)
principally relating to construction work of petrochemical
storage facilities.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
bank and other borrowings, amounts due from/
to connected companies, bank balances and cash.
The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise and maintain finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial
instruments such as trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables, which arise directly from
its business activities.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are (i) foreign currency risk, (ii) interest
rate risk, (i) credit risk and (iv) liquidity risk. The
Group does not have any written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of
directors co-operates closely with key management
to identify and evaluate risks and generally adopts
conservative strategies on its risk management
and limits the Group's exposure to these risks to a
minimum level as follows.

RIREEIR - REBE A E0219,776,000% 7T
ZE T 209,495,000 7T) v EE T
AR ERHEBERTIR -

3B.&gWMIA
@ sHEAMEEEEREXK

AEBZETEZESHRTABRRITR
Hipfd & - U BN BE DR R
HRITESRERES - ZF2RT
AZTIEANAEERERASE
REMBRE - AKEREESLHE
i FE WK TR A B B 5 B B b & A 3R
REZBEMEM TR ZEHE
ERAEXBERSESL -

AEBeRIEEEZ2EZRAKRE
HINERBR - (NFERER - (iVEE
BB EiVREE SRR o AEBEI
AT 2 EE R EERERIES -
R EFEEITEBEEABER
B ¥R RFE AR - HEE
BEREERIARTRBIEAE
(5] 7 T 9 5% 55 B B BR 31 7 B AR K
BEfEwT -

REBHNIERFERDERA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

214

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group's business transactions were
conducted in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
("RMB") and United States dollars ("US$").
Exposures to foreign currency risk arise
from certain of the Group's trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and cash
and bank balances denominated in HK$, RMB
and US$. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign
currency exposures regularly and considers
there is no significant exposure on its foreign
currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to market risk for
changes in interest rates relates primarily to its
interest-bearing financial instruments including
bank balances and cash.

The table below is a summary of quantitative
data about exposure to interest rates at the
end of the reporting period:

At the end of the reporting period, if interest
rates had been 100 basis points (2020: 100
basis points)
variables were held constant, the Group’s net
loss would decrease/increase by HK$255,000
(2020: the Group's net profit would increase/
decrease by HK$161,000).

higher/lower and all other

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for the
financial instruments in existence at that date.
The 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’'s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2021 #;

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets on the
consolidated statement of financial position,
which is net of impairment losses, represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
on these financial assets.

Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. The Group limits its
exposure to credit risk from trade receivables
by selecting the counterparties with reference
to their past credit history and/or market
reputation.

to credit risk

The Group's exposure

is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on an
extensive credit rating and individual credit
limit assessment which is mainly based on the

Group's own trading records.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had a concentration of credit risk as 21.0%
(2020: 33.3%) and 59.0% (2020: 79.0%) of the
trade receivables were due from the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

mEMBRRME

E_EB-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

33. £ T H(m)

@) SREMRESEEERBE#)

(iii)

FERR

RAEMBMRARZ SRMEER
EE (FIFRREE ) i A& E
RELEEREEREZFER
@ EMR o

B ENTE

AEBEEERERTREBR I
LE=ZNRG - AEEEBS
EXHHFREFERHL
EMEBEREIZHFUR
HEBESEREREANEER

LA
i

0 o
PR

AEEFAZEEERBREIER
BEREPZEREBEE - TP
RERETERBERZENQR
RAFEEERR  HEFERE
B8/ - AEEERERZEE
AR REREEREFG(E
BERAEELRE 2 X5 i8K)
HEPZEEERETHMGE -

RREHR  AEEERER
AEFRAREFE S ERK
Hz EHREERESF521.0%
— T~ T :33.3%) %59.0%
ZEZTF 79.0%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

216

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group's customer base consists of a wide
range of clients and the trade receivables are
categorised by common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The Group applies a
simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
receivables and recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.
The expected loss rate used in the provision
matrix is calculated for each category based
on actual credit loss experience over the past
years and adjusted for current and forward
looking factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historical data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group's estimate on
future economic conditions over the expected
lives of the receivables. There was no change
in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. 2T E@®)
(@) Financial risk management objectives and (@) SEEREEEERBK#E)
policies (Continued)
(iii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) FERREHE)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as RELR - ESENRIBEL %
at the reporting period, based on the invoice SHHZERERTWOT

date is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Non-credit impaired EEERE
Within 90 days 90H A 24,435 25,673
91-180 days 91£180H 44 3,659
24,479 29,332
Credit impaired = ERE
More than 365 days 365H M & 3,514 3,514
3,514 3,514
27,993 32,846
The Group allows a credit period of up to REBETHESEBHARS
90 days to its trade debtors. The information QORZIEEHN - AHEFREK
about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for FEZ2EERBREREHRESE
trade receivables using a provision matrix is B R B EB R &R
summarised below. e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. @@ T B
(@) Financial risk management objectives and @) THMEMEEEERBEK@®)
policies (Continued)
(i) Credit risk (Continued) (i) EE R
As at 31 December 2021 R=ZB=-—-F+=A=+—H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate Amount  allowance impaired

FHEBERR FREAE SHERA FERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
B FTERT FTER

Non-credit impaired

EBERERME

Not past due 0% 24,435 = No

1-90 days past due 0% 44 = No

#HE1E90R i
24,479 -

Credit impaired

FEERE

Over 365 days past due 100% 3,514 (3,514) Yes

B HAI3658 A + B
27,993 (3,514)
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2021 &

3B. &I A
@ EREBREEEERKE @A)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020

Non-credit impaired

Expected

loss rate
THHBEE
%

Elasd

(iii)

=

C4:04¢ ¥

REMBHRERHE
ECEC—F+ZA=+—HILFE

R-ZF-_TE+_-_A=+—H

Gross
carrying
Amount

RHEAE
HK$'000
FAT

Loss
allowance
&5 18 B

HK$'000
FAT

Credit-
impaired

EERE

EEERE

Not past due 0% 25,673 - No

1-90 days past due 0% 3,659 - No

# Bf1Z=90H 3
29,332 -

Credit impaired

EERE

Over 365 days past due 100% 3,514 (3,514) Yes

# EA365A M =]
32,846 (3,514)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T=—

F+=A=+—AILEE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
p0|iCieS (Continued)

(iii)

220

Credit risk (Continued)

Included in the Group's trade receivables
balance as at 31 December 2021 are debtors
with a carrying amount of HK$44,000 (2020:
HK$3,659,000), which are past due as at 31
December 2021 but which the Group has not
impaired as there has not been any significant
changes in credit quality and the directors
believe that the amounts are fully receivable.

Receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
relate to a wide range of customers for whom
there was no history of default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over
trade receivables as at 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2021,
recognised loss allowance of HK$3,514,000
(2020: HK$3,514,000) on the trade receivables.
The movements in the loss allowance for trade

the Group

receivables during the year are summarised
below:

3. &I B
@ ERMEREEAERBX#®)

iy EERKE)

R-F-_—F+-A=1+—8"
AEBEZBHRWHIRERE
& IREE R44,0008 T(ZF
= F 4 13,659,000 JT) 2 JE
W BRBRAR T ——
F+-_A=+—REBaH  *%
AREEY EARBE FRES
FEEZUEREMANEANEY

RESERETZ MBI ZER
I8 o

R-B_—FR-_F-_FF+
“HA=t—H BEAHITE
BB < YR IR B % 2 I S A
REBZEFER -

R—ZE-_—F+=-A=+—8"
NEBEIW ERE D EWZHE
BEAMEFER(CE_FF:

) o
KRB —F+=—A=+—8"
NEEFE S EKS Eﬁm

18 B #53,514,0008 T (ZZE =
T4 1 3,514,000/ 7T ) © IIARE

ErESEWRIBGRBEGY
BT o

2021 2020

—E=_—5F — T T4

HK$'000 HK$'000

THE T FAT

At beginning of year RE 3,514 9,511
Increase in allowance B 15 128 0 - 3,514
Amount recovered Bk ol & %8 - (8,556)
Amount written off B E e % = (971)
Exchange realignment fE 5 3 B = 16
At end of the reporting period RIREH R 3,514 3,514
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2021 #;

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment
on other receivables from various parties based
on 12-month ECL. The credit risk of the Group's
other receivables arises from default of the
counterparties, with maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these receivables.
Individual credit limits are set based on the
assessments of the credit quality.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken
into account the historical actual credit loss
experience and the financial position of the
counterparties, past collection history, current
creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking
factors that are specific to the debtors and
general economic conditions of the industry in
which the counterparties operate, in estimating
the probability of default of these financial
assets, as well as the loss upon default in
each case. The management of the Group
considers the ECL of these financial assets to
be insignificant after taking into account the
financial position, quality of the counterparties
and past settlement records. There was
no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the year.

mEMBRRME
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(iii)

FERR &)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

222

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group aims at maintaining
sufficient level of cash and cash equivalents
to finance the Group’s operations and
expected expansion. The Group's primary cash
requirements include payments for operating
expenses, additions or upgrades of property,
plant and equipment and repayment of
borrowings. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds
generated from operations, advances from
related parties and use of bank and other
borrowings.

The Group manages liquidity risk by
forecasting the amount of cash required and
monitoring the working capital of the Group
to ensure that all liabilities due and known
funding requirements could be met. Based
on the assessment of the management, the
overall liquidity risk encountered by the Group
is manageable.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
net current liabilities of approximately
HK$156,506,000 (2020: HK$320,008,000). The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared by the directors of the Company
on a going concern basis taking into account
of the measures mentioned in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The remaining undiscounted contracted
maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period, based on the earliest date in which
the Group is required to settle, is summarised
below:

3B. &I A
@ EREBREEEERKE @A)

vy RBESRER(HE)

RBEHR  BAKREAIN
ZEREAHEDAKEEITE
TREBEZHGBRMBEANE
HERBMELT:

Over Over Over

3 months 1 year but 2 years but

but not not more  no more

On Less than more than than than
demand 3 months 12 months 2 years 5 years

BB=F BE-F EBBEmF

SR BTHEE (BTEB ETHE
REX ZfA ik Gik:3 At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TRz TEx TRz TEx TE=x

At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-%+-A=1+-H
Trade and other payables BHREMERFE
Amounts due to connected companies  EffBE N E 2 3B
Amount due to an associate ER—EEE AR HE
Bank loan RITER
Listed credit enhanced TTEREREERES

guaranteed bonds
Lease liabilities HEBE
Loan from a connected company RE-HBEELAZER

90,148 31,176 = = - 121,324
62,418 1492 142,675 - - 206,585
= = = 37,259 - 37,259

= 632 1,980 2,609 40,215 45,436

5,146 5,146 10,292 433981 454,565
129 324 432 340 1,225
453 23942 = - 2439

152,566 39,028 174,067 50,592 474,536 890,789

At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZF+-B=t-H
Trade and other payables BOREMERRE
Amounts due to connected companies B BE N E 2 FE
Amount due to an associate ER—EEE AR HE
Bank loan BITER
Unlisted secured bonds FEMEERES
Lease liabilities HEBE
Loan from a connected company RE-—HBEELRZER

Over Over Over

3 months 1 year but 2 years but

but not not more  no more

On Less than more than than than
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years
BB—F BAWE

B (BTERE BTER
A W E %

HEF +=f8
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TET TAT TAT AR

68,204 32420 226,077 - 326,701
15,885 1,469 4,407 140,462 - 162223
- - - - 35,883 35,883
- 614 1923 2,533 41,579 46,649

- 420,884 - - - 420,884
- 284 578 - - 862
- 499 1,498 23,861 - 25,858

84,089 456,170 234483 166,856 77,462 1,019,060
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

224

(b)

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
and to support the Group's stability and growth.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of
bank and other borrowings and equity attributable
to equity owners of the Company.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking
into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares
or return capital to shareholders. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. £ T H(m)
(c) Categories and fair value of financial ) EMIBESERATE
instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

UTEREREEREREBECKR
EEEKIIT

are set out as follows:

2021
—_E_—F

HK$'000
FTEx

2020

T -TH
HK$'000
FBT

Financial assets at amortised REEEMERESEA
costs under HKFRS 9: HEOR IR BB AT BR
ZEMEE:
Trade and other receivables g5 & E g W GRIE 73,994 61,569
Pledged bank deposits BEEIFERITER - 218,565
Bank balances and cash RITHE B RIRE 25,493 16,107
99,487 296,241
2021 2020
—B=—fF T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Financial liabilities at amortised 3% # 85 & 45 iR =
costs: cRAE:
Trade and other payables B 5 & H e RIE 322,852 342,585
Current portion of bank and RITREMEEZ
other borrowings BN EA EF 5 428 402,334
Current portion of loan from a e — R E AR
connected company Bz BIHE 5 22,859 -
Amount due to an associate R —MEBE AR 2
IA 37,259 35,883
Non-current portion of bank and BT R EMEE 2~
other borrowings JEBNEAEB & 424,290 35,608
Non-current portion of loan RE— A ERR
from a connected company BERZIEREE S - 22,196
Non-current portion of amount & —FEI B 2 A R FRIE
due to a connected company Z JERNER R o - 135,075
807,688 973,681

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not

materially different from their fair values as at 31

December 2021 and 2020.

FEtMITAEAEREN-F
—FER—E_EF+_A=+—H

2

ARFEYLBEBERER -

REBAENZEROERDT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZFE=-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. KA T B AR R &

THE COMPANY

2021
—E-_—F

HK$’000
FTER

2020
—E-FF
HK$'000
TET

Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries BB AR ZEE 14 8 8
Right-of-use assets FREEE 1,159 -
1,167 8
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments SCANE/ G 457 358
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE I B B8~ B 5 IE 53,466 67,139
Cash at bank RITH 2 2,281 1,278
56,204 68,775
Current liabilities REBaE
Other payables and accrual H e A R ERTE A 1,790 1,500
Amount due to a subsidiary e — M B AR F A 39,625 4,765
Other borrowings H g3 408 401,792
41,823 408,057
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE(EEB)EE 14,381 (339,282)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABER 15,548 (339,274)
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Other borrowings HER 387,668 -
NET LIABILITIES FEE (372,120) (339,274)
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital [N 26 12,880 12,880
Reserves & & 34(a) (385,000) (352,154)
TOTAL DEFICITS B AL AR R (372,120) (339,274)

BRI ERN —_E-_—_F=A=-+WMA
KEEeHERKRERE  WYHEMUTAL

This statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March

2022 and signed on its behalf by: (AES 5
Yuan Qingfeng Yang Yue Xia

=E# BHE

Director Director

EFE EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

BT+ -A=+—HItFE

Year ended 31 December 2021 &

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. A&7 B # ik 5w &k &)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a)

Movements of the reserves

Share
premium

HK$'000
7
(Note 28(a))
(Ff 728(a))

(a) REEZH

Contributed
surplus

HK$'000
TET
(Note 28(f)
GEZE)

Share-based
payment
reserve

WA RR 3
RERZ
R G
HK$'000
FAET
(Note 28(g))
(B 5£28(g)

Accumulated
losses

ZitER
HK$'000
THET

At 1 January 2020 RZE-TF—A—H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (561,685)  (322,647)
Loss and total comprehensive loss ENBERZEBELE

for the year - - - (29,507) (29,507)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZE+-A=1-H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (591,192)  (352,154)
At 1 January 2021 RZB--%-F—-H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (591,192)  (352,154)
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRNERRZEHBLE

for the year - - - (32,846)  (32,846)
At 31 December 2021 RZB-Z-F+t=ZA=t-H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (624,038) (385,000)

REBHNEREBRGERAH

2021 3R
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B E

RESULTS

2021
—E—_

— =

HK$'000*

£

2020 2019 2018 2017
—E-2F —T-NF —T-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000* HK$'000* HK$'000* HK$'000*

FRT

TR T TR TR

Revenue E: 908,411 2,049,861 1,517,072 4369900 3,424,606
(Loss) Profit before taxation bR B A (B 48) ) 7 (70,671) 562,513 (944,792) (173,315) 5,629
Income tax (expense) credit  FTBH (AxX)E L (67) 5,410 (199) (695) (4,236)
(Loss) Profit for the year FREE) & (70,738) 567923 (944,991) (174,010) 1,393
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

2020 2019 2018 2017
2 2F —T-NF —T-N\F —T—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TR TR
643,128 1,411,619 2,769,734 1,268,618
(1,025,672)  (2,362,526)  (2,752,807) (1,072,157)

2021

—E-—F

HK$'000

THERT

Total assets EEBME 425,214
Total liabilities BERR (865,561)
Total (deficits) equity (BA R RS (440,347)

(382,544) (950,907) 16,927 196,461

*

operations.

228 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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The above figures included both continuing operations and discontinued ~ * FHRBTFEERELCEEBRERIELEER -
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